UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(M

(Mark O	One)	
\boxtimes	QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934	ON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
	For the quarterly period ende	d June 30, 2018
	OR	
	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTI EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934	ON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
	For the transition period from	to
	Commission file number:	001-36120
	ANTERO RESOURCES (Exact name of registrant as speci	
	Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)	80-0162034 (IRS Employer Identification No.)
	1615 Wynkoop Street Denver, Colorado (Address of principal executive offices)	80202 (Zip Code)
	(303) 357-7310 (Registrant's telephone number, in	
Exchange	cate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports e Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter as been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.	period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
Interactiv	cate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronic ve Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule of 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required.)	405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the
reporting	cate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated fil geompany, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the	f "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller
	Large accelerated filer ⊠	Accelerated filer \square
	Non-accelerated filer □	Smaller reporting company \square
	(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)	
	Emerging growth company \square	
	n emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrate with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided	
Indi	cate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as d	efined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act) ☐ Yes ☒ No
The	registrant had 317,086,304 shares of common stock outstanding a	s of July 27, 2018.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CAUTIONARY STA	TEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	2
PART I—FINANCIA	AL INFORMATION	4
Item 1.	Financial Statements (Unaudited)	4
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	40
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	62
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	64
PART II—OTHER II	NFORMATION	64
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	64
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	66
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	66
Item 6.	Exhibits	67
SIGNATURES		68

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements give our current expectations, contain projections of results of operations or of financial condition, or forecasts of future events. Words such as "may," "assume," "forecast," "position," "predict," "strategy," "expect," "intend," "plan," "estimate," "anticipate," "believe," "project," "budget," "potential," or "continue," and similar expressions are used to identify forward-looking statements. They can be affected by assumptions used or by known or unknown risks or uncertainties. Consequently, no forward-looking statements can be guaranteed. When considering these forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Actual results may vary materially. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. You should also understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all such factors and should not consider the following list to be a complete statement of all potential risks and uncertainties. Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from the results contemplated by such forward-looking statements include:

- · business strategy;
- reserves;
- financial strategy, liquidity, and capital required for our development program;
- natural gas, natural gas liquids ("NGLs"), and oil prices;
- · timing and amount of future production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil;
- hedging strategy and results;
- costs and outcomes associated with the ongoing review of potential transactions by the special committee of our board of directors as described herein;
- ability to meet minimum volume commitments and to utilize or monetize our firm transportation commitments;
- future drilling plans;
- · competition and government regulations;
- pending legal or environmental matters;
- · marketing of natural gas, NGLs, and oil;
- · leasehold or business acquisitions;
- · costs of developing our properties;
- operations of Antero Midstream Partners LP ("Antero Midstream"), including the operations of its unconsolidated affiliates;
- · general economic conditions;
- · credit markets;
- · uncertainty regarding our future operating results; and
- · plans, objectives, expectations, and intentions.

We caution you that these forward-looking statements are subject to all of the risks and uncertainties, most of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control, incidental to our business. These risks include, but are not limited to, commodity price volatility, inflation, availability of drilling, completion, and production equipment and services, environmental risks, drilling and completion and other operating risks, marketing and transportation risks, regulatory changes, the uncertainty inherent in estimating natural gas, NGLs, and oil reserves and in projecting future rates of production, cash flows and access to capital, the timing

Table of Contents

of development expenditures, conflicts of interest among our stockholders, and the other risks described under the heading "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 (the "2017 Form 10-K") on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").

Reserve engineering is a process of estimating underground accumulations of natural gas, NGLs, and oil that cannot be measured in an exact manner. The accuracy of any reserve estimate depends on the quality of available data, the interpretation of such data, and the price and cost assumptions made by reservoir engineers. In addition, the results of drilling, testing, and production activities, or changes in commodity prices, may justify revisions of estimates that were made previously. If significant, such revisions would change the schedule of any further production and development drilling. Accordingly, reserve estimates may differ significantly from the quantities of natural gas, NGLs, and oil that are ultimately recovered.

Should one or more of the risks or uncertainties described in this report occur, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results and plans could differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements, expressed or implied, included in this report are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. This cautionary statement should also be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements that we or persons acting on our behalf may issue.

Except as otherwise required by applicable law, we disclaim any duty to update any forward-looking statements, all of which are expressly qualified by the statements in this section, to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION ANTERO RESOURCES CORPORATION

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

	D	December 31, 2017	June 30, 2018
Assets			
Current assets:		20.444	= 0.600
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	28,441	50,608
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$1,320 at December		24.006	25.656
31, 2017 and \$1,195 at June 30, 2018, respectively		34,896	35,676
Accrued revenue		300,122	321,214
Derivative instruments		460,685	420,842
Other current assets	_	8,943	6,590
Total current assets	_	833,087	834,930
Property and equipment:			
Natural gas properties, at cost (successful efforts method):		2.266.672	2 100 100
Unproved properties		2,266,673	2,108,109
Proved properties		11,096,462	11,924,864
Water handling and treatment systems		946,670	979,937
Gathering systems and facilities		2,050,490	2,255,385
Other property and equipment	_	57,429	60,766
The community of deal desired and according		16,417,724	17,329,061
Less accumulated depletion, depreciation, and amortization		(3,182,171)	(3,647,910)
Property and equipment, net		13,235,553	13,681,151
Derivative instruments		841,257	763,592
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates		303,302	358,830
Other assets	Φ.	48,291	52,104
Total assets	\$	15,261,490	15,690,607
Liabilities and Equity			
Current liabilities:			
Accounts payable	\$	62,982	96,477
Accrued liabilities		443,225	438,829
Revenue distributions payable		209,617	211,234
Derivative instruments		28,476	30,661
Other current liabilities		17,796	11,532
Total current liabilities		762,096	788,733
Long-term liabilities:		,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Long-term debt		4,800,090	5,288,344
Deferred income tax liability		779,645	763,192
Derivative instruments		207	
Other liabilities		43,316	47,427
Total liabilities		6,385,354	6,887,696
Commitments and contingencies (notes 12 and 13)	_		
Equity:			
Stockholders' equity:			
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value; authorized - 50,000 shares; none issued		_	_
Common stock, \$0.01 par value; authorized - 1,000,000 shares; 316,379 shares and			
317,052 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018,			
respectively		3,164	3,171
Additional paid-in capital		6,570,952	6,597,537
Accumulated earnings		1,575,065	1,453,513
Total stockholders' equity		8,149,181	8,054,221
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiary		726,955	748,690
Total equity		8,876,136	8,802,911
Total liabilities and equity	\$	15,261,490	15,690,607
rotal nationales and equity	Ψ	13,201,770	15,070,007

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 and 2018
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

	-	Three Months Ended June 30,		
		2017	2018	
Revenue:				
Natural gas sales	\$	454,257	473,540	
Natural gas liquids sales		170,819	255,985	
Oil sales		26,512	38,873	
Commodity derivative fair value gains		85,641	55,336	
Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment		3,192	5,518	
Marketing		49,968	160,202	
Marketing derivative fair value losses			(110)	
Total revenue		790,389	989,344	
Operating expenses:				
Lease operating		16,992	30,164	
Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation		266,747	307,786	
Production and ad valorem taxes		22,553	25,891	
Marketing		77,421	213,420	
Exploration		1,804	1,471	
Impairment of unproved properties		15,199	134,437	
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities		_	8,501	
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization		201,182	238,050	
Accretion of asset retirement obligations		649	700	
General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of				
\$26,975 and \$19,071 in 2017 and 2018, respectively)		64,099	61,687	
Total operating expenses		666,646	1,022,107	
Operating income (loss)		123,743	(32,763)	
Other income (expenses):			(= -,,-	
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates		3,623	9,264	
Interest		(68,582)	(69,349)	
Total other expenses	_		(0),5 .)	
10.001 0.0101 0.0p0.1000		(64,959)	(60,085)	
Income (loss) before income taxes		58,784	(92,848)	
Provision for income tax (expense) benefit		(18,819)	25,573	
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrolling				
interests		39,965	(67,275)	
Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests		45,097	69,110	
Net loss and comprehensive loss attributable to Antero Resources Corporation	\$	(5,132)	(136,385)	
·			<u> </u>	
Loss per common share—basic	\$	(0.02)	(0.43)	
	•	(***=)	(31.12)	
Loss per common share—assuming dilution	\$	(0.02)	(0.43)	
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:				
Basic		315,401	316,992	
Diluted				
Direct		315,401	316,992	

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Operating expenses: Lease operating 32,543 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including non		Six Months Ended June 30		ded June 30,
Natural gas sales \$20,921 971,203 Natural gas liquids sales 365,471 490,155 Oil sales 53,472 69,146 Commodity derivative fair value gains 524,416 77,773 Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment 5,796 10,453 Marketing derivative fair value gains — 94,124 Total revenue and other 115,892 304,591 Operating expenses: 2 47,245 55,886 Case operating 32,543 56,886 69,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 333,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of upproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities 40,391 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390			2017	2018
Natural gas liquids sales 365,471 490,155 Oil sales 53,472 69,146 Commodity derivative fair value gains 524,416 77,773 Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment 5,796 10,453 Marketing 115,892 304,591 Marketing derivative fair value gains - 94,124 Total revenue and other 1,985,968 2,017,445 Operating expenses: Lease operating 332,543 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,556 Impairment of uproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities - 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797				
Oil sales 53,472 69,146 Commodity derivative fair value gains 524,416 77,777.77 Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment 5,796 10,453 Marketing derivative fair value gains — 94,124 Total revenue and other 1,985,968 2,017,445 Operating expenses: — 20,124 Lease operating 32,543 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,303,714 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				
Commodity derivative fair value gains 524,416 77,737 Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment 5,796 10,453 Marketing 115,892 304,591 Marketing derivative fair value gains — 94,124 Total revenue and other 1,985,968 2,017,445 Operating expenses: — 94,124 Lease operating 32,543 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$4,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714			365,471	
Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment 5,796 10,453 Marketing 115,892 304,591 Marketing derivative fair value gains ————————————————————————————————————	Oil sales		53,472	69,146
Marketing 115,892 304,591 Marketing derivative fair value gains — 94,124 Total revenue and other 1,985,968 2,017,445 Operating expenses: — 82,513 56,886 Cathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,351 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,297 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 19,03,714 Ober ating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 128,797 121,717 Total other expenses 1,360,882 1,7126 113,731 101 14,533 11,364 Income (loss) before income tax	Commodity derivative fair value gains		524,416	77,773
Marketing derivative fair value gains — 94,124 Total revenue and other 1,985,968 2,017,445 Operating expenses: Lease operating 32,543 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 5,854 13,731 Other income (expenses): 5,854 17,126 Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,5252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398)	Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment		5,796	10,453
Total revenue and other 1,985,968 2,017,445 Operating expenses: 1 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes (15,0165) 16,453 <			115,892	304,591
Total revenue and other 1,985,968 2,017,445 Operating expenses: 1 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes (15,0165) 16,453 <	Marketing derivative fair value gains		_	94,124
Lease operating 32,543 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling i		1,	985,968	2,017,445
Lease operating 32,543 56,886 Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling i	Operating expenses:			
Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation 533,576 599,724 Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses 495,688 (2,918) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>32,543</td><td>56,886</td></t<>			32,543	56,886
Production and ad valorem taxes 47,346 51,714 Marketing 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 2 1 Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,253				599,724
Marketing Exploration 167,414 409,159 Exploration 3,911 3,3516 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources 263				
Exploration 3,911 3,356 Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): ————————————————————————————————————	Marketing			
Impairment of unproved properties 42,098 184,973 Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 2 128,797 121,717 Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income attributable to Antero Resources 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic				
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities — 8,501 Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): *** *** Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 345,523 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution </td <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td>			-	
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization 403,911 466,294 Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390 General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 1 (135,252) (133,775) Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,535 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding:			_	
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,286 1,390			403,911	
General and administrative (including equity-based compensation expense of \$52,478 and \$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 135,387 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: 315,179 316,733			,	
\$40,227 in 2017 and 2018, respectively) 128,797 121,717 Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 8 Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,535 Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733			,	,
Total operating expenses 1,360,882 1,903,714 Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 2 Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,508 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733			128.797	121.717
Operating income 625,086 113,731 Other income (expenses): 25,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,535 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$ 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$ 0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733				
Other income (expenses): 5,854 17,126 Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,535 Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$ 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$ 0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: 315,179 316,733				
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 5,854 17,126 Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,535 Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$ 0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: 8 0.83 (0.38) Basic 315,179 316,733			025,000	113,731
Interest (135,252) (133,775) Total other expenses (129,398) (116,649) Income (loss) before income taxes 495,688 (2,918) Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,535 Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$ 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$ 0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: 315,179 316,733			5 854	17 126
Total other expenses Income (loss) before income taxes Provision for income tax (expense) benefit Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation Earnings (loss) per common share—basic Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.84 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic		(1		
Income (loss) before income taxes Provision for income tax (expense) benefit Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation Earnings (loss) per common share—basic Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.84 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733		()	133,232)	(133,773)
Provision for income tax (expense) benefit (150,165) 16,453 Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests 345,523 13,535 Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 82,259 135,087 Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation \$263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733	Total other expenses	(1	129,398)	(116,649)
Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation Earnings (loss) per common share—basic Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.84 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 345,523 13,535 82,259 135,087 (121,552)	Income (loss) before income taxes		495,688	(2,918)
Net income and comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation Earnings (loss) per common share—basic Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.84 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 345,523 13,535 82,259 135,087 (121,552)	Provision for income tax (expense) benefit	(1	150,165)	16,453
Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation Earnings (loss) per common share—basic Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution Solution				13,535
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation Substitute 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic Substitute 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution Substitute 263,264 (121,552) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic Substitute 263,264 (121,552) Substit			82,259	135,087
Corporation \$ 263,264 (121,552) Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$ 0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733				
Earnings (loss) per common share—basic \$ 0.84 (0.38) Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733		\$	263,264	(121,552)
Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733				
Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733				
Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution \$ 0.83 (0.38) Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733	Earnings (loss) per common share—basic	\$	0.84	(0.38)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733	8. (· · ·) F · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			(1111)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding: Basic 315,179 316,733	Earnings (loss) per common share—assuming dilution	\$	0.83	(0.38)
Basic 315,179 316,733	5 () / r · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			(2.20)
Basic 315,179 316,733	Weighted average number of shares outstanding:			
			315,179	316.733
				316,733

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Equity Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) (In thousands)

			Additional			
	Commo	n Stock	paid-	Accumulated	Noncontrolling	Total
	Shares	Amount	in capital	earnings	interests	equity
Balances, December 31, 2017	316,379	\$3,164	6,570,952	1,575,065	726,955	8,876,136
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of equity-based compensation awards, net of						
shares withheld for income taxes	673	7	(6,656)	_	_	(6,649)
Issuance of common units in Antero Midstream Partners LP upon vesting of equity-based compensation awards, net of units withheld for						
income taxes	_	_	(4,057)	_	2,739	(1,318)
Equity-based compensation	_	_	35,732	_	4,495	40,227
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)	_	_	_	(121,552)	135,087	13,535
Effects of changes in ownership interests in consolidated subsidiaries	_	_	1,566	_	(1,566)	_
Distributions to noncontrolling interests	_	_	_	_	(119,023)	(119,023)
Other	_	_	_	_	3	3
Balances, June 30, 2018	317,052	\$3,171	6,597,537	1,453,513	748,690	8,802,911

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (Unaudited) (In thousands)

	Six Months En	ded June 30,
	2017	2018
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:		
Net income including noncontrolling interests	\$ 345,523	13,535
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:		
Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion	405,197	467,684
Impairment of unproved properties	42,098	184,973
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities	_	8,501
Commodity derivative fair value gains	(524,416)	(77,773)
Gains on settled commodity derivatives	75,913	197,225
Marketing derivative fair value gains	_	(94,124)
Gains on settled marketing derivatives	_	94,158
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)	150,165	(16,453)
Equity-based compensation expense	52,478	40,227
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	(5,854)	(17,126)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated affiliates	5,820	17,895
Other	472	1,932
Changes in current assets and liabilities:		
Accounts receivable	13,188	10,237
Accrued revenue	43,339	(21,092)
Other current assets	(2,385)	2,353
Accounts payable	2,072	2,948
Accrued liabilities	4,204	24,065
Revenue distributions payable	39,162	1,617
Other current liabilities	610	(1,842)
Net cash provided by operating activities	647,586	838,940
Cash flows used in investing activities:		
Additions to proved properties	(179,318)	_
Additions to unproved properties	(129,876)	(87,861)
Drilling and completion costs	(629,308)	(752,781)
Additions to water handling and treatment systems	(95,451)	(58,127)
Additions to gathering systems and facilities	(155,365)	(206,753)
Additions to other property and equipment	(6,564)	(3,502)
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates	(191,364)	(56,297)
Change in other assets	(12,452)	(7,026)
Other	2,156	_
Net cash used in investing activities	(1,397,542)	(1,172,347)
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:		
Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream Partners LP	246,585	_
Borrowings on bank credit facilities, net	585,000	485,000
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiary	(61,869)	(119,023)
Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards	(8,433)	(7,967)
Other	(2,747)	(2,436)
Net cash provided by financing activities	758,536	355,574
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	8,580	22,167
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	31,610	28,441
	\$ 40,190	50,608
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 40,190	30,008
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:		
Cash paid during the period for interest	\$ 125,284	130,231
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities for additions to property and equipment	\$ 31,182	2,089

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(1) Organization

Antero Resources Corporation (individually referred to as "Antero" or the "Parent") and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Company") are engaged in the exploration, development, and acquisition of natural gas, NGLs, and oil properties in the Appalachian Basin in West Virginia and Ohio. The Company targets large, repeatable resource plays where horizontal drilling and advanced fracture stimulation technologies provide the means to economically develop and produce natural gas, NGLs, and oil from unconventional formations. Through its consolidated subsidiary, Antero Midstream Partners LP, a publicly-traded limited partnership ("Antero Midstream"), the Company has gathering and compression, as well as water handling and treatment operations in the Appalachian Basin. The Company's corporate headquarters are located in Denver, Colorado.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

These condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC applicable to interim financial information and should be read in the context of the December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for a more complete understanding of the Company's operations, financial position, and accounting policies. The December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statements have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") in the Company's 2017 Form 10-K.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") for interim financial information, and, accordingly, do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal and recurring accruals) considered necessary to present fairly the Company's financial position as of December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018, the results of its operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, and its cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018. The Company has no items of other comprehensive income or loss; therefore, its net income or loss is equal to its comprehensive income or loss. Operating results for the period ended June 30, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year because of the impact of fluctuations in prices received for natural gas, NGLs, and oil, natural production declines, the uncertainty of exploration and development drilling results, fluctuations in the fair value of derivative instruments, and other factors.

The Company's exploration and production activities are accounted for under the successful efforts method.

As of the date these financial statements were filed with the SEC, the Company completed its evaluation of potential subsequent events for disclosure and no items requiring disclosure were identified.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Antero, its wholly-owned subsidiaries, any entities in which the Company owns a controlling interest, and variable interest entities ("VIEs") for which the Company is the primary beneficiary.

We have determined that Antero Midstream is a VIE for which Antero is the primary beneficiary. Therefore, Antero Midstream's accounts are consolidated in the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements. Antero is the primary beneficiary of Antero Midstream based on its power to direct the activities that most significantly impact Antero Midstream's economic performance, and its obligation to absorb losses of, or right to receive benefits from, Antero Midstream that could be significant to Antero Midstream. In reaching the determination that Antero is the primary beneficiary of Antero Midstream, the Company considered the following:

- Antero Midstream was formed to own, operate, and develop midstream energy assets to service Antero's production and completion activities under long-term service contracts.
- Antero owned 52.9% of the outstanding limited partner interests in Antero Midstream at June 30, 2018.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

- Antero Midstream GP LP ("AMGP") indirectly controls the general partnership interest in Antero Midstream and directly controls Antero IDR Holdings LLC ("IDR LLC"), which owns the incentive distribution rights in Antero Midstream. However, AMGP has not provided, and is not expected to provide, financial support to Antero Midstream. Antero does not control AMGP and does not have any investment in AMGP.
- · Antero's officers and management group also act as management of Antero Midstream and AMGP.
- Antero and Antero Midstream have contracts with 20-year initial terms and automatic renewal provisions, whereby Antero has dedicated the rights for gathering and compression, and water delivery and treatment services to Antero Midstream. Such dedications cover a substantial portion of Antero's current acreage and future acquired acreage, in each case, except for acreage that was already dedicated to other parties prior to entering into the service contracts or that was acquired subject to a pre-existing dedication. The contracts call for Antero to present, in advance, its drilling and completion plans in order for Antero Midstream to develop gathering and compression and water delivery and handling assets to service Antero's operations. Consequently, the drilling and completion capital investment decisions made by Antero control the development and operation of all of Antero Midstream's assets. Because of these contractual obligations and the capital requirements related to these obligations, Antero Midstream has and, for the foreseeable future, will devote substantially all of its resources to servicing Antero's operations.
- · Revenues from Antero provide substantially all of Antero Midstream's financial support and, therefore, its ability to finance its operations.
- As a result of the long-term contractual commitment to support Antero's substantial growth plans, Antero Midstream will be practically and physically constrained from providing any substantive amount of services to third-parties.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements. Noncontrolling interest in the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements represents the interests in Antero Midstream which are owned by the public and the incentive distribution rights in Antero Midstream. Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries is included as a component of equity in the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Investments in entities for which the Company exercises significant influence, but not control, are accounted for under the equity method. Such investments are included in Investments in unconsolidated affiliates on the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets. Income from investees that are accounted for under the equity method is included in Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates on the Company's condensed consolidated statements of operations and cash flows.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions which affect revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Changes in facts and circumstances or discovery of new information may result in revised estimates, and actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company's condensed consolidated financial statements are based on a number of significant estimates including estimates of natural gas, NGLs, and oil reserve quantities, which are the basis for the calculation of depletion and impairment of oil and gas properties. Reserve estimates, by their nature, are inherently imprecise. Other items in the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements which involve the use of significant estimates include derivative assets and liabilities, accrued revenue, deferred income taxes, equity-based compensation, asset retirement obligations, depreciation, amortization, and commitments and contingencies.

(d) Risks and Uncertainties

The markets for natural gas, NGLs, and oil have, and continue to, experience significant price fluctuations. Price fluctuations can result from variations in weather, levels of production, availability of transportation capacity to other regions of the country, the level of imports to and exports from the United States, and various other factors. Increases or decreases in the prices the Company receives for its production could have a significant impact on the Company's future results of operations and reserve quantities.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid investments purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. From time to time, the Company may be in the position of a "book overdraft" in which outstanding checks exceed cash and cash equivalents. The Company classifies book overdrafts within accounts payable within its condensed consolidated balance sheets, and classifies the change in accounts payable associated with book overdrafts as an operating activity within its condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.

(f) Derivative Financial Instruments

In order to manage its exposure to natural gas, NGLs, and oil price volatility, the Company enters into derivative transactions from time to time, which may include commodity swap agreements, basis swap agreements, collar agreements, and other similar agreements related to the price risk associated with the Company's production. To the extent legal right of offset exists with a counterparty, the Company reports derivative assets and liabilities on a net basis. The Company has exposure to credit risk to the extent that the counterparty is unable to satisfy its settlement obligations. The Company actively monitors the creditworthiness of counterparties and assesses the impact, if any, on its derivative positions.

The Company records derivative instruments on the condensed consolidated balance sheets as either assets or liabilities measured at fair value and records changes in the fair value of derivatives in current earnings as they occur. Changes in the fair value of commodity derivatives, including gains or losses on settled derivatives, are classified as revenues on the Company's condensed consolidated statements of operations. The Company's derivatives have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes.

(g) Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company is obligated to dispose of certain long-lived assets upon their abandonment. The Company's asset retirement obligations ("AROs") relate primarily to its obligation to plug and abandon oil and gas wells at the end of their lives, as well as Antero Midstream's future closure and postclosure costs associated with the landfill at its wastewater treatment facility. AROs are recorded at estimated fair value, measured by reference to the expected future cash outflows required to satisfy the retirement obligations, which is then discounted at the Company's credit-adjusted, risk-free interest rate. Revisions to estimated AROs often result from changes in retirement cost estimates or changes in the estimated timing of abandonment. The fair value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of the associated asset, and this additional carrying amount is depreciated over the life of the asset. The liability is accreted at the end of each period through charges to operating expense. If an obligation is settled for an amount other than the carrying amount of the liability, the Company will recognize a gain or loss on settlement.

(h) Income Taxes

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, the Company's overall effective tax rate was different than the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the effects of noncontrolling interests, state tax rates, and permanent differences on vested equity compensation awards. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company's overall effective tax rate was different than the statutory rate of 21% primarily due to the effects of noncontrolling interests, state tax rates, and permanent differences on vested equity compensation awards. Additionally, due to a change in Colorado tax laws that decreased our effective state tax rates, we recognized a \$20 million benefit during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 from the resulting reduction of our deferred tax liabilities.

(i) Industry Segments and Geographic Information

Management has evaluated how the Company is organized and managed and has identified the following segments: (1) the exploration, development, and production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil; (2) gathering and processing; (3) water handling and treatment; and (4) marketing and utilization of excess firm transportation capacity.

All of the Company's assets are located in the United States and substantially all of its production revenues are attributable to customers located in the United States; however, some of the Company's production revenues are attributable to customers who resell the Company's production to third parties located in foreign countries.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(j) Earnings per Common Share

Earnings per common share—basic for each period is computed by dividing net income attributable to Antero by the basic weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Earnings per common share—assuming dilution for each period is computed after giving consideration to the potential dilution from outstanding equity awards, calculated using the treasury stock method. The Company includes performance share unit awards in the calculation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding based on the number of common shares that would be issuable if the end of the period was also the end of the performance period required for the vesting of the awards. During periods in which the Company incurs a net loss, diluted weighted average shares outstanding are equal to basic weighted average shares outstanding because the effect of all equity awards is antidilutive. The following is a reconciliation of the Company's basic weighted average shares outstanding to diluted weighted average shares outstanding during the periods presented (in thousands):

		Three Months Ended June 30,		nded June 30,	
	2017	2018	2017	2018	
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding	315,401	316,992	315,179	316,733	
Add: Dilutive effect of restricted stock units	_	_	710	_	
Add: Dilutive effect of outstanding stock options	_	_	_	_	
Add: Dilutive effect of performance stock units			38		
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding	315,401	316,992	315,927	316,733	
Weighted average number of outstanding equity awards excluded from calculation of diluted earnings per common share(1):					
Restricted stock units	5,105	2,899	1,596	3,088	
Outstanding stock options	679	639	681	646	
Performance stock units	1,213	1,860	896	1,556	

⁽¹⁾ The potential dilutive effects of these awards were excluded from the computation of earnings per common share—assuming dilution because the inclusion of these awards would have been anti-dilutive.

(k) Adoption of New Accounting Principle

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2014-09, *Revenue from Contracts with Customers*, which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The ASU replaced most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it became effective and was incorporated into GAAP as Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 606. The new standard became effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The standard permits the use of either the full retrospective or modified retrospective transition method. The Company elected the modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this standard had no impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. See Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for the Company's disclosures under ASC 606.

(l) Recently Issued Accounting Standard

On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, *Leases*, which requires lessees to present nearly all leasing arrangements on the balance sheet as liabilities along with a corresponding right-of-use asset. The ASU will replace most existing lease guidance in GAAP when it becomes effective. The new standard becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2019. Although early application is permitted, the Company does not plan to early adopt the ASU. The standard requires the use of the modified retrospective transition method. The Company is evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Currently, the Company is evaluating the standard's applicability to its various contractual arrangements. The Company believes that adoption of the standard will result in increases to its assets and liabilities on its consolidated balance sheet as well as changes to the presentation of certain operating expenses on its consolidated statement of operations, including the accelerated recognition of expenses attributable to certain of is leasing arrangements. However, the Company has not yet determined the extent of the adjustments that will be required upon implementation of the standard. The Company continues to monitor relevant industry guidance regarding the implementation of ASU 2016-02 and will adjust its implementation strategies as necessary. The Company does not believe that adoption of the standard will impact its operational strategies, growth prospects, or cash flows.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(3) Antero Midstream Partners LP

In 2014, the Company formed Antero Midstream to own, operate, and develop midstream energy assets that service Antero's production. Antero Midstream's assets consist of gathering systems and facilities, water handling and treatment facilities, and interests in processing and fractionation plants, through which it provides services to Antero under long-term, fixed-fee contracts. AMGP indirectly owns the general partnership interest in Antero Midstream and directly owns capital interests in IDR LLC, which owns the incentive distribution rights in Antero Midstream. Antero Midstream is an unrestricted subsidiary as defined by Antero's senior secured revolving bank credit facility (the "Credit Facility"). As an unrestricted subsidiary, Antero Midstream and its subsidiaries are not guarantors of Antero's obligations, and Antero is not a guarantor of Antero Midstream's obligations (see Note 16).

In connection with Antero's contribution of its water handling and treatment assets to Antero Midstream in September 2015, Antero Midstream agreed to pay Antero (a) \$125 million in cash if Antero Midstream delivers 176,295,000 barrels or more of fresh water during the period between January 1, 2017 and December 31, 2019 and (b) an additional \$125 million in cash if Antero Midstream delivers 219,200,000 barrels or more of fresh water during the period between January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2020.

Antero Midstream has an Equity Distribution Agreement (the "Distribution Agreement") pursuant to which Antero Midstream may sell, from time to time through brokers acting as its sales agents, common units representing limited partner interests having an aggregate offering price of up to \$250 million. Sales of the common units are made by means of ordinary brokers' transactions on the New York Stock Exchange, at market prices, in block transactions, or as otherwise agreed to between Antero Midstream and the sales agents. Proceeds are used for general partnership purposes, which may include repayment of indebtedness and funding working capital or capital expenditures. Antero Midstream is under no obligation to offer and sell common units under the Distribution Agreement.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, Antero Midstream did not sell any common units under the Distribution Agreement. As of June 30, 2018, Antero Midstream had the capacity to issue additional common units under the Distribution Agreement up to an aggregate sales price of \$157.3 million.

On February 6, 2017, Antero Midstream formed a joint venture (the "Joint Venture") to develop processing assets in Appalachia with MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. ("MarkWest"), a wholly owned subsidiary of MPLX, L.P. (see note 5). In conjunction with the formation of the Joint Venture, on February 10, 2017, Antero Midstream issued 6,900,000 common units, including common units issued pursuant to the underwriters' option to purchase additional common units, generating net proceeds of approximately \$223 million. Antero Midstream used the net proceeds to fund the initial contribution to the Joint Venture, repay outstanding borrowings under its credit facility, and for general partnership purposes.

Antero owned approximately 52.9% of the limited partner interests of Antero Midstream at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018.

(4) Revenue

(a) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Product revenue

Our revenues are primarily derived from the sale of natural gas and oil production, as well as the sale of NGLs that are extracted from our natural gas. Sales of natural gas, NGLs, and oil are recognized when we satisfy a performance obligation by transferring control of a product to a customer. Payment is generally received in the month following the month that the sale occurred.

Under our natural gas sales contracts, we deliver natural gas to the purchaser at an agreed upon delivery point. Natural gas is transported from our wellheads to delivery points specified under sales contracts. To deliver natural gas to these points, Antero Midstream or third parties gather, compress, process and transport our natural gas. We maintain control of the natural gas during gathering, compression, processing, and transportation. Our sales contracts provide that we receive a specific index price adjusted for pricing differentials. We transfer control of the product at the delivery point and recognize revenue based on the contract price. The costs to gather, compress, process and transport the natural gas are recorded as Gathering, compression, processing and transportation expenses.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

NGLs, which are extracted from natural gas through processing, are either sold by us directly or by the processor under processing contracts. For NGLs sold by us directly, our sales contracts provide that we deliver the product to the purchaser at an agreed upon delivery point and that we receive a specific index price adjusted for pricing differentials. We transfer control of the product to the purchaser at the delivery point and recognize revenue based on the contract price. The costs to further process and transport NGLs are recorded as Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation expenses. For NGLs sold by the processor, our processing contracts provide that we transfer control to the processor at the tailgate of the processing plant and we recognize revenue based on the price received from the processor.

Under our oil sales contracts, we generally sell oil to the purchaser from storage tanks near the wellhead and collect a contractually agreed upon index price, net of pricing differentials. We transfer control of the product from the storage tanks to the purchaser and recognize revenue based on the contract price.

Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment revenue

Substantially all revenues from our gathering, compression, water handling and treatment operations are derived from intersegment transactions for services Antero Midstream provides to our exploration and production operations. The portion of such fees shown in our consolidated financial statements represent amounts charged to interest owners in Antero-operated wells, as well as fees charged to other third parties for water handling and treatment services provided by Antero Midstream or usage of Antero Midstream's gathering and compression systems. For gathering and compression revenue, Antero Midstream satisfies its performance obligations and recognizes revenue when low pressure volumes are delivered to a compressor station, high pressure volumes are delivered to a processing plant or transmission pipeline, and compression volumes are delivered to a high pressure line. Revenue is recognized based on the per Mcf gathering or compression fee charged by Antero Midstream in accordance with the gathering and compression agreement. For water handling and treatment revenue, Antero Midstream satisfies its performance obligations and recognizes revenue when the fresh water volumes have been delivered to the hydration unit of a specified well pad and the wastewater volumes have been delivered to its wastewater treatment facility. For services contracted through third party providers, Antero Midstream's performance obligation is satisfied when the service performed by the third party provider has been completed. Revenue is recognized based on the per barrel fresh water delivery or wastewater treatment fee charged by Antero Midstream in accordance with the water services agreement.

Marketing revenue

Marketing revenues are derived from activities to purchase and sell third-party natural gas and NGLs and to market excess firm transportation capacity to third parties. We retain control of the purchased natural gas and NGLs prior to delivery to the purchaser. The Company has concluded that we are the principal in these arrangements and therefore we recognize revenue on a gross basis, with costs to purchase and transport natural gas and NGLs presented as marketing expenses. Contracts to sell third party gas and NGLs are generally subject to similar terms as contracts to sell our produced natural gas and NGLs. We satisfy performance obligations to the purchaser by transferring control of the product at the delivery point and recognize revenue based on the price received from the purchaser.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(b) Disaggregation of Revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by type (in thousands). The table also identifies the reportable segment to which the disaggregated revenues relate. For more information on reportable segments, see Note 15—Reportable Segments.

	Th	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months En	Segment to which	
		2017 2018 2017		2017	2018	revenues relate
Revenues from contracts with						
customers:						
						Exploration and
Natural gas sales	\$	454,257	473,540	920,921	971,203	production
						Exploration and
Natural gas liquids sales (ethane)		21,404	32,687	39,873	59,762	production
Natural gas liquids sales (C3+						Exploration and
NGLs)		149,415	223,298	325,598	430,393	production
						Exploration and
Oil sales		26,512	38,873	53,472	69,146	production
Gathering and compression		2,324	4,263	4,863	8,408	Gathering and processing
						Water handling and
Water handling and treatment		868	1,255	933	2,045	treatment
Marketing		49,968	160,202	115,892	304,591	Marketing
Total		704,748	934,118	1,461,552	1,845,548	
Income from derivatives and other						
sources		85,641	55,226	524,416	171,897	
Total revenue and other	\$	790,389	989,344	1,985,968	2,017,445	

(c) Transaction Price Allocated to Remaining Performance Obligations

For our product sales that have a contract term greater than one year, we have utilized the practical expedient in ASC 606, which states that a company is not required to disclose the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations if the variable consideration is allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied performance obligation. Under our product sales contracts, each unit of product delivered to the customer represents a separate performance obligation; therefore, future volumes are wholly unsatisfied and disclosure of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations is not required. For our product sales that have a contract term of one year or less, we have utilized the practical expedient in ASC 606, which states that a company is not required to disclose the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations if the performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

(d) Contract Balances

Under our sales contracts, we invoice customers after our performance obligations have been satisfied, at which point payment is unconditional. Accordingly, our contracts do not give rise to contract assets or liabilities under ASC 606. At December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018, our receivables from contracts with customers were \$300 million and \$321 million, respectively.

(5) Equity Method Investments

In 2016, Antero Midstream acquired a 15% equity interest in Stonewall Gas Gathering LLC ("Stonewall"), which operates a regional gathering pipeline on which Antero is an anchor shipper.

On February 6, 2017, Antero Midstream formed the Joint Venture to develop gas processing and fractionation assets in Appalachia with MarkWest, a wholly owned subsidiary of MPLX. Antero Midstream and MarkWest each own a 50% equity interest in the Joint Venture and MarkWest operates the Joint Venture assets, which consist of processing plants in West Virginia, and a one-third interest in a MarkWest fractionator in Ohio.

The Company's consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) includes Antero Midstream's proportionate share of the net income of equity method investees. When Antero Midstream records its proportionate share of net income, it increases equity income in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and the carrying value of that investment on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. When a distribution is received, it is recorded as a reduction to the carrying value of that investment on the consolidated balance sheet. The Company uses the equity method of accounting to account for its investments in Stonewall and the Joint Venture because Antero Midstream exercises significant influence, but not control, over the entities. The Company's judgment regarding the level of influence over its equity investments includes considering key factors such as Antero Midstream's ownership interest, representation on the board of directors, and participation in the policy-making decisions of Stonewall and the Joint Venture.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

The following table is a reconciliation of investments in unconsolidated affiliates for the six months ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

		MarkWest	
	 Stonewall	Joint Venture	Total
Balance at December 31, 2017	\$ 67,128	236,174	303,302
Investments	_	56,297	56,297
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates	5,542	11,584	17,126
Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates	(4,590)	(13,305)	(17,895)
Balance at June 30, 2018	\$ 68,080	290,750	358,830

Investments in the Joint Venture during the six months ended June 30, 2018 relate to capital contributions for construction of additional processing facilities.

(6) Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018 consisted of the following items (in thousands):

	Decer	nber 31, 2017	June 30, 2018
Capital expenditures	\$	155,300	126,476
Gathering, compression, processing, and			
transportation expenses		88,850	95,441
Marketing expenses		59,049	81,179
Interest expense		40,861	42,399
Other		99,165	93,334
	\$	443,225	438,829

(7) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was as follows at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

	Dece	mber 31, 2017	June 30, 2018
Antero Resources:			
Credit Facility(a)	\$	185,000	455,000
5.375% senior notes due 2021(b)		1,000,000	1,000,000
5.125% senior notes due 2022(c)		1,100,000	1,100,000
5.625% senior notes due 2023(d)		750,000	750,000
5.00% senior notes due 2025(e)		600,000	600,000
Net unamortized premium		1,520	1,382
Net unamortized debt issuance costs		(32,430)	(29,604)
Antero Midstream:			
Midstream Credit Facility(g)		555,000	770,000
5.375% senior notes due 2024(h)		650,000	650,000
Net unamortized debt issuance costs		(9,000)	(8,434)
	\$	4,800,090	5,288,344

Antero Resources Corporation

(a) Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

Antero's Credit Facility is with a consortium of bank lenders. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are subject to borrowing base limitations based on the collateral value of Antero's assets and are subject to regular annual redeterminations. At June 30, 2018, the borrowing base under the Credit Facility was \$4.5 billion and lender commitments were \$2.5 billion. Each of these amounts were reaffirmed in the annual redetermination in April 2018. The next redetermination of the borrowing base is scheduled to occur in April

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

2019. The maturity date of the Credit Facility is the earlier of (i) October 26, 2022 and (ii) the date that is 91 days prior to the earliest stated redemption date of any series of Antero's senior notes, unless such series of notes is refinanced.

Under the Credit Facility, "Investment Grade Period" is a period that, as long as no event of default has occurred, commences when Antero elects to give notice to the Administrative Agent that Antero has received at least one of (i) a BBB- or better rating from Standard and Poor's and (ii) a Baa3 or better rating from Moody's (an "Investment Grade Rating"). An Investment Grade Period can end at Antero's election.

During any period that is not an Investment Grade Period, the Credit Facility is ratably secured by mortgages on substantially all of Antero's properties and guarantees from Antero's restricted subsidiaries, as applicable. During an Investment Grade Period, the liens securing the obligations under the Credit Facility shall be automatically released (subject to the provisions of the Credit Facility). The Credit Facility contains certain covenants, including restrictions on indebtedness and dividends, and requirements with respect to working capital and interest coverage ratios. During any period that is not an Investment Grade Period, interest is payable at a variable rate based on LIBOR or the prime rate determined by Antero's election at the time of borrowing, plus an applicable rate based on Antero's borrowing plus an avariable rate based on LIBOR or the prime rate determined by Antero's election at the time of borrowing, plus an applicable rate based on Antero's credit rating which ranges from 12.5 basis points to 175 basis points. Antero was in compliance with all of the financial covenants under the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018.

As of June 30, 2018, Antero had an outstanding balance under the Credit Facility of \$455 million, with a weighted average interest rate of 3.88%, and outstanding letters of credit of \$692 million. As of December 31, 2017, Antero had an outstanding balance under the Credit Facility of \$185 million, with a weighted average interest rate of 2.96%, and outstanding letters of credit of \$705 million. Commitment fees on the unused portion of the Credit Facility are due quarterly at rates ranging from (i) 0.300% to 0.375% (during any period that is not an Investment Grade Period) of the unused portion based on utilization and (ii) 0.150% to 0.300% (during an Investment Grade Period) of the unused portion based on Antero's credit rating.

(b) 5.375% Senior Notes Due 2021

On November 5, 2013, Antero issued \$1 billion of 5.375% senior notes due November 1, 2021 (the "2021 notes") at par. The 2021 notes are unsecured and effectively subordinated to the Credit Facility to the extent of the value of the collateral securing the Credit Facility. The 2021 notes rank pari passu to Antero's other outstanding senior notes. The 2021 notes are guaranteed on a full and unconditional and joint and several senior unsecured basis by Antero's whollyowned subsidiaries and certain of its future restricted subsidiaries. Interest on the 2021 notes is payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year. Antero may redeem all or part of the 2021 notes at any time at redemption prices ranging from 102.688% currently to 100.00% on or after November 1, 2019. If Antero undergoes a change of control, the holders of the 2021 notes will have the right to require Antero to repurchase all or a portion of the notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the 2021 notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

(c) 5.125% Senior Notes Due 2022

On May 6, 2014, Antero issued \$600 million of 5.125% senior notes due December 1, 2022 (the "2022 notes") at par. On September 18, 2014, Antero issued an additional \$500 million of the 2022 notes at 100.5% of par. The 2022 notes are unsecured and effectively subordinated to the Credit Facility to the extent of the value of the collateral securing the Credit Facility. The 2022 notes rank pari passu to Antero's other outstanding senior notes. The 2022 notes are guaranteed on a full and unconditional and joint and several senior unsecured basis by Antero's wholly-owned subsidiaries and certain of its future restricted subsidiaries. Interest on the 2022 notes is payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year. Antero may redeem all or part of the 2022 notes at any time at redemption prices ranging from 102.563% currently to 100.00% on or after June 1, 2020. If Antero undergoes a change of control, the holders of the 2022 notes will have the right to require Antero to repurchase all or a portion of the notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the 2022 notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

(d) 5.625% Senior Notes Due 2023

On March 17, 2015, Antero issued \$750 million of 5.625% senior notes due June 1, 2023 (the "2023 notes") at par. The 2023 notes are unsecured and effectively subordinated to the Credit Facility to the extent of the value of the collateral securing the Credit Facility. The 2023 notes rank pari passu to Antero's other outstanding senior notes. The 2023 notes are guaranteed on a full and unconditional and joint and several senior unsecured basis by Antero's whollyowned subsidiaries and certain of its future

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

restricted subsidiaries. Interest on the 2023 notes is payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year. Antero may redeem all or part of the 2023 notes at any time at redemption prices ranging from 104.219% to 100.00% on or after June 1, 2021. If Antero undergoes a change of control, the holders of the 2023 notes will have the right to require Antero to repurchase all or a portion of the notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the 2023 notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

(e) 5.00% Senior Notes Due 2025

On December 21, 2016, Antero issued \$600 million of 5.00% senior notes due March 1, 2025 (the "2025 notes") at par. The 2025 notes are unsecured and effectively subordinated to the Credit Facility to the extent of the value of the collateral securing the Credit Facility. The 2025 notes rank pari passu to Antero's other outstanding senior notes. The 2025 notes are guaranteed on a full and unconditional and joint and several senior unsecured basis by Antero's whollyowned subsidiaries and certain of its future restricted subsidiaries. Interest on the 2025 notes is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year. Antero may redeem all or part of the 2025 notes at any time on or after March 1, 2020 at redemption prices ranging from 103.750% on or after March 1, 2020 to 100.00% on or after March 1, 2023. In addition, on or before March 1, 2020, Antero may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2025 notes with the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings, if certain conditions are met, at a redemption price of 105.00% of the principal amount of the 2025 notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest. At any time prior to March 1, 2020, Antero may also redeem the 2025 notes, in whole or in part, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2025 notes plus a "make-whole" premium and accrued and unpaid interest. If Antero undergoes a change of control, the holders of the 2025 notes will have the right to require Antero to repurchase all or a portion of the notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the 2025 notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

(f) Treasury Management Facility

Antero has a stand-alone revolving note with a lender which provides for up to \$25 million of cash management obligations in order to facilitate Antero's daily treasury management. Borrowings under the revolving note are secured by the collateral for the Credit Facility. Borrowings under the revolving note bear interest at the lender's prime rate plus 1.0%. The note matures on June 1, 2019. At December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018, there were no outstanding borrowings under this note.

Antero Midstream Partners LP

(g) Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility - Antero Midstream

Antero Midstream has a secured revolving credit facility (the "Midstream Credit Facility") with a syndicate of bank lenders. At June 30, 2018, lender commitments under the Midstream Credit Facility were \$1.5 billion. The maturity date of the Midstream Credit Facility is October 26, 2022.

During any period that is not an Investment Grade Period (as such term is defined in the Midstream Credit Facility), the Midstream Credit Facility is ratably secured by mortgages on substantially all of the properties of Antero Midstream and guarantees from its restricted subsidiaries, as applicable. During an Investment Grade Period under the Midstream Credit Facility, the liens securing the Midstream Credit Facility are automatically released (subject to the provisions of the Midstream Credit Facility). The Midstream Credit Facility contains certain covenants, including restrictions on indebtedness and certain distributions to owners, and requirements with respect to leverage and interest coverage ratios. During any period that is not an Investment Grade Period under the Midstream Credit Facility, interest is payable at a variable rate based on LIBOR or the prime rate determined by Antero Midstream's election at the time of borrowing, plus an applicable rate based on Antero Midstream Grade Period under the Midstream Credit Facility, interest is payable at a variable rate based on LIBOR or the prime rate determined by Antero Midstream's election at the time of borrowing, plus an applicable rate based on Antero Midstream's credit rating which ranges from 12.5 basis points to 200 basis points. Antero Midstream was in compliance with all of the financial covenants under the Midstream Credit Facility as of December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018.

As of June 30, 2018, Antero Midstream had an outstanding balance under the Midstream Credit Facility of \$770 million with a weighted average interest rate of 3.34%, and no letters of credit outstanding. As of December 31, 2017, Antero Midstream had an outstanding balance under the Midstream Credit Facility of \$555 million with a weighted average interest rate of 2.81%. Commitment fees on the unused portion of the Midstream Credit Facility are due quarterly at rates ranging from (i) 0.25% to 0.375% of the unused portion (during an period that is not an Investment Grade Period) based on the leverage ratio and (ii) 0.175% to 0.375% of the unused portion (during an Investment Grade Period) based on Antero Midstream's credit rating.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(h) 5.375% Senior Notes Due 2024 – Antero Midstream

On September 13, 2016, Antero Midstream and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Antero Midstream Finance Corporation ("Midstream Finance Corp.") as co-issuers, issued \$650 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.375% senior notes due September 15, 2024 (the "2024 Midstream notes") at par. The 2024 Midstream notes are unsecured and effectively subordinated to the Midstream Credit Facility to the extent of the value of the collateral securing the Midstream Credit Facility. The 2024 Midstream notes are guaranteed on a full and unconditional and joint and several senior unsecured basis by Antero Midstream's wholly-owned subsidiaries, excluding Midstream Finance Corp., and certain of Antero Midstream's future restricted subsidiaries. Interest on the 2024 Midstream notes is payable on March 15 and September 15 of each year. Antero Midstream may redeem all or part of the 2024 Midstream notes at any time on or after September 15, 2019 at redemption prices ranging from 104.031% on or after September 15, 2019 to 100.00% on or after September 15, 2022. In addition, prior to September 15, 2019, Antero Midstream may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2024 Midstream notes with an amount of cash not greater than the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings, if certain conditions are met, at a redemption price of 105.375% of the principal amount of the 2024 Midstream notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest. At any time prior to September 15, 2019, Antero Midstream may also redeem the 2024 Midstream notes, in whole or in part, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2024 Midstream notes plus a "make-whole" premium and accrued and unpaid interest. If Antero Midstream undergoes a change of control, the holders of the 2024 Midstream notes will have the right to require Antero Midstream to repurchase all or a portion of the notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the 2024 Midstream notes, plus accrued and unpaid

(8) Asset Retirement Obligations

The following is a reconciliation of the Company's asset retirement obligations for the six months ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

Asset retirement obligations—December 31, 2017	\$ 34,610
Obligations incurred	4,241
Accretion expense	1,390
Asset retirement obligations—June 30, 2018	\$ 40,241

Asset retirement obligations are included in other liabilities on the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets.

(9) Equity-Based Compensation

Antero is authorized to grant up to 16,906,500 shares of common stock to employees and directors of the Company under the Antero Resources Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "Plan"). The Plan allows equity-based compensation awards to be granted in a variety of forms, including stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, dividend equivalent awards, and other types of awards. The terms and conditions of the awards granted are established by the Compensation Committee of Antero's Board of Directors. A total of 7,656,177 shares were available for future grant under the Plan as of June 30, 2018.

Antero Midstream's general partner is authorized to grant up to 10,000,000 common units representing limited partner interests in Antero Midstream under the Antero Midstream Partners LP Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "Midstream Plan") to non-employee directors of its general partner and certain officers, employees, and consultants of Antero Midstream and its affiliates (which include Antero). A total of 7,729,437 common units were available for future grant under the Midstream Plan as of June 30, 2018.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

The Company's equity-based compensation expense, by type of award, was as follows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (in thousands):

	Three Mont June		Six Months Ended June 30,		
	2017	2018	2017	2018	
Restricted stock unit awards	\$ 18,681	10,231	36,906	23,675	
Stock options	616	495	1,236	976	
Performance share unit awards	2,748	3,490	4,883	6,001	
Antero Midstream phantom unit awards	4,443	4,341	8,486	8,559	
Equity awards issued to directors	487	514	967	1,016	
Total expense	\$ 26,975	19,071	52,478	40,227	

Restricted Stock Unit Awards

Restricted stock unit awards vest subject to the satisfaction of service requirements. Expense related to each restricted stock unit award is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the entire award. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur by reversing the expense previously recognized for awards that were forfeited during the period. The grant date fair values of these awards are determined based on the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of the grant.

A summary of restricted stock unit awards activity for the six months ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

	Number of shares	a gr:	Weighted average grant date fair value		ggregate insic value thousands)
Total awarded and unvested—December 31, 2017	3,424,084	\$	28.51	\$	65,058
Granted	605,057	\$	20.63		
Vested	(927,639)	\$	39.65		
Forfeited	(267,890)	\$	25.75		
Total awarded and unvested—June 30, 2018	2,833,612	\$	23.44	\$	60,498

Intrinsic values are based on the closing price of the Company's stock on the referenced dates. As of June 30, 2018, there was \$48.2 million of unamortized equity-based compensation expense related to unvested restricted stock units. That expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2.1 years.

Stock Options

Stock options granted under the Plan have a maximum contractual life of 10 years. Expense related to stock options is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the entire award. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur by reversing the expense previously recognized for awards that were forfeited during the period. Stock options were granted with an exercise price equal to or greater than the market price of the Company's common stock on the dates of grant.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

A summary of stock option activity for the six months ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

	Stock options	Weighted average exercise price		ge remaining ise contractual		rinsic alue ousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2017	660,512	\$	50.48	7.06	\$	_
Granted	_	\$	_			
Exercised	_	\$	_			
Forfeited	(24,293)	\$	50.00			
Expired		\$	_			
Outstanding at June 30, 2018	636,219	\$	50.50	6.40	\$	
Vested or expected to vest as of June 30, 2018	636,219	\$	50.50	6.40	\$	
Exercisable at June 30, 2018	502,589	\$	50.63	6.30	\$	_

Intrinsic values are based on the exercise price of the options and the closing price of the Company's stock on the referenced dates. As of June 30, 2018, there was \$1.6 million of unamortized equity-based compensation expense related to unvested stock options. That expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 0.8 years.

Performance Share Unit Awards

Performance Share Unit Awards Based on Price Targets

In 2016, the Company granted performance share unit awards ("PSUs") to certain of its executive officers that are based on price targets. The vesting of these PSUs is conditioned on the closing price of the Company's common stock achieving specific price thresholds over 10-day periods, subject to the following vesting restrictions: no PSUs may vest before the first anniversary of the grant date; no more than one-third of the PSUs may vest before the second anniversary of the grant date; and no more than two-thirds of the PSUs may vest before the third anniversary of the grant date. Any PSUs which have not vested by the fifth anniversary of the grant date will expire. Expense related to these PSUs is recognized on a graded basis over three years.

Performance Share Unit Awards Based on Total Shareholder Return ("TSR")

In 2016 and 2017, the Company granted PSUs to certain of its employees and executive officers that vest based on the TSR of the Company's common stock relative to the TSR of a peer group of companies over a three-year performance period. The number of common shares which may ultimately be earned ranges from zero to 200% of the PSUs granted. Expense related to these PSUs is recognized on a straight-line basis over three years.

Performance Share Unit Awards Based on TSR and Return on Capital Employed ("ROCE")

In 2018, the Company granted PSUs to certain of its employees and executive officers, a portion of which vest based on the Company's common stock reaching a target price per share equal to 125% of the beginning price (as defined in the award agreement) at the end of a three-year performance period ("TSR PSUs"). The number of awards actually earned with respect to the TSR PSUs will be subject to further adjustment based on the TSR of the Company's common stock relative to the TSR of a peer group of companies over the same period. The number of shares of common stock that may ultimately be earned with respect to the TSR PSUs ranges from zero to 200% of the target number of TSR PSUs originally granted. Expense related to the TSR PSUs is recognized on a straight-line basis over three years.

The other portion of the PSUs granted in 2018 vest based on the Company's actual ROCE (as defined in the award agreement) over a three-year period as compared to a targeted ROCE ("ROCE PSUs"). The number of shares of common stock that may ultimately be earned with respect to the ROCE PSUs ranges from zero to 200% of the target number of ROCE PSUs originally granted. Expense related to the ROCE PSUs is recognized based on the number of shares of common stock that are expected to be issued at the end of the measurement period, and is reversed if the likelihood of achieving the performance condition decreases.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Summary Information for Performance Share Unit Awards

A summary of PSU activity for the six months ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

	Number of units	av gra	eighted verage ant date ir value
Total awarded and unvested—December 31, 2017	1,283,843	\$	28.29
Granted	756,466	\$	23.61
Vested	(41,666)	\$	27.38
Forfeited	(27,166)	\$	30.15
Total awarded and unvested—June 30, 2018	1,971,477	\$	26.49

The grant-date fair values of market-based PSUs were determined using Monte Carlo simulations, which use a probabilistic approach for estimating the fair values of the awards. Expected volatilities were derived from the volatility of the historical stock prices of a peer group of similar publicly-traded companies. The risk-free interest rate was determined using the yield available for zero-coupon U.S. government issues with remaining terms corresponding to the service periods of the PSUs. A dividend yield of zero was assumed. The grant-date fair value for the ROCE-based PSUs is based on the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of the grant, assuming the achievement of the performance condition.

The following table presents information regarding the weighted average fair values for market-based PSUs granted during the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, and the assumptions used to determine the fair values:

	Si	Six months ended June 30,				
		2017		2018		
Dividend yield		<u> </u>		<u> </u>		
Volatility		42 %		41 %		
Risk-free interest rate		1.40 %		2.49 %		
Weighted average fair value of awards granted	\$	26.21	\$	24.85		

As of June 30, 2018, there was \$29.0 million of unamortized equity-based compensation expense related to unvested PSUs. That expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2.2 years.

Antero Midstream Partners Phantom Unit Awards

Phantom units granted by Antero Midstream vest subject to the satisfaction of service requirements, upon the completion of which common units in Antero Midstream are delivered to the holder of the phantom units. Phantom units also contain distribution equivalent rights which entitle the holder of vested common units to receive a "catch up" payment equal to common unit distributions paid by Antero Midstream during the vesting period of the phantom unit award. These phantom units are treated, for accounting purposes, as if Antero Midstream distributed the units to Antero. Antero recognizes compensation expense as the units are granted to its employees, and a portion of the expense is allocated to Antero Midstream. Expense related to each phantom unit award is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the entire award. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur by reversing the expense previously recognized for awards that were forfeited during the period. The grant date fair values of these awards are determined based on the closing price of Antero Midstream's common units on the date of grant.

A summary of phantom unit awards activity for the six months ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

	Number of units	a gr	eighted verage ant date ir value	Aggregate intrinsic value (in thousands		
Total awarded and unvested—December 31, 2017	1,042,963	\$	28.69	\$	30,288	
Granted	233,189	\$	25.35			
Vested	(148,554)	\$	27.31			
Forfeited	(54,669)	\$	28.87			
Total awarded and unvested—June 30, 2018	1,072,929	\$	28.15	\$	31,673	

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Intrinsic values are based on the closing price of Antero Midstream's common units on the referenced dates. As of June 30, 2018, there was \$20.8 million of unamortized equity-based compensation expense related to unvested phantom unit awards. That expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2.4 years.

(10) Financial Instruments

The carrying values of accounts receivable and accounts payable at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018 approximated market values because of their short-term nature. The carrying values of the amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility and Midstream Credit Facility at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018 approximated fair value because the variable interest rates are reflective of current market conditions.

Based on Level 2 market data inputs, the fair value of Antero's senior notes was approximately \$3.5 billion at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018. Based on Level 2 market data inputs, the fair value of Antero Midstream's senior notes was approximately \$670 million at December 31, 2017 and \$655 million at June 30, 2018.

See Note 11 for information regarding the fair value of derivative financial instruments.

(11) Derivative Instruments

(a) Commodity Derivative Positions

The Company periodically enters into natural gas, NGLs, and oil derivative contracts with counterparties to hedge the price risk associated with its production. These derivatives are not entered into for trading purposes. To the extent that changes occur in the market prices of natural gas, NGLs, and oil, the Company is exposed to market risk on these open contracts. This market risk exposure is generally offset by the change in market prices of natural gas, NGLs, and oil recognized upon the ultimate sale of the Company's production.

The Company was party to various fixed price commodity swap contracts that settled during the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018. The Company enters into these swap contracts when management believes that favorable future sales prices for the Company's production can be secured. Under these swap agreements, when actual commodity prices upon settlement exceed the fixed price provided by the swap contracts, the Company pays the difference to the counterparty. When actual commodity prices upon settlement are less than the contractually provided fixed price, the Company receives the difference from the counterparty.

The Company's derivative swap contracts have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes; therefore, all gains and losses are recognized in the Company's statements of operations.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

As of June 30, 2018, the Company's fixed price natural gas, NGLs, and oil swap positions from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2023 were as follows (abbreviations in the table refer to the index to which the swap position is tied, as follows: NYMEX=Henry Hub; Mont Belvieu-Propane=Mont Belvieu Propane; NYMEX-WTI=West Texas Intermediate):

	Natural gas MMbtu/day	Oil Bbls/day	Natural Gas Liquids Bbls/day	Veighted average index price
Three months ending September 30,				
2018:				
NYMEX (\$/MMBtu)	2,002,500			\$ 3.45
NYMEX-WTI (\$/Bbl)	_	6,000	_	\$ 56.99
Mont Belvieu-Propane (\$/Gallon)			26,000	\$ 0.76
Total	2,002,500	6,000	26,000	
Three months ending December 31, 2018:				
NYMEX (\$/MMBtu)	2,002,500	_	_	\$ 3.53
NYMEX-WTI (\$/Bbl)	_	6,000	_	\$ 56.99
Mont Belvieu-Propane (\$/Gallon)	_	_	26,000	\$ 0.77
Total	2,002,500	6,000	26,000	
Year ending December 31, 2019:				
NYMEX (\$/MMBtu)	2,330,000			\$ 3.50
Year ending December 31, 2020:				
NYMEX (\$/MMBtu)	1,417,500			\$ 3.25
Year ending December 31, 2021:				
NYMEX (\$/MMBtu)	710,000			\$ 3.00
Year ending December 31, 2022:				
NYMEX (\$/MMBtu)	850,000			\$ 3.00
Year ending December 31, 2023:				
NYMEX (\$/MMBtu)	90,000			\$ 2.91

(b) Marketing Derivatives

In 2017, due to delay of the in-service date for a pipeline on which the Company is to be an anchor shipper, the Company realized it would not be able to fulfill its delivery obligations under a natural gas sales contract commencing in January 2018 until late 2018. In order to acquire gas to fulfill its delivery obligations, the Company entered into several natural gas purchase agreements with index-based pricing to purchase gas for resale under this sales contract. Subsequently, the Company and the counterparty to the sales contract came to an agreement that the Company's delivery obligations under the contract would not begin until the earlier of (1) the in-service date of the pipeline and (2) January 1, 2019. Consequently, in December 2017, the Company entered into natural gas sales agreements with index-based pricing to resell the purchased gas for delivery during the period from February to October 2018. The natural gas that it had purchased for January was sold on the spot market during January. As a result of severe cold weather in the local area in January resulting in wide basis premiums at the index for these contracts, the Company realized a cash gain on these contracts of \$94.2 million during the six months ended June 30, 2018.

The Company determined that these gas purchase and sales agreements should be accounted for as derivatives and measured at fair value at the end of each period. The Company recognized a loss in the fourth quarter of 2017 of \$21.4 million. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company recognized a net gain (loss) of (\$0.1) and \$94.1 million, respectively. The estimated fair value of these contracts of \$21.4 million at June 30, 2018 is included in current Derivative liabilities on the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheet, and will be recognized as cash settled losses in future periods through October 2018.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(c) Summary

The following table presents a summary of the fair values of the Company's derivative instruments and where such values are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018. None of the Company's derivative instruments are designated as hedges for accounting purposes.

	December 3	31, 2017	June 30,	2018
	Balance sheet location	Fair value (In thousands)	Balance sheet location	Fair value (In thousands)
Asset derivatives not designated as hedges for accounting purposes:		(in thousands)		(III tilousulus)
Commodity derivatives - current	Derivative instruments Derivative	\$ 460,685	Derivative instruments Derivative	\$ 420,842
Commodity derivatives - noncurrent	instruments	841,257	instruments	763,592
Total asset derivatives		1,301,942		1,184,434
Liability derivatives not designated as hedges for accounting purposes:				
Marketing derivatives - current	Derivative instruments	21,394	Derivative instruments	21,428
Commodity derivatives - current	Derivative instruments	7,082	Derivative instruments	9,233
Commodity derivatives - noncurrent	Derivative instruments	207	Derivative instruments	
Total liability derivatives		28,683		30,661
Net derivatives		\$ 1,273,259		\$ 1,153,773

The following table presents the gross values of recognized derivative assets and liabilities, the amounts offset under master netting arrangements with counterparties, and the resulting net amounts presented in the consolidated balance sheets as of the dates presented, all at fair value (in thousands):

	Dec	ember 31, 20	17		June 30, 2018	
	Gross amounts on balance sheet	Gross amounts offset on balance sheet	Net amounts of assets on balance sheet	Gross amounts on balance sheet	Gross amounts offset on balance sheet	Net amounts of assets (liabilities) on balance sheet
Commodity derivative assets	\$1,367,554	(65,612)	1,301,942	\$1,242,069	(57,635)	1,184,434
Commodity derivative liabilities	\$ (72,901)	65,612	(7,289)	\$ (66,868)	57,635	(9,233)
Marketing derivative assets	\$ 311,083	(311,083)	_	\$ —	_	_
Marketing derivative liabilities	\$ (332,477)	311,083	(21,394)	\$ (21,428)	_	(21,428)

The following is a summary of derivative fair value gains and losses and where such values are recorded in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (in thousands):

	operations	June 30,			months end	ed June 30,	
	location	2017	2018		2017	2018	
Commodity derivative fair value gains	Revenue	\$ 85,641	55,336	\$	524,416	77,773	
Marketing derivative fair value gains	_						
(losses)	Revenue	\$ _	(110)	\$	_	94,124	

The fair value of derivative instruments was determined using Level 2 inputs.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(12) Commitments

The table below is a schedule of future minimum payments for firm transportation, drilling rig and completion services, processing, gathering and compression, and office and equipment agreements, as well as leases that have remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2018 (in millions).

(in millions)	trai	Firm usportation (a)	Processing, gathering and compression (b)	Drilling rigs and completion services (c)	Office and equipment (d)	Total
Remainder of 2018	\$	440	241	37	7	725
2019		1,087	360	45	11	1,503
2020		1,107	378	1	10	1,496
2021		1,087	363	_	9	1,459
2022		1,034	359	_	8	1,401
2023		1,022	351	_	7	1,380
Thereafter		8,611	1,521	_	49	10,181
Total	\$	14,388	3,573	83	101	18,145

(a) Firm Transportation

The Company has entered into firm transportation agreements with various pipelines in order to facilitate the delivery of its production to market. These contracts commit the Company to transport minimum daily natural gas or NGLs volumes at negotiated rates, or pay for any deficiencies at specified reservation fee rates. The amounts in this table are based on the Company's minimum daily volumes at the reservation fee rate. The values in the table represent the gross amounts that the Company is committed to pay; however, the Company will record in the consolidated financial statements its proportionate share of costs based on its working interest.

(b) Processing, Gathering, and Compression Service Commitments

The Company has entered into various long-term gas processing agreements for certain of its production that will allow it to realize the value of its NGLs. The minimum payment obligations under the agreements are presented in the table.

The Company has various gathering and compression service agreements with third parties that provide for payments based on volumes gathered or compressed. The minimum payment obligations under these agreements are presented in the table.

The values in the table represent the gross amounts that the Company is committed to pay; however, the Company will record in the consolidated financial statements its proportionate share of costs based on its working interest. The values in the table also include minimum processing fees to be paid to the Joint Venture owned by Antero Midstream and MarkWest, and Antero Midstream's commitments for the construction of its advanced wastewater treatment facility, which was placed in service in May 2018. The wastewater treatment facility was temporarily taken offline in June 2018 for maintenance and to install additional pretreatment facilities to improve operations. The facility was placed back into commercial service at the end of July 2018. The table does not include intracompany commitments. Future capital contributions to unconsolidated affiliates are excluded from the table as neither the amounts nor the timing of the obligations can be determined in advance.

(c) Drilling Rigs and Completion Services Commitments

The Company has obligations under agreements with service providers to procure drilling rigs and completion services. The values in the table represent the gross amounts that the Company is committed to pay; however, the Company will record in the consolidated financial statements its proportionate share of costs based on its working interest.

(d) Office and Equipment Leases

The Company leases various office space and equipment under capital and operating lease arrangements.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

(13) Contingencies

SJGC

The Company is the plaintiff in two lawsuits against South Jersey Gas Company and South Jersey Resources Group, LLC (collectively, "SJGC") pending in United States District Court in Colorado. In March 2015, the Company filed suit against SJGC seeking relief for breach of contract and damages in the amounts that SJGC had short paid, and continued to short pay, the Company in connection with two nearly identical long term gas contracts. Under those contracts, SJGC are long term purchasers of 80,000 MMBtu/day of the Company's natural gas production. Deliveries under the contracts began in October 2011 and the term of the contracts continues through October 2019. The price for gas was based on specified indices in the contracts. Beginning in October 2014, SJGC began short paying the Company based on price indices unilaterally selected by SJGC and not the applicable index specified in the contracts. SJGC claimed that the index price specified in the contracts, and the index at which SJGC paid for deliveries from 2011 through September 2014, was no longer appropriate under the contracts because a market disruption event (as defined by the contract) had occurred and, as a result, a new index price was required to be determined by the parties. The Company rejected SJGC's contention that a market disruption event occurred. SJGC's actions constituted a breach of the contracts by failing to pay the Company based on the express price terms of the contracts and paying the Company based on unilaterally selected price indices in violation of the contracts' remedial provisions. On May 8, 2017, a jury in the United States District Court in Colorado returned a unanimous verdict finding in favor of Antero's positions in the lawsuit against SJGC. On July 21, 2017, final judgment on the jury's unanimous verdict was entered by the court. On August 18, 2017, SJGC filed post-judgment motions with the court. On March 23, 2018, the court denied SJGC's post-judgment motions. On April 20, 2018, SJGC appealed the final judgment to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit and the appeal remains pending.

Subsequent to the entry of judgment, SJGC has continued to short pay the Company on the basis of unilaterally selected price indices and not the index specified in the contract. Accordingly, on December 21, 2017, Antero filed suit against SJGC to recover for its damages since March of 2017. The second lawsuit remains pending.

Through June 30, 2018, the Company estimates that it is owed approximately \$79 million (gross damages, including interest) more than SJGC has paid using the indices unilaterally selected by them. Substantially all of this amount has not been accrued in the Company's financial statements. The Company will vigorously seek recovery from SJGC of all underpayments and damages, including interest, based on the contracted price.

WGL

The Company and Washington Gas Light Company and WGL Midstream, Inc. (collectively, "WGL") were involved in a pricing dispute involving firm gas sales contracts executed June 20, 2014 (the "Contracts") that the Company began delivering gas under in January 2016. From January 2016 through July 2017 and from December 2017 through January 2018, the aggregate daily gas volumes contracted for under the Contracts was 500,000 MMBtu/day, with the aggregate daily contracted volumes having increased to 600,000 MMBtu/day from August through November 2017. The Company invoiced WGL based on the natural gas index price specified in the Contracts and WGL paid the Company based on that invoice price. However, WGL asserted that the index price was no longer appropriate under the Contracts and claimed that an undefined alternative index was more appropriate for the delivery point of the gas. In July 2016, the matter was referred to arbitration by the Colorado district court. In January 2017, the arbitration panel ruled in the Company's favor. As a result, the index price has remained as specified in the Contracts and there will be no adjustments to the invoices that have been paid by WGL, nor will future invoices to WGL be adjusted based on the same claim rejected by the arbitration panel. The arbitration panel's award was confirmed by the Colorado district court on April 14, 2017.

In March of 2017, WGL filed a second legal proceeding against the Company in Colorado district court alleging breach of contract and seeking damages of more than \$30 million. In this lawsuit, WGL claimed that the Company breached its contractual obligations under the Contracts by failing to deliver "TCO pool" gas. In subsequent filings, WGL explained that its claims were based on an alleged obligation that the Company must deliver gas to the Columbia IPP Pool ("IPP Pool"). WGL asserted this exact same issue in the arbitration and it was rejected by the arbitration panel. The arbitration panel specifically found that the Delivery Point under the Contracts was at a specific point in Braxton, West Virginia, not the IPP Pool. On August 24, 2017, the Colorado district court dismissed with prejudice WGL's claims against the Company in its new lawsuit and found that the Company had not breached its Contracts with WGL by allegedly failing to deliver to the IPP Pool. The Court also reaffirmed the arbitration panel's finding that

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

the delivery point under the Contracts was not the IPP Pool. WGL has appealed this decision to the Colorado Court of Appeals and the appeal remains pending.

The Company is also actively engaged in pursuing cover damages against WGL based on WGL's failure to take receipt of all of the agreed quantities of gas required under the Contracts. WGL's failure to take the gas volumes specified in the Contracts is directly related to WGL's lack of primary firm transportation rights at the Delivery Point. The failures by WGL to take the full contracted volumes gas began in April 2017 and continued each month through December 2017 in varying quantities. In defense of its conduct, WGL has asserted to the Company that their failure to receive gas is excused by (1) the Company's failure to deliver gas to the IPP Pool or (2) alleged instances of Force Majeure under the Contracts. However, as stated above, the alleged obligation that the Company must deliver gas to the IPP Pool was rejected by the arbitration panel and the Colorado district court. Further, the Contracts expressly prohibit a Force Majeure claim in circumstances in which the gas purchaser does not have primary firm transportation agreements in place to transport the purchased gas. In each instance that WGL has failed to receive the quantity of gas required under the Contracts, the Company has resold the quantities not taken and invoiced WGL for cover damages pursuant to the terms of the Contracts. WGL has refused to pay for the invoiced cover damages as required by the Contracts and has also short paid the Company for, among other things, certain amounts of gas received by WGL. Through June 30, 2018, these damages amounted to approximately \$106 million (gross damages, including interest). This amount has not been accrued in the Company's financial statements. The Company is currently pursuing its cover damages in a lawsuit filed in Colorado district court on October 24, 2017. The Company will continue to vigorously seek recovery of its cover damages and other unpaid amounts, including interest, as part of its claims against WGL.

Effective February 1, 2018, as a result of a recent amendment to its firm gas sales contract with WGL Midstream, Inc. that was executed on December 28, 2017, the total aggregate volumes to be delivered to WGL at the delivery point in Braxton, West Virginia were reduced from 500,000 MMBtu/day to 200,000 MMBtu/day. Upon both (1) the in service of the Dominion Cove Point LNG facility and (2) the earlier of in service of the WB East expansion and January 1, 2019, the aggregate contract volumes to be delivered to WGL will increase by 330,000 MMBtu/day. This increase will be in effect for the remaining term of our gas sale contract with WGL Midstream, which expires in 2038, and these increased volumes will be subject to NYMEX-based pricing. Following the increase of 330,000 MMBtu/day, the aggregate contract volumes to be delivered to WGL will total 530,000 MMBtu/day.

Other

The Company is party to various other legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of its business. The Company believes that certain of these matters will be covered by insurance and that the outcome of other matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

(14) Related Parties

Certain of the Company's shareholders, including members of its executive management group, own a significant interest in the Company and, either through their representatives or directly, serve as members of the Board of Directors of Antero and the Boards of Directors of the general partners of Antero Midstream and AMGP. These same groups or individuals own limited partner interests in Antero Midstream and common shares and other interests in AMGP, which indirectly owns the incentive distribution rights in Antero Midstream. Antero's executive management group also manages the operations and business affairs of Antero Midstream and AMGP.

Antero Midstream's operations comprise substantially all of the operations of our gathering and processing segment and our water handling and treatment segment. Substantially all of the revenues for those segments in the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 were derived from transactions with Antero. See Note 15 for the operating results of the Company's reportable segments.

(15) Segment Information

See Note 2(i) for a description of the Company's determination of its reportable segments. Revenues from gathering and processing and water handling and treatment operations are primarily derived from intersegment transactions for services provided to the Company's exploration and production operations. Marketing revenues are primarily derived from activities to purchase and sell third-party natural gas and NGLs and to market excess firm transportation capacity to third parties.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Operating segments are evaluated based on their contribution to consolidated results, which is primarily determined by the respective operating income of each segment. General and administrative expenses are allocated to the gathering and processing and water handling and treatment segments based on the nature of the expenses and on a combination of the segments' proportionate share of the Company's consolidated property and equipment, capital expenditures, and labor costs, as applicable. General and administrative expenses related to the marketing segment are not allocated because they are immaterial. Other income, income taxes, and interest expense are primarily managed and evaluated on a consolidated basis. Intersegment sales are transacted at prices which approximate market. Accounting policies for each segment are the same as the Company's accounting policies described in Note 2 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

The operating results and assets of the Company's reportable segments were as follows for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (in thousands):

		xploration and roduction	Gathering and processing	Water handling and treatment	Marketing	Elimination of intersegment transactions	Consolidated total
Three months ended June 30, 2017:							
Sales and revenues:							
Third-party	\$	737,229	2,324	868	49,968	_	790,389
Intersegment		3,911	96,438	94,137		(194,486)	
Total	\$	741,140	98,762	95,005	49,968	(194,486)	790,389
Operating expenses:							
Lease operating	\$	17,189	_	41,444	_	(41,641)	16,992
Gathering, compression, processing,							
and transportation		353,216	9,910	_	_	(96,379)	266,747
Impairment of unproved properties		15,199	_	_	_		15,199
Depletion, depreciation, and							
amortization		170,446	22,494	8,242	_	_	201,182
General and administrative		49,531	10,705	4,084	_	(221)	64,099
Other		24,052	12	4,532	77,421	(3,590)	102,427
Total		629,633	43,121	58,302	77,421	(141,831)	666,646
Operating income (loss)	\$	111,507	55,641	36,703	(27,453)	(52,655)	123,743
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated							
affiliates	\$	_	3,623	_	_	_	3,623
Segment assets	\$1	3,430,135	2,065,899	711,735	14,357	(779,905)	15,442,221
Capital expenditures for segment assets	\$	583,687	88,806	58,497	_	(51,342)	679,648

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

		xploration and roduction	Gathering and processing	Water handling and treatment	Marketing	Elimination of intersegment transactions	Consolidated total
Three months ended June 30, 2018:							
Sales and revenues:							
Third-party	\$	823,734	4,263	1,255	160,092	_	989,344
Intersegment		5,179	114,456	131,001		(250,636)	
Total	\$	828,913	118,719	132,256	160,092	(250,636)	989,344
Operating expenses:							
Lease operating	\$	32,312	_	62,218	_	(64,366)	30,164
Gathering, compression, processing,							
and transportation		409,708	12,400	_	_	(114,322)	307,786
Impairment of unproved properties		134,437	_	_	_	_	134,437
Impairment of gathering systems and							
facilities		_	8,501	_	_	_	8,501
Depletion, depreciation, and							
amortization		201,393	24,482	12,175	_		238,050
General and administrative		46,662	11,995	3,499	_	(469)	61,687
Other		27,023	4	4,982	213,420	(3,947)	241,482
Total		851,535	57,382	82,874	213,420	(183,104)	1,022,107
Operating income (loss)	\$	(22,622)	61,337	49,382	(53,328)	(67,532)	(32,763)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated		<u> </u>					
affiliates	\$	_	9,264	_	_	_	9,264
Segment assets	\$1	3,381,044	2,299,863	993,238	61,684	(1,045,222)	15,690,607
Capital expenditures for segment assets	\$	506,055	113,083	17,842	_	(73,919)	563,061

The operating results and assets of the Company's reportable segments were as follows for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (in thousands):

	Exploration and	Gathering and	Water handling and	Maulyatina	Elimination of intersegment transactions	Consolidated
Six months ended June 30, 2017:	production	processing	treatment	Marketing	transactions	<u>total</u>
Sales and revenues:						
Third-party	\$ 1,864,280	4,863	933	115,892	_	1,985,968
Intersegment	8,351	185,558	177,182	_	(371,091)	_
Total	\$ 1,872,631	190,421	178,115	115,892	(371,091)	1,985,968
20.00						
Operating expenses:						
Lease operating	\$ 32,931	_	80,066	_	(80,454)	32,543
Gathering, compression,						
processing, and transportation	700,984	18,024	_	_	(185,432)	533,576
Impairment of unproved properties	42,098	_	_	_	_	42,098
Depletion, depreciation, and						
amortization	345,415	42,418	16,078	_	_	403,911
General and administrative	100,587	20,843	8,403	_	(1,036)	128,797
Other	50,771	12	8,876	167,414	(7,116)	219,957
Total	1,272,786	81,297	113,423	167,414	(274,038)	1,360,882
Operating income (loss)	\$ 599,845	109,124	64,692	(51,522)	(97,053)	625,086
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated						
affiliates	\$ —	5,854	_		_	5,854
Segment assets	\$13,430,135	2,065,899	711,735	14,357	(779,905)	15,442,221
Capital expenditures for segment						
assets	\$ 1,041,426	155,365	95,451	_	(96,360)	1,195,882

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

	Exploration	Gathering	Water handling		Elimination of	
	and production	and processing	and treatment	Marketing	intersegment transactions	Consolidated total
Six months ended June 30, 2018:						
Sales and revenues:						
Third-party	\$ 1,608,277	8,408	2,045	398,715	_	2,017,445
Intersegment	11,054	218,488	251,625		(481,167)	
Total	\$ 1,619,331	226,896	253,670	398,715	(481,167)	2,017,445
Operating expenses:						
Lease operating	\$ 63,574	_	117,090	_	(123,778)	56,886
Gathering, compression, processing,						
and transportation	794,053	23,768	_	_	(218,097)	599,724
Impairment of unproved properties	184,973	_	_	_	_	184,973
Impairment of gathering systems and						
facilities	_	8,501	_	_	_	8,501
Depletion, depreciation, and						
amortization	396,981	48,120	21,193	_	_	466,294
General and administrative	93,082	22,357	7,592	_	(1,314)	121,717
Other	54,371	18	9,892	409,159	(7,821)	465,619
Total	1,587,034	102,764	155,767	409,159	(351,010)	1,903,714
Operating income (loss)	\$ 32,297	124,132	97,903	(10,444)	(130,157)	113,731
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated						
affiliates	\$ —	17,126	_	_	_	17,126
Segment assets	\$13,381,044	2,299,863	993,238	61,684	(1,045,222)	15,690,607
Capital expenditures for segment assets	\$ 978,822	206,753	58,127	_	(134,678)	1,109,024

(16) Subsidiary Guarantors

Each of Antero's wholly-owned subsidiaries has fully and unconditionally guaranteed Antero's senior notes. Antero Midstream and its subsidiaries have been designated as unrestricted subsidiaries under the Credit Facility and the indentures governing Antero's senior notes, and do not guarantee any of Antero's obligations (see Note 7). In the event a subsidiary guarantor is sold or disposed of (whether by merger, consolidation, the sale of a sufficient amount of its capital stock so that it no longer qualifies as a "Subsidiary" of the Company (as defined in the indentures governing the notes) or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets (other than by lease)) and whether or not the subsidiary guarantor is the surviving entity in such transaction to a person which is not Antero or a restricted subsidiary of Antero, such subsidiary guarantor will be released from its obligations under its subsidiary guarantee if the sale or other disposition does not violate the covenants set forth in the indentures governing the notes.

In addition, a subsidiary guarantor will be released from its obligations under the indentures and its guarantee, upon the release or discharge of the guarantee of other Indebtedness (as defined in the indentures governing the notes) that resulted in the creation of such guarantee, except a release or discharge by or as a result of payment under such guarantee; if Antero designates such subsidiary as an unrestricted subsidiary and such designation complies with the other applicable provisions of the indentures governing the notes or in connection with any covenant defeasance, legal defeasance or satisfaction and discharge of the notes.

The following Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018, and the related Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 and Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 present financial information for Antero on a stand-alone basis (carrying its investment in subsidiaries using the equity method), financial information for the subsidiary guarantors, financial information for the non-guarantor subsidiaries, and the consolidation and elimination entries necessary to arrive at the information for the Company on a consolidated basis. Antero's wholly-owned subsidiaries are not restricted from making distributions to the Parent.

Distributions received by Antero from Antero Midstream have been reclassified from investing activities to operating activities on the Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2017. The reclassification is a result of the adoption of ASU No. 2016-05, *Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments*, which provides for an accounting policy election to account for distributions received from equity method investees under the "nature of distribution" approach.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet December 31, 2017 (In thousands)

	Parent	Guarantor	Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries (Antero		
	(Antero)	Subsidiaries	Midstream)	Eliminations	Consolidated
Assets					
Current assets:	¢ 20.079		9 262		20 441
Cash and cash equivalents Accounts receivable, net	\$ 20,078 33,726		8,363 1,170	_	28,441 34,896
Intercompany receivables	6,459		110,182	(116,641)	34,890
Accrued revenue	300,122	_	110,102	(110,041)	300,122
Derivative instruments	460,685	_	_	_	460,685
Other current assets	8,273	_	670	_	8,943
Total current assets	829,343		120,385	(116,641)	833,087
Property and equipment:					
Natural gas properties, at cost (successful efforts method):					
Unproved properties	2,266,673	_	_	_	2,266,673
Proved properties	11,460,615	_	_	(364,153)	11,096,462
Water handling and treatment systems	_	_	942,361	4,309	946,670
Gathering systems and facilities	17,929	_	2,032,561	_	2,050,490
Other property and equipment	57,429				57,429
	13,802,646	_	2,974,922	(359,844)	16,417,724
Less accumulated depletion, depreciation, and					
amortization	(2,812,851)		(369,320)		(3,182,171)
Property and equipment, net	10,989,795		2,605,602	(359,844)	13,235,553
Derivative instruments	841,257				841,257
Investments in subsidiaries	(573,926)	_	_	573,926	_
Contingent acquisition consideration Investments in unconsolidated affiliates	208,014		202 202	(208,014)	303,302
Other assets	35,371	_	303,302 12,920	_	48,291
	\$ 12,329,854		3,042,209	(110,573)	15,261,490
Total assets	\$ 12,329,634		3,042,209	(110,575)	13,201,490
Liabilities and Equity					
Current liabilities:					
Accounts payable	\$ 54,340	_	8,642	_	62,982
Intercompany payable	110,182	_	6,459	(116,641)	_
Accrued liabilities	338,819	_	106,006	(1,600)	443,225
Revenue distributions payable	209,617	_	_	_	209,617
Derivative instruments	28,476	_	_	_	28,476
Other current liabilities	17,587		209	(110.241)	17,796
Total current liabilities Long-term liabilities:	759,021	_	121,316	(118,241)	762,096
Long-term debt	3,604,090	_	1,196,000	_	4,800,090
Deferred income tax liability	779,645		1,170,000		779,645
Contingent acquisition consideration		_	208,014	(208,014)	
Derivative instruments	207	_		(200,011)	207
Other liabilities	42,906	_	410	_	43,316
Total liabilities	5,185,869	_	1,525,740	(326,255)	6,385,354
Equity:					
Stockholders' equity:					
Partners' capital	_	_	1,516,469	(1,516,469)	_
Common stock	3,164	_	_	_	3,164
Additional paid-in capital	5,565,756	_	_	1,005,196	6,570,952
Accumulated earnings	1,575,065				1,575,065
Total stockholders' equity	7,143,985	_	1,516,469	(511,273)	8,149,181
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiary				726,955	726,955
Total equity	7,143,985		1,516,469	215,682	8,876,136
Total liabilities and equity	\$ 12,329,854		3,042,209	(110,573)	15,261,490

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet June 30, 2018 (In thousands)

	Pa	rent	Guarantor	Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries (Antero		
	(An	tero)	Subsidiaries	Midstream)	Eliminations	Consolidated
Assets						
Current assets:	Φ.	21.002		10.525		50.600
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	31,083	_	19,525	_	50,608
Accounts receivable, net Intercompany receivables		23,454 3,856		12,222 114,072	(117,928)	35,676
Accrued revenue	2	21,214	_	114,072	(117,928)	321,214
Derivative instruments		20,842				420,842
Other current assets	7	6,051		539		6,590
Total current assets	-	06,500		146,358	(117,928)	834,930
Property and equipment:		00,500		140,556	(117,720)	654,750
Natural gas properties, at cost (successful efforts						
method):		00.100				2 100 100
Unproved properties		08,109			(400.225)	2,108,109
Proved properties	12,2	23,199	_	070.062	(498,335)	11,924,864
Water handling and treatment systems		17.025		970,863	9,074	979,937
Gathering systems and facilities		17,825	_	2,237,560	_	2,255,385
Other property and equipment	14.	60,693		73	(400.2(1)	60,766
Tana annumulated daulation, damassistica, and	14,0	509,826	_	3,208,496	(489,261)	17,329,061
Less accumulated depletion, depreciation, and amortization	(2.2	00.725)		(429 195)		(2 647 010)
		09,725)		(438,185)	(490.2(1)	(3,647,910)
Property and equipment, net		100,101		2,770,311	(489,261)	13,681,151
Derivative instruments		63,592		_	-	763,592
Investments in subsidiaries	,	95,059)	_	_	695,059	_
Contingent acquisition consideration Investments in unconsolidated affiliates		15,835	_	358,830	(215,835)	358,830
Other assets		31,374	_	20,730	_	52,104
Total assets		522,343		3,296,229	(127,965)	15,690,607
Total assets	\$ 12,0	122,545		3,270,227	(127,703)	13,070,007
Liabilities and Equity						
Current liabilities:	\$	77 722		10 754		06 477
Accounts payable Intercompany payable		77,723 14,072	_	18,754 3,856	(117,928)	96,477
Accrued liabilities		49,647	_	89,182	(117,928)	438,829
Revenue distributions payable		11,234	_	09,102	_	211,234
Derivative instruments		30,661			_	30,661
Other current liabilities		9,840	_	213	1,479	11,532
Total current liabilities	-	93,177		112,005	(116,449)	788,733
Long-term liabilities:	,	93,177	_	112,003	(110,449)	766,755
Long-term debt	3.5	376,778	_	1,411,566	_	5,288,344
Deferred income tax liability		63,192	_	1,411,500	_	763,192
Contingent acquisition consideration	,	-	_	215,835	(215,835)	
Other liabilities		41,737	_	5,690	(210,000)	47,427
Total liabilities	5.4	74,884		1,745,096	(332,284)	6,887,696
Equity:		7 1,00 1		1,7 12,000	(552,201)	0,007,050
Stockholders' equity:						
Partners' capital		_	_	1,551,133	(1,551,133)	_
Common stock		3,171	_		(-,-51,155)	3,171
Additional paid-in capital	5.5	590,775	_	_	1,006,762	6,597,537
Accumulated earnings		53,513	_	_		1,453,513
Total stockholders' equity		47,459		1,551,133	(544,371)	8,054,221
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiary	.,.		_		748,690	748,690
Total equity	7.0	47,459		1,551,133	204,319	8,802,911
Total liabilities and equity		522,343		3,296,229	(127,965)	15,690,607
. ,						

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 (In thousands)

			Non- Guarantor		
	D4	C	Subsidiaries		
	Parent (Antero)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	(Antero Midstream)	Eliminations	Consolidated
Revenue and other:					
Natural gas sales	\$ 454,257	_	_	_	454,257
Natural gas liquids sales	170,819	_	_	_	170,819
Oil sales	26,512	_	_	_	26,512
Commodity derivative fair value gains	85,641	_	_	_	85,641
Gathering, compression, water handling and					
treatment		_	193,767	(190,575)	3,192
Marketing	49,968	_	_	_	49,968
Other income	3,911			(3,911)	
Total revenue	791,108		193,767	(194,486)	790,389
Operating expenses:					
Lease operating	17,189	_	41,444	(41,641)	16,992
Gathering, compression, processing, and					
transportation	353,216	_	9,910	(96,379)	266,747
Production and ad valorem taxes	21,599	_	954	_	22,553
Marketing	77,421	_	_	_	77,421
Exploration	1,804	_	_	_	1,804
Impairment of unproved properties	15,199	_			15,199
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization	170,670	_	30,512	_	201,182
Accretion of asset retirement obligations	649	_		_	649
General and administrative	49,531	_	14,789	(221)	64,099
Accretion of contingent acquisition consideration			3,590	(3,590)	
Total operating expenses	 707,278		101,199	(141,831)	666,646
Operating income	83,830		92,568	(52,655)	123,743
Other income (expenses):					
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	_	_	3,623	_	3,623
Interest	(59,735)	_	(9,015)	168	(68,582)
Equity in earnings (loss) of consolidated					
subsidiaries	(10,408)	_	_	10,408	_
Total other expenses	(70,143)		(5,392)	10,576	(64,959)
Income before income taxes	13,687		87,176	(42,079)	58,784
Provision for income tax expense	(18,819)	_	_	` <u> </u>	(18,819)
Net income and comprehensive income including					
noncontrolling interests	(5,132)	_	87,176	(42,079)	39,965
Net income and comprehensive income					
attributable to noncontrolling interests	_	_	_	45,097	45,097
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income					
(loss) attributable to Antero Resources					
Corporation	\$ (5,132)		87,176	(87,176)	(5,132)

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income Three Months Ended June 30, 2018 (In thousands)

		Parent (Antero)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries (Antero Midstream)	Eliminations	Consolidated
Revenue and other:						
Natural gas sales	\$	473,540	_	_	_	473,540
Natural gas liquids sales		255,985	_	_	_	255,985
Oil sales		38,873	_	_	_	38,873
Commodity derivative fair value gains		55,336	_	_	_	55,336
Gathering, compression, water handling and treatment		_	_	250,392	(244,874)	5,518
Marketing		160,202	_	_	_	160,202
Marketing derivative fair value losses		(110)	_	_	_	(110)
Gain on sale of assets		_	_	583	(583)	_
Other income		5,179	_		(5,179)	_
Total revenue		989,005		250,975	(250,636)	989,344
Operating expenses:						
Lease operating		32,312	_	62,218	(64,366)	30,164
Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation		409,708		12,400	(114,322)	307,786
Production and ad valorem taxes		24,886		1,005	(114,322)	25,891
Marketing		213,420	_	1,003	<u></u>	213,420
Exploration		1,471	_	<u></u>	_	1,471
Impairment of unproved properties		134,437	_	<u> </u>	_	134,437
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities		4,470	_	4,614	(583)	8,501
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization		201,617	_	36,433	(505)	238,050
Accretion of asset retirement obligations		666	_	34	_	700
General and administrative		46,662	_	15,494	(469)	61,687
Accretion of contingent acquisition consideration			_	3,947	(3,947)	_
Total operating expenses	_	1,069,649		136,145	(183,687)	1,022,107
Operating income (loss)	_	(80,644)		114,830	(66,949)	(32,763)
Other income (expenses):	_	(00,011)		111,050	(00,515)	(32,703)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates			_	9.264		9.264
Interest		(54,388)	_	(14,628)	(333)	(69,349)
Equity in earnings (loss) of consolidated				(11,020)	` ′	(05,515)
subsidiaries	_	(26,926)		(5.264)	26,926	(60,005)
Total other expenses	_	(81,314)		(5,364)	26,593	(60,085)
Income (loss) before income taxes		(161,958)	_	109,466	(40,356)	(92,848)
Provision for income tax benefit	_	25,573				25,573
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)		(12 (205)		100.466	(40.250)	(67.075)
including noncontrolling interests		(136,385)	_	109,466	(40,356)	(67,275)
Net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests					69,110	69,110
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Antero Resources Corporation	\$	(136,385)		109,466	(109,466)	(136,385)
Corporation	Ψ	(150,505)		107,100	(10), 100)	(150,505)

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 (In thousands)

	Parent (Antero)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries (Antero Midstream)	Eliminations	Consolidated
Revenue and other:	(Antero)	Substitiaries	Wildstream)	Elillillations	Consolidated
Natural gas sales	\$ 920,92	1			920,921
Natural gas saics Natural gas liquids sales	365,47		_	_	365,471
Oil sales	53,47		<u></u>	_	53,472
Commodity derivative fair value gains	524,41		<u></u>	_	524,416
Gathering, compression, water handling and	324,41	O			321,110
treatment	_	_	368,536	(362,740)	5.796
Marketing	115,89	2	500,550	(302,740)	115,892
Other income	8,35		_	(8,351)	115,072
Total revenue and other	1,988,52		368,536	(371,091)	1.985,968
Operating expenses:	1,700,32	.5	300,330	(3/1,071)	1,703,700
Lease operating	32,93	:1	80,066	(80,454)	32,543
Gathering, compression, processing, and	32,93	<u> </u>	80,000	(80,434)	32,343
transportation	700,98	4	18,024	(185,432)	533,576
Production and ad valorem taxes	45,57		1,772	(105,452)	47,346
Marketing	167,41		1,772	_	167,414
Exploration	3,91		_	_	3,911
Impairment of unproved properties	42,09			_	42,098
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization	345,86		58,048	_	403,911
Accretion of asset retirement obligations	1,28			_	1,286
General and administrative	100,58		29,246	(1,036)	128,797
Accretion of contingent acquisition consideration	-		7,116	(7,116)	
Total operating expenses	1,440,64	.8 —	194,272	(274,038)	1,360,882
Operating income	547,87		174,264	(97,053)	625,086
Other income (expenses):	517,07	<u> </u>	174,204	(77,033)	023,000
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	_	_	5,854	_	5,854
Interest	(117,73	8) —	(17,851)	337	(135,252)
Equity in earnings (loss) of consolidated	(117,75	0)	(17,031)	331	(133,232)
subsidiaries	(16,70)		_	16,708	
Total other expenses	(134,44		(11,997)	17.045	(129,398)
Income before income taxes	413.42		162,267	(80,008)	495,688
Provision for income tax expense	(150,16		102,207	(00,000)	(150,165)
Net income and comprehensive income including	(130,10	<u> </u>			(130,103)
noncontrolling interests	263,26	4 —	162,267	(80,008)	345,523
Net income and comprehensive income	203,20		102,207	(00,000)	5 15,525
attributable to noncontrolling interests	_	_	_	82,259	82,259
Net income and comprehensive income				,	,
attributable to Antero Resources Corporation	\$ 263,26	4	162,267	(162,267)	263,264

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 (In thousands)

			Non- Guarantor		
	Parent	Guarantor	Subsidiaries (Antero		
	(Antero)	Subsidiaries	Midstream)	Eliminations	Consolidated
Revenue and other:					
Natural gas sales	\$ 971,203	_	_	_	971,203
Natural gas liquids sales	490,155	_	_	_	490,155
Oil sales	69,146	_	_	_	69,146
Commodity derivative fair value gains	77,773	_	_	_	77,773
Gathering, compression, water handling and					
treatment	_	_	479,983	(469,530)	10,453
Marketing	304,591	_	_	_	304,591
Marketing derivative fair value gains	94,124	_	_	_	94,124
Gain on sale of assets	_	_	583	(583)	_
Other income	11,054			(11,054)	
Total revenue and other	2,018,046		480,566	(481,167)	2,017,445
Operating expenses:					
Lease operating	63,574	_	117,090	(123,778)	56,886
Gathering, compression, processing, and					
transportation	794,053	_	23,768	(218,097)	599,724
Production and ad valorem taxes	49,693	_	2,021		51,714
Marketing	409,159	_	_	_	409,159
Exploration	3,356	_	_	_	3,356
Impairment of unproved properties	184,973	_	_	_	184,973
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities	4,470	_	4,614	(583)	8,501
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization	397,429	_	68,865	_	466,294
Accretion of asset retirement obligations	1,322	_	68	_	1,390
General and administrative	93,082	_	29,949	(1,314)	121,717
Accretion of contingent acquisition consideration	_	_	7,821	(7,821)	_
Total operating expenses	2,001,111		254,196	(351,593)	1,903,714
Operating income	16,935		226,370	(129,574)	113,731
Other income (expenses):					
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	_	_	17,126	_	17,126
Interest	(107,886)	_	(25,925)	36	(133,775)
Equity in earnings (loss) of consolidated					
subsidiaries	(47,054)	_	_	47,054	_
Total other expenses	(154,940)		(8,799)	47,090	(116,649)
Income before income taxes	(138,005)		217,571	(82,484)	(2,918)
Provision for income tax benefit	16,453	_		(02, 101)	16,453
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)	10,100				10,100
including noncontrolling interests	(121,552)	_	217,571	(82,484)	13,535
Net income and comprehensive income	(121,002)		217,671	(02, 101)	10,000
attributable to noncontrolling interests	_	_	_	135.087	135,087
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income				,	,
(loss) attributable to Antero Resources					
Corporation	\$ (121,552)	_	217,571	(217,571)	(121,552)

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 (In thousands)

Name		Parent	Guarantor	Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries (Antero		
Net income including noncontrolling interests \$263,264 \$-162,267 \$(80,008) \$345,523		(Antero)		•	Eliminations	Consolidated
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion 347,149						
Provided by operating activities: Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion 347,149		\$ 263,264	_	162,267	(80,008)	345,523
Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion accretion 347,149	3					
Accretion Accretion Accretion Consideration Consider						
Accretion of contingent acquisition consideration		247.140		50.040		405.105
Consideration		347,149		58,048	_	405,197
Impairment of unproved properties	Č 1	(7.116)		7 116		
Commodity derivative fair value gains			_	/,116	_	42.008
Gains on settled commodity derivatives 75,913 Deferred income tax expense 150,165 — — 150,165 Equity-based compensation expense 39,241 — 13,237 — 52,478				_		,
Deferred income tax expense			_	_	_	
Equity-based compensation expense 39,241 — 13,237 — 52,478 Equity in (earnings) of unconsolidated affiliates — (5,854) — (5,854) Equity in (earnings) loss of consolidated subsidiaries 16,708 — (16,708) — Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated affiliates — 5,820 — 5,820 — 5,820 Distributions from Antero Midstream 63,145 — (63,145) — 472 Changes in current assets and liabilities 106,797 — (6,963) 356 100,190 Net cash provided by operating activities 572,153 — 234,938 (159,505) 647,586 Cash flows used in investing activities 572,153 — 234,938 (159,505) 647,586 Cash flows used in investing activities (179,318) — — — (179,318) — — — (179,318) Additions to unproved properties (129,876) — — — — — — (129,876) — — — — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs — — — — — — — (129,876) — — — — — — — — (129,876) — — — — — — — — (155,365) — — — — — — — — (155,365) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — — — — — — — — — — — — (6,564) — — — — — — — — — — — (6,564) — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — (6,564)		,	_	_		,
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates — (5,854) — (5,854) Equity in (earnings) loss of consolidated subsidiaries 16,708 — — (16,708) — Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated affiliates — — 5,820 — 5,820 Distributions from Antero Midstream 63,145 — — (63,145) — Other (795) — 1,267 — 472 Changes in current assets and liabilities 106,797 — (6,963) 356 100,190 Net cash provided by operating activities 572,153 — 234,938 (159,505) 647,586 Cash flows used in investing activities: — — — (179,318) Additions to proved properties (129,876) — — (179,318) Additions to mater handling and treatment systems — (95,451) — (93,60 (629,308) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additi				13 237		
Equity in (earnings) loss of consolidated subsidiaries 16,708 — 5,820 — 5,820 — 5,820 — 5,820 — 5,820 — 5,820 — 0,000		37,241	<u></u>		_	
Subsidiaries				(3,031)		(3,031)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated affiliates — 5,820 — 5,820 — 5,820 — 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		16.708	_	_	(16.708)	_
affiliates — 5,820 — 5,820 Distributions from Antero Midstream 63,145 — — (63,145) — Other (795) — 1,267 — 472 Changes in current assets and liabilities 106,797 — 6,963) 356 100,190 Net cash provided by operating activities: 106,797 — 234,938 (159,505) 647,586 Cash flows used in investing activities: 107,318 — — — (179,318) Additions to unproved properties (129,876) — — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — —		10,700			(10,700)	
Distributions from Antero Midstream	C	_	_	5.820	_	5.820
Other (795) — 1,267 — 472 Changes in current assets and liabilities 106,797 — (6,963) 356 100,190 Net cash provided by operating activities: — 234,938 (159,505) 647,586 Cash flows used in investing activities: — — — (179,318) Additions to proved properties (129,876) — — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — (191,364) — (191,364) Change in other assets (7,648) — — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing	Distributions from Antero Midstream	63,145	_		(63,145)	
Changes in current assets and liabilities 106,797 — (6,963) 356 100,190 Net cash provided by operating activities 572,153 — 234,938 (159,505) 647,586 Cash flows used in investing activities: — — — — — (179,318) Additions to proved properties (129,876) — — — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — — — (95,451) — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — — — (155,365) — (155,365) — (155,365) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — — — (6,564) — — — — — (65,64) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — (191,364) — (191,364) — (191,364) Change in other assets (7,648) — (4,804) — (12,452) Other 2,156 — — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities — — — — 246,585 — — 246,585	Other	(795)	_	1,267	_	472
Cash flows used in investing activities: (179,318) — — (179,318) Additions to proved properties (129,876) — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — 2,156 Cash guest a subsequin in other assets	Changes in current assets and liabilities		_	(6,963)	356	100,190
Additions to proved properties (179,318) — — (179,318) Additions to unproved properties (129,876) — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — — (155,365) — (155,365) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	Net cash provided by operating activities	572,153		234,938	(159,505)	647,586
Additions to proved properties (179,318) — — (179,318) Additions to unproved properties (129,876) — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — — (155,365) — (155,365) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	Cash flows used in investing activities:					
Additions to unproved properties (129,876) — — — (129,876) Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — — (155,365) — (155,365) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — (191,364) — (191,364) Change in other assets (7,648) — (4,804) — (12,452) Other 2,156 — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: — — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net — — — 95,000 — 585,000		(179,318)	_	_	_	(179,318)
Drilling and completion costs (725,668) — — 96,360 (629,308) Additions to water handling and treatment systems — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — — (155,365) — (155,365) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — (191,364) — (191,364) Change in other assets (7,648) — (4,804) — (12,452) Other 2,156 — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869)		(129,876)	_	_	_	(129,876)
Additions to water handling and treatment systems — (95,451) — (95,451) Additions to gathering systems and facilities — (155,365) — (155,365) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — (191,364) — (191,364) Change in other assets (7,648) — (4,804) — (12,452) Other 2,156 — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: — — 246,585 — 246,585 Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream — — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932)<			_	_	96.360	
Additions to gathering systems and facilities — (155,365) — (155,365) Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — (191,364) — (191,364) Change in other assets (7,648) — (4,804) — (12,452) Other 2,156 — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: — — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net — — — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net — — — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards — — —		(,22,000)	_	(95.451)		
Additions to other property and equipment (6,564) — — — (6,564) Investments in unconsolidated affiliates — — (191,364) — (191,364) Change in other assets (7,648) — (4,804) — (12,452) Other 2,156 — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream — — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 </td <td></td> <td>_</td> <td>_</td> <td></td> <td>_</td> <td></td>		_	_		_	
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates		(6,564)	_	_	_	. , ,
Change in other assets (7,648) — (4,804) — (12,452) Other 2,156 — — — 2,156 Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream — — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610			_	(191,364)	_	(191,364)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,046,918) — (446,984) 96,360 (1,397,542) Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610	Change in other assets	(7,648)	_	(4,804)	_	(12,452)
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities: — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net — 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610	Other	2,156	_	` _	_	2,156
Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream — 246,585 — 246,585 Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610	Net cash used in investing activities	(1,046,918)		(446,984)	96,360	(1,397,542)
Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility, net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610	Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:					
net 490,000 — 95,000 — 585,000 Distributions — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards — (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other — (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610	Issuance of common units by Antero Midstream	_	_	246,585	_	246,585
Distributions — — (125,014) 63,145 (61,869) Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610	Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility,					
Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610	net	490,000	_	95,000	_	585,000
compensation awards (7,501) — (932) — (8,433) Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610		_	_	(125,014)	63,145	(61,869)
Other (2,645) — (102) — (2,747) Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610						
Net cash provided by financing activities 479,854 — 215,537 63,145 758,536 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,089 — 3,491 — 8,580 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610			_	\ /	_	(/ /
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents5,089—3,491—8,580Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period17,568—14,042—31,610						
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,568 — 14,042 — 31,610					63,145	
				- , -		,
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period \$ 22,657 — 17,533 — 40,190	Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period					
	Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 22,657		17,533		40,190

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 (In thousands)

	Parent (Antero)	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries (Antero Midstream)	Eliminations	Consolidated
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:					
Net income (loss) including noncontrolling					
interests	\$ (121,552)		217,571	(82,484)	13,535
Adjustment to reconcile net income (loss) to net					
cash provided by operating activities:					
Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and					
accretion	398,751		68,933		467,684
Accretion of contingent acquisition	(7.001)		7.021		
consideration	(7,821)	_	7,821	_	104.072
Impairment of unproved properties	184,973	_	4.614	(592)	184,973
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities Commodity derivative fair value gains	4,470	_	4,614	(583)	8,501
Gains on settled commodity derivatives	(77,773)				(77,773) 197,225
Marketing derivative fair value gains	197,225	_	_	_	(94,124)
Gains on settled marketing derivatives	(94,124) 94,158		_		94,124)
Deferred income tax benefit	(16,453)	_	_		(16,453)
Gain on sale of assets	(10,433)		(583)	583	(10,433)
Equity-based compensation expense	28,149	_	12,078	363	40,227
Equity in (earnings) loss of consolidated	20,149		12,076		40,227
subsidiaries	47,054		_	(47,054)	_
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates			(17,126)	(47,054)	(17,126)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated			(17,120)		(17,120)
affiliates	_	_	17,895	_	17,895
Distributions from Antero Midstream	74,647	_		(74,647)	
Other	547	_	1,385	(, ,,, ,,,	1,932
Changes in current assets and liabilities	14,510	<u></u>	(157)	3,933	18,286
Net cash provided by operating activities	726,761		312,431	(200,252)	838,940
Cash flows used in investing activities:	720,701		312,431	(200,232)	030,940
Additions to unproved properties	(87,861)				(87,861)
Drilling and completion costs	(887,459)	_	_	134,678	(752,781)
Additions to water handling and treatment systems	(887,439)		(49,054)	(9,073)	(58,127)
Additions to gathering systems and facilities		_	(206,753)	(5,075)	(206,753)
Additions to other property and equipment	(3,502)		(200,755)	_	(3,502)
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates	(5,502)		(56,297)	_	(56,297)
Change in other assets	2,051	_	(9,077)	_	(7,026)
Net cash used in investing activities	(976,771)		(321,181)	125,605	(1,172,347)
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:	(>10,111)		(321,101)	125,005	(1,172,317)
Borrowings (repayments) on bank credit facility,					
net	270,000		215,000	_	485,000
Distributions		_	(193,670)	74,647	(119,023)
Employee tax withholding for settlement of equity			(155,070)	7 1,0 17	(11),020)
compensation awards	(6,649)	_	(1,318)	_	(7,967)
Other	(2,336)	_	(100)	_	(2,436)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing	(-,3)		(223)		(=, := 3)
activities	261,015		19,912	74,647	355,574
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	11,005		11,162		22,167
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	20,078	_	8,363	_	28,441
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 31,083		19,525		50,608

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report. The following discussion contains "forward-looking statements" that reflect our future plans, estimates, beliefs and expected performance. We caution that assumptions, expectations, projections, intentions, or beliefs about future events may, and often do, vary from actual results, and the differences can be material. Some of the key factors that could cause actual results to vary from our expectations include changes in natural gas, NGLs, and oil prices, the timing of planned capital expenditures, our ability to fund our development programs, availability of acquisitions, uncertainties in estimating proved reserves and forecasting production results, operational factors affecting the commencement or maintenance of producing wells, the condition of the capital markets generally, as well as our ability to access them, and uncertainties regarding environmental regulations or litigation and other legal or regulatory developments affecting our business, as well as those factors discussed below, all of which are difficult to predict. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed may not occur. See "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements." Also, see the risk factors and other cautionary statements described under the heading "Item 1A. Risk Factors." We do not undertake any obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements except as otherwise required by applicable law. For more information, please refer to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 on file with the SEC.

In this section, references to "Antero Resources," "the Company," "we," "us," and "our" refer to Antero Resources Corporation and its subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires.

Our Company

Antero Resources Corporation is an independent oil and natural gas company engaged in the exploration, development, and production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil properties located in the Appalachian Basin. We focus on unconventional reservoirs, which can generally be characterized as fractured shale formations. Our management team has worked together for many years and has a successful track record of reserve and production growth as well as significant expertise in unconventional resource plays. Our strategy is to leverage our team's experience delineating and developing natural gas resource plays to profitably grow our reserves and production, primarily on our existing multi-year inventory of drilling locations.

We have assembled a portfolio of long-lived properties that are characterized by what we believe to be low geologic risk and repeatability. Our drilling opportunities are focused in the Marcellus Shale and Utica Shale of the Appalachian Basin. As of June 30, 2018, we held approximately 613,000 net acres of rich gas and dry gas properties located in the Appalachian Basin in West Virginia and Ohio. Our corporate headquarters are in Denver, Colorado.

We operate in the following industry segments: (i) the exploration, development, and production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil; (ii) gathering and processing; (iii) water handling and treatment; and (iv) marketing and utilization of excess firm transportation capacity. All of our operations are conducted in the United States.

Address, Internet Website and Availability of Public Filings

Our principal executive offices are located at 1615 Wynkoop Street, Denver, Colorado 80202, and our telephone number is (303) 357-7310. Our website is located at www.anteroresources.com.

We furnish or file with the SEC our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and our Current Reports on Form 8-K. We make these documents available free of charge at *www.anteroresources.com* under the "Investors Relations" link as soon as reasonably practicable after they are furnished or filed with the SEC.

Information on our website is not incorporated into this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or our other filings with the SEC and is not a part of them.

2018 Developments and Highlights

Production and Financial Results

For the three months ended June 30, 2018, our net production totaled 229 Bcfe, or 2,520 MMcfe per day, a 15% increase compared to 200 Bcfe, or 2,200 MMcfe per day, for the three months ended June 30, 2017. Our average price received for

production, before the effects of gains on settled commodity derivatives, for the three months ended June 30, 2018 was \$3.35 per Mcfe compared to \$3.26 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017. Our average realized price after the effects of gains on settled commodity derivatives was \$3.77 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to \$3.41 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017.

For the three months ended June 30, 2018, we generated consolidated cash flows from operations of \$297 million, a consolidated net loss of \$136 million, Adjusted EBITDAX of \$405 million, and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX of \$335 million. This compares to consolidated cash flows from operations of \$254 million, a consolidated net loss of \$5 million, Adjusted EBITDAX of \$321 million, and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX of \$267 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017. See "—Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for a definition of Adjusted EBITDAX (a non-GAAP measure) and a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDAX to net income. See "—Stand-Alone Exploration and Production (E&P) Information" for a definition of Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX and a reconciliation of Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX to Antero's stand-alone net income. "Stand-Alone" data represents information for Antero on an unconsolidated basis, reflecting Antero's investment in Antero Midstream under the equity method of accounting.

The consolidated net loss of \$136 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 included (i) commodity derivative fair value gains of \$55 million, comprised of gains on settled derivatives of \$96 million and a non-cash loss of \$41 million on changes in the fair value of unsettled commodity derivatives, (ii) a non-cash charge of \$19 million for equity-based compensation, (iii) a non-cash charge of \$134 million for impairments of unproved properties, and (iv) a non-cash deferred tax benefit of \$26 million.

Adjusted EBITDAX increased from \$321 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$405 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 26%. Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX increased from \$267 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$335 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 25%. The increases in Adjusted EBITDAX and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX were primarily due to increases in production as well as increases in our average realized price for production after gains on settled commodity derivatives. Adjusted EBITDAX and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX decreased from the first quarter of 2018 largely due to the impact of \$110 million of gains on settled marketing derivatives during the three months ended March 31, 2018, whereas we recognized \$16 million of losses on settled marketing derivatives during the three months ended June 30, 2018.

Consolidated cash flows from operations increased from \$254 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$297 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 17%. Stand-alone cash flows from operations increased from \$202 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$229 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 13%. The increases in consolidated and stand-alone cash flows from operations were primarily due to increases in total realized revenues from production and settled commodity derivatives during 2018, net of increases in cash operating costs and \$16 million in settled marketing derivative losses during the three months ended June 30, 2018.

For the six months ended June 30, 2018, our net production totaled 443 Bcfe, or 2,448 MMcfe per day, a 13% increase compared to 393 Bcfe, or 2,172 MMcfe per day, for the six months ended June 30, 2017. Our average price received for production, before the effects of gains on settled commodity derivatives, for the six months ended June 30, 2018 was \$3.45 per Mcfe compared to \$3.41 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017. Our average realized price after the effects of gains on settled commodity derivatives was \$3.90 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to \$3.60 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017.

For the six months ended June 30, 2018, we generated consolidated cash flows from operations of \$839 million, a consolidated net loss of \$122 million, Adjusted EBITDAX of \$956 million, and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX of \$823 million. This compares to consolidated cash flows from operations of \$648 million, consolidated net income of \$263 million, Adjusted EBITDAX of \$686 million, and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX of \$588 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017. See "—Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for a definition of Adjusted EBITDAX (a non-GAAP measure) and a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDAX to net income. See "—Stand-Alone Exploration and Production (E&P) Information" for a definition of Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX and a reconciliation of Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX to Antero's stand-alone net income. "Stand-Alone" data represents information for Antero on an unconsolidated basis, reflecting Antero's investment in Antero Midstream under the equity method of accounting.

The consolidated net loss of \$122 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 included (i) commodity derivative fair value gains of \$78 million, comprised of gains on settled derivatives of \$197 million and a non-cash loss of \$119 million on changes in the fair value of unsettled commodity derivatives, (ii) a non-cash charge of \$40 million for equity-based compensation, (iii) a non-cash charge of \$185 million for impairments of unproved properties, and (iv) a non-cash deferred tax benefit of \$16 million.

Adjusted EBITDAX increased from \$686 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$956 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 39%. Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX increased from \$588 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$823 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 40%. The increases in Adjusted EBITDAX and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX were primarily due to increases in production as well as increases in our average realized price for production after gains on settled derivatives.

Consolidated cash flows from operations increased from \$648 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$839 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 29%. Stand-alone cash flows from operations increased from \$572 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$727 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 27%. The increases in consolidated and stand-alone cash flows from operations were primarily due to increases in total realized revenues from production and settled commodity derivatives and \$94 million in settled marketing derivative gains during 2018, net of increases in cash operating costs.

2018 Capital Budget and Capital Spending

Our consolidated capital budget for 2018 is \$2.1 billion, and includes: \$1.3 billion for drilling and completion, \$150 million for leasehold expenditures, and \$650 million for capital expenditures by Antero Midstream, which includes \$215 million for investments in unconsolidated affiliates. We do not budget for acquisitions. Operational efficiencies achieved during the six months ended June 30, 2018 resulted in a pull-forward of capital spending from the second half of 2018 into the first half of 2018. We averaged approximately six completion crews during the six months ended June 30, 2018, but expect to reduce the count and average approximately four completion crews during the second half of 2018. We periodically review our capital expenditures and adjust our budget and its allocation based on liquidity, drilling results, leasehold acquisition opportunities, and commodity prices.

For the six months ended June 30, 2018, our consolidated capital expenditures were approximately \$1.1 billion, including drilling and completion costs of \$753 million, leasehold additions of \$88 million, gathering and compression expenditures of \$207 million, water handling and treatment expenditures of \$58 million, and other capital expenditures of \$4 million. Antero Midstream also invested \$56 million in its gas processing and fractionation joint venture with MarkWest Energy Partners L.P. (the "Joint Venture").

Hedge Position

As of June 30, 2018, we had entered into fixed price hedging contracts for approximately 2.3 Tcf of our projected natural gas production at a weighted average index price of \$3.31 per MMBtu for the period from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2023, 201 million gallons of propane at a weighted average price of \$0.76 per gallon for the period from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, and 1.1 MMBbls of oil at a weighted average price of \$56.99 per Bbl for the period from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018. These hedging contracts include contracts for the remainder of 2018 of approximately 368 Bcf of natural gas at a weighted average index price of \$3.49 per MMBtu. At June 30, 2018, the estimated fair value of our commodity derivative instruments was a net asset of \$1.2 billion comprised of current assets and liabilities and noncurrent assets

Credit Facilities

As of June 30, 2018, Antero's borrowing base under its senior secured revolving bank credit facility (the "Credit Facility") was \$4.5 billion and lender commitments were \$2.5 billion. Each of these amounts were reaffirmed in the annual redetermination in April 2018. The next redetermination of the borrowing base is scheduled to occur in April 2019. The borrowing base under the Credit Facility is redetermined annually and is based on the collateral value of Antero's assets. The maturity date of the Credit Facility is the earlier of (i) October 26, 2022 and (ii) the date that is 91 days prior to the earliest stated redemption date of any series of Antero's senior notes, unless such series of notes is refinanced. At June 30, 2018, we had \$455 million of borrowings and \$692 million of letters of credit outstanding under the Credit Facility. See "—Debt Agreements and Contractual Obligations—Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility" for a description of the Credit Facility.

Antero Midstream has a revolving credit facility that provides for lender commitments of \$1.5 billion (the "Midstream Credit Facility"). At June 30, 2018, Antero Midstream had \$770 million of borrowings outstanding under the Midstream Credit Facility. The Midstream Credit Facility will mature on October 26, 2022. See "—Debt Agreements and Contractual Obligations—Midstream Credit Facility" for a description of the Midstream Credit Facility.

Special Committee Formation

On February 26, 2018, we announced that our Board of Directors formed a special committee composed solely of independent directors (the "Special Committee") to explore, review and evaluate potential measures to address a perceived discount in the trading value of our common stock. The Special Committee has hired legal advisors and financial advisors to assist in its evaluation of potential measures. However, as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, no decision on any particular measure has been reached, and there is no assurance that a decision on any measure will be reached.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

The Company has four operating segments: (1) the exploration, development and production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil; (2) gathering and processing; (3) water handling and treatment; and (4) marketing and utilization of excess firm transportation capacity. Revenues from the gathering and processing and water handling and treatment operations are primarily derived from intersegment transactions for services provided to our exploration and production operations by Antero Midstream. All intersegment transactions are eliminated upon consolidation, including revenues from water handling and treatment services provided by Antero Midstream which are capitalized as proved property development costs by Antero. Marketing revenues are primarily derived from activities to purchase and sell third-party natural gas and NGLs and to market and utilize excess firm transportation capacity.

The operating results of the Company's reportable segments were as follows for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (in thousands):

		xploration and roduction	Gathering and processing	Water handling and treatment	Marketing	Elimination of intersegment transactions	Consolidated total
Three months ended June 30, 2017:	_						
Operating revenues and other:							
Natural gas sales	\$	454,257	_	_	_	_	454,257
Natural gas liquids sales		170,819	_	_	_	_	170,819
Oil sales		26,512	_	_	_	_	26,512
Commodity derivative fair value gains		85,641		_	_	_	85,641
Gathering, compression, and water							
handling and treatment		_	98,762	95,005	_	(190,575)	3,192
Marketing		_		_	49,968	_	49,968
Other income		3,911				(3,911)	
Total	\$	741,140	98,762	95,005	49,968	(194,486)	790,389
Operating expenses: Lease operating Gathering, compression, processing, and	\$	17,189	_	41,444	_	(41,641)	16,992
transportation		353,216	9,910	_	_	(96,379)	266,747
Production and ad valorem taxes		21,599	12	942	_		22,553
Marketing		_	_	_	77,421	_	77,421
Exploration		1,804	_	_	_	_	1,804
Impairment of unproved properties		15,199	_	_	_	_	15,199
Accretion of asset retirement obligations		649	_	_	_	_	649
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization		170,446	22,494	8,242	_	_	201,182
General and administrative (before equity- based compensation)		29,507	5,468	2,370	_	(221)	37,124
Equity-based compensation		20,024	5,237	1,714	_	_	26,975
Change in fair value of contingent acquisition consideration				3,590		(3,590)	
Total		629,633	43,121	58,302	77,421	(141,831)	666,646
Operating income (loss)	\$	111,507	55,641	36,703	(27,453)	(52,655)	123,743
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	\$	_	3,623	_	_	_	3,623

		xploration and roduction	Gathering and processing	Water handling and treatment	Marketing	Elimination of intersegment transactions	Consolidated total
Three months ended June 30, 2018:							
Operating revenues and other							
Natural gas sales	\$	473,540	_	_	_	_	473,540
Natural gas liquids sales		255,985	_	_	_	_	255,985
Oil sales		38,873	_	_	_	_	38,873
Commodity derivative fair value gains		55,336	_	_	_	_	55,336
Gathering, compression, and water							
handling and treatment		_	118,136	132,256	_	(244,874)	5,518
Marketing		_			160,202		160,202
Marketing derivative fair value losses		_	_	_	(110)	_	(110)
Gain on sale of assets		_	583	_	`	(583)	`
Other income		5,179	_	_	_	(5,179)	_
Total	\$	828,913	118,719	132,256	160,092	(250,636)	989,344
Operating expenses:							
Lease operating	\$	32,312	_	62,218	_	(64,366)	30,164
Gathering, compression, processing, and	•	-)-		, ,		(5)- 5 - 7	,
transportation		409,708	12,400	_	_	(114,322)	307,786
Production and ad valorem taxes		24,886	4	1,001	_		25,891
Marketing			_		213,420	_	213,420
Exploration		1,471	_	_		_	1,471
Impairment of unproved properties		134,437	_	_	_	_	134,437
Impairment of gathering systems and							
facilities		_	8,501	_	_	_	8,501
Accretion of asset retirement obligations		666	´—	34	_	_	700
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization		201,393	24,482	12,175	_	_	238,050
General and administrative (before equity-			·	·			·
based compensation)		33,458	7,241	2,386	_	(469)	42,616
Equity-based compensation		13,204	4,754	1,113	_	<u> </u>	19,071
Change in fair value of contingent							
acquisition consideration		_	_	3,947	_	(3,947)	_
Total		851,535	57,382	82,874	213,420	(183,104)	1,022,107
Operating income (loss)	\$	(22,622)	61,337	49,382	(53,328)	(67,532)	(32,763)
r	Ė						
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	\$	_	9,264	_	_	_	9,264

Exploration and Production Segment Results for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

The following tables set forth selected operating data of the exploration and production segment for the three months ended June 30, 2017 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2018:

_	Increase (Decrease)	Percent Change
	(Decrease)	Chango
		Change
67	23	16 %
90	742	29 %
14	224	4 %
32	19	3 %
29	29	15 %
20	320	15 %
83 \$	(0.32)	(10)%
93 \$	1.53	18 %
81 \$	10.67	44 %
55 \$	18.31	42 %
35 \$	0.09	3 %
50 \$	(0.03)	(1)%
93 \$	1.32	15 %
10 \$	13.18	66 %
11 \$	5.99	13 %
77 \$	0.36	11 %
14 \$	0.05	56 %
79 \$	0.03	2 %
11 \$		— %
		4 %
15 \$		— %
	93 \$81 \$855 \$855 \$855 \$855 \$855 \$855 \$855	990 742 14 224 32 19 29 29 20 320 83 \$ (0.32) 93 \$ 1.53 81 \$ 10.67 55 \$ 18.31 35 \$ 0.09 50 \$ (0.03) 93 \$ 1.32 10 \$ 13.18 11 \$ 5.99 77 \$ 0.36 14 \$ 0.05 79 \$ 0.03 11 \$ 88 \$ 0.03

(1) Average sales prices shown in the table reflect both the before and after effects of our settled commodity derivatives. Our calculation of such after effects includes gains on settlements of commodity derivatives, which do not qualify for hedge accounting because we do not designate or document them as hedges for accounting purposes. Oil and NGLs production was converted at 6 Mcf per Bbl to calculate total Bcfe production and per Mcfe amounts. This ratio is an estimate of the equivalent energy content of the products and does not necessarily reflect their relative economic value.

Natural gas, NGLs, and oil sales. Revenues from production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil increased from \$652 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$768 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of \$116 million, or 18%. Our production increased by 15% over that same period, from 200 Bcfe, or 2,200 MMcfe per day, for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to 229 Bcfe, or 2,520 MMcfe per day, for the three months ended June 30, 2018. Net equivalent prices before the effects of settled derivatives increased from \$3.26 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017 compared to \$3.35 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2018. The increase in the year-over-year equivalent price was driven by the increase in liquids prices and production, which more than offset the 10% decrease in natural gas prices. Net equivalent prices after the effects of gains on settled commodity derivatives increased by 11%, from \$3.41 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$3.77 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to higher average realized prices after hedges for C3+ NGLs and oil in the three months ended June 30, 2018.

Increased production volumes accounted for an approximate \$95 million increase in year-over-year product revenues (calculated as the combined change in year-to-year volumes times the prior year average price), and changes in our equivalent prices, excluding the effects of derivative settlements, accounted for an approximate \$22 million increase in year-over-year product revenues (calculated as the change in the year-to-year average price times current year production volumes). Production increases resulted from an increase in the number of producing wells as a result of our drilling and completion activity.

During the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, our natural gas revenues were negatively affected by contractual issues with certain of our customers. For more information on these disputes, please see Note 13 to the condensed consolidated financial statements or "Item 1. Legal Proceedings" included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Commodity derivative fair value gains. To achieve more predictable cash flows, and to reduce our exposure to price fluctuations, we enter into fixed for variable price swap contracts when management believes that favorable future sales prices for our production can be secured. Because we do not designate these derivatives as accounting hedges, they do not receive hedge accounting treatment. Consequently, all mark-to-market gains or losses, as well as cash receipts or payments on settled derivative instruments, are recognized in our statements of operations. For the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, our commodity hedges resulted in derivative fair value gains of \$86 million and \$55 million, respectively. The commodity derivative fair value gains included \$31 million and \$96 million of gains on cash settled derivatives for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Commodity derivative gains or losses vary based on future commodity prices and have no cash flow impact until the derivative contracts are settled or monetized prior to settlement. Derivative asset or liability positions at the end of any accounting period may reverse to the extent future commodity prices increase or decrease from their levels at the end of the accounting period, or as gains or losses are realized through settlement. We expect continued volatility in commodity prices and the related fair value of our derivative instruments in the future.

Other income. Other income increased from \$4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018. Other income primarily relates to increases in the fair value of our exploration and production segment's contingent acquisition consideration that was received in connection with Antero's sale of its water handling and treatment assets to Antero Midstream in 2015. In conjunction with the acquisition of the water handling and treatment assets, Antero Midstream agreed to pay Antero (a) \$125 million in cash if Antero Midstream delivers 176,295,000 barrels or more of fresh water during the period between January 1, 2017 and December 31, 2019 and (b) an additional \$125 million in cash if Antero Midstream delivers 219,200,000 barrels or more of fresh water during the period between January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2020. The contingent acquisition consideration asset is recorded at its discounted net present value of the payout to be received by Antero, and is re-measured each period end. As the net present value of the contingent acquisition consideration asset increases, we recognize income in the E&P segment for the change in fair value. Other income is eliminated upon consolidation.

Lease operating expense. Lease operating expense increased from \$17 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$32 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 88%. This increase is partly due to a 15% increase in production. On a per unit basis, lease operating expenses increased from \$0.09 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$0.14 for the three months ended June 30, 2018. The increase in lease operating expenses on a per Mcfe basis is primarily due to the increase in produced water from new wells, which is attributable to an increase in the amount of water used in our advanced well completions.

Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation expense. Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation expense increased from \$353 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$410 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018. The increase in these expenses is a result of the increase in production and the related firm transportation, gathering, compression, and processing expenses. On a per Mcfe basis, total gathering, compression, processing and transportation expenses increased from \$1.76 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$1.79 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2018. Transportation expenses increased due to the Rover Pipeline that was placed in service in late 2017, which has higher per-unit transportation costs than the average of our transportation portfolio, but in turn results in higher realized prices for our natural gas production. This increase was partially offset by decreases in processing and other costs on a per Mcfe basis.

Production and ad valorem tax expense. Total production and ad valorem taxes increased from \$22 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$25 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 as a result of an increase in production revenues. On a per Mcfe basis, production and ad valorem taxes remained consistent at \$0.11 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018. Production and ad valorem taxes as a percentage of natural gas, NGLs, and oil revenues before the effects of hedging decreased slightly from 3.3% for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to 3.2% for the three months ended June 30, 2018.

Exploration expense. Exploration expense decreased from \$2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018. These amounts represent expenses incurred for unsuccessful lease acquisition efforts.

Impairment of unproved properties. Impairment of unproved properties increased from \$15 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$134 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018. The increase was primarily due to the impairment of a block of leases, which were obtained together and expire in the second quarter of 2019, in the Utica Shale that are not in our current development plan. We charge impairment expense for expired or soon-to-be expired leases when we determine they are impaired based on factors such as remaining lease terms, reservoir performance, commodity price outlooks, and future plans to develop the acreage.

Depletion, depreciation, and amortization expense ("DD&A"). DD&A increased from \$170 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$201 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, primarily because of increased production. DD&A per Mcfe increased from \$0.85 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$0.88 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2018.

We evaluate the carrying amount of our proved natural gas, NGLs, and oil properties for impairment on a geological reservoir basis whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that a property's carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount exceeded the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows (measured using futures prices at the end of a quarter), we would further evaluate our proved properties and record an impairment charge if the carrying amount of our proved properties exceeded the estimated fair value of the properties. At June 30, 2018, we compared the carrying values of our proved properties to estimated future net cash flows. As estimated future net cash flows were higher than the carrying values of our proved properties at June 30, 2018, we did not further evaluate our proved properties for impairment.

General and administrative expense. General and administrative expense (before equity-based compensation expense) increased from \$30 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$33 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to increases in employee compensation and benefits expenses. On a per-unit basis, general and administrative expense before equity-based compensation remained consistent at \$0.15 per Mcfe for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 as the increase in expenses from 2017 to 2018 were offset by a 15% increase in production. We had 586 employees as of June 30, 2017 and 608 employees as of June 30, 2018.

Equity-based compensation expense. Noncash equity-based compensation expense decreased from \$20 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$13 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 as a result of equity award forfeitures, as well as a decrease in the total value of awards granted to officers and employees in 2018 as compared to 2017. When an equity award is forfeited, expense previously recognized for the award is reversed. See Note 9 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for more information on equity-based compensation awards.

Discussion of Gathering and Processing, Water Handling and Treatment, and Marketing Segment Results for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

Gathering and Processing. Revenue for the gathering and processing segment increased from \$99 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$119 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of \$20 million, or 20%. Gathering revenues increased by \$13 million from the prior year period and compression revenues increased by \$6 million as additional wells on production increased throughput volumes. Total operating expenses related to the gathering and processing segment increased from \$43 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$57 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 primarily as a result of increases in direct operating and depreciation expenses due to a larger base of gathering and compression assets.

Antero Midstream has two investments accounted for under the equity method: a 15% interest in a regional gathering pipeline purchased in May 2016, and a 50% interest in the Joint Venture with MarkWest entered into in February 2017. Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates of \$3.6 million and \$9.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively, represents the portion of the net income from these investments which was allocated to Antero Midstream based on its equity interests. The increase was due to the commencement of operations by two additional processing plants, in the second half of 2017, which are owned by the Joint Venture.

Water Handling and Treatment. Revenue for the water handling and treatment segment increased from \$95 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of \$37 million, or 39%. The increase was due to an increase in the volume of water used per well in our advanced completions during 2018 as compared to 2017, as well as an increase in other fluid handling services as a result of the increase in the amount of water used. The volume of water delivered through the systems increased from 15.8 MMBbls for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to 20.8 MMBbls for the three months ended June 30, 2018. Operating expenses for the water handling and treatment segment increased from \$58 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$83 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to the increase in other fluid handling services. Antero Midstream's wastewater treatment facility was placed in service in May 2018, but has not yet had a significant impact on the financial results of the water handling and treatment segment. The facility was temporarily taken offline in June 2018 for maintenance and to install additional pretreatment facilities to improve operations. The facility was placed back into commercial service at the end of July 2018.

Marketing. Where feasible, we purchase and sell third-party natural gas and NGLs and market our excess firm transportation capacity, or engage third parties to conduct these activities on our behalf, in order to optimize the revenues from these transportation

agreements. We have entered into long-term firm transportation agreements for a significant portion of our current and expected future production in order to secure guaranteed capacity to favorable markets.

Operating losses on our marketing activities were \$27 million and \$53 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. See note 11 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for more information on marketing derivative fair value losses during the three months ended June 30, 2018.

Marketing expenses include firm transportation costs related to current excess capacity as well as the cost of third-party purchased gas and NGLs. This includes firm transportation costs of \$26 million and \$41 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively, related to unutilized excess capacity which increased due to the Rover Pipeline that was placed in service in late 2017.

Discussion of Items Not Allocated to Segments for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

Interest expense. Interest expense remained consistent at \$69 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018. Interest expense includes approximately \$3.0 million and \$3.2 million of non-cash amortization of deferred financing costs for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Income tax (expense) benefit. Income tax (expense) benefit changed from a deferred tax expense of \$19 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to a deferred tax benefit of \$26 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018. The deferred tax expense for the three months ended June 30, 2017 was due to pre-tax income generated for financial reporting purposes, whereas we incurred a pre-tax loss for financial reporting purposes for the three months ended June 30, 2018. In addition, for the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company recognized a \$20 million deferred tax benefit for a rate reduction which was the result of a law change in Colorado. The change in year-over-year tax provisions also reflects the reduction in the federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%. For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company's overall effective tax rate was different than the statutory rate of 21% primarily due to the effects of noncontrolling interests, state tax rates, and permanent differences on vested equity compensation awards.

At December 31, 2017, we had approximately \$3.0 billion of net operating loss carryforwards ("NOLs") for U.S. federal income tax purposes that expire at various dates from 2024 through 2037 and approximately \$2.3 billion of state NOLs that expire at various dates from 2018 through 2037. Future interpretations relating to the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act which vary from our current interpretation, and possible changes to state tax laws in response to the recently enacted federal legislation, may have a significant effect on our future taxable position. The impact of any such change would be recorded in the period in which such interpretation is received or legislation is enacted.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

The Company has four operating segments: (1) the exploration, development and production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil; (2) gathering and processing; (3) water handling and treatment; and (4) marketing and utilization of excess firm transportation capacity. Revenues from the gathering and processing and water handling and treatment operations are primarily derived from intersegment transactions for services provided to our exploration and production operations by Antero Midstream. All intersegment transactions are eliminated upon consolidation, including revenues from water handling and treatment services provided by Antero Midstream which are capitalized as proved property development costs by Antero. Marketing revenues are primarily derived from activities to purchase and sell third-party natural gas and NGLs and to market and utilize excess firm transportation capacity.

Table of Contents

The operating results of the Company's reportable segments were as follows for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (in thousands):

	,	ploration and oduction	Gathering and processing	Water handling and treatment	Marketing	Elimination of intersegment transactions	Consolidated total
Six months ended June 30, 2017:							
Operating revenues and other:							
Natural gas sales	\$	920,921	_	_	_	_	920,921
Natural gas liquids sales		365,471		_	_	_	365,471
Oil sales		53,472	_	_	_	_	53,472
Commodity derivative fair value gains		524,416		_	_	_	524,416
Gathering, compression, and water							
handling and treatment		_	190,421	178,115	_	(362,740)	5,796
Marketing		_	_	_	115,892	_	115,892
Other income		8,351	_	_	_	(8,351)	_
Total	\$ 1	,872,631	190,421	178,115	115,892	(371,091)	1,985,968
Operating expenses:							
Lease operating	\$	32,931	_	80,066	_	(80,454)	32,543
Gathering, compression, processing, and							
transportation		700,984	18,024	_	_	(185,432)	533,576
Production and ad valorem taxes		45,574	12	1,760	_		47,346
Marketing		_	_	_	167,414	_	167,414
Exploration		3,911	_	_	_	_	3,911
Impairment of unproved properties		42,098	_	_	_	_	42,098
Accretion of asset retirement obligations		1,286	_	_	_	_	1,286
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization		345,415	42,418	16,078	_	_	403,911
General and administrative (before equity-							
based compensation)		61,346	11,017	4,992	_	(1,036)	76,319
Equity-based compensation		39,241	9,826	3,411	_	_	52,478
Change in fair value of contingent							
acquisition consideration		_	_	7,116	_	(7,116)	_
Total	1	,272,786	81,297	113,423	167,414	(274,038)	1,360,882
Operating income (loss)	\$	599,845	109,124	64,692	(51,522)	(97,053)	625,086
1 0 ,							
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	\$	_	5,854	_	_	_	5,854

	Exploration and production	Gathering and processing	Water handling and treatment	Marketing	Elimination of intersegment transactions	Consolidated total
Six months ended June 30, 2018:						
Operating revenues and other:						
Natural gas sales	\$ 971,203	_	_	_	_	971,203
Natural gas liquids sales	490,155	_	_	_	_	490,155
Oil sales	69,146	_	_	_	_	69,146
Commodity derivative fair value gains	77,773	_	_	_	_	77,773
Gathering, compression, and water						
handling and treatment	_	226,313	253,670	_	(469,530)	10,453
Marketing	_	_	_	304,591	_	304,591
Marketing derivative fair value gains	_	_	_	94,124	_	94,124
Gain on sale of assets	_	583	_	_	(583)	_
Other income	11,054	_	_	_	(11,054)	_
Total	\$ 1,619,331	226,896	253,670	398,715	(481,167)	2,017,445
Operating expenses:						
Lease operating	\$ 63,574	_	117,090	_	(123,778)	56,886
Gathering, compression, processing, and	,		,		, , ,	,
transportation	794,053	23,768	_	_	(218,097)	599,724
Production and ad valorem taxes	49,693	18	2,003	_	` ´ _	51,714
Marketing		_		409,159	_	409,159
Exploration	3,356	_	_	_	_	3,356
Impairment of unproved properties	184,973	_	_	_	_	184,973
Impairment of gathering systems and						
facilities	_	8,501	_	_	_	8,501
Accretion of asset retirement obligations	1,322	_	68	_	_	1,390
Depletion, depreciation, and amortization	396,981	48,120	21,193	_	_	466,294
General and administrative (before equity-						
based compensation)	64,933	12,945	4,926	_	(1,314)	81,490
Equity-based compensation	28,149	9,412	2,666	_	_	40,227
Change in fair value of contingent						
acquisition consideration			7,821	_	(7,821)	_
Total	1,587,034	102,764	155,767	409,159	(351,010)	1,903,714
	\$ 32,297	124,132	97,903	(10,444)	(130,157)	113,731
Operating income						
						_
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	\$ —	17,126	_	_	_	17,126

Exploration and Production Segment Results for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

The following tables set forth selected operating data of the exploration and production segment for the six months ended June 30, 2017 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2018:

					Ar	nount of	
	Six Months Ended June 30,					ncrease	Percent
(Exploration and Production segment)		2017 2018		2018	(D	ecrease)	Change
Production data:							
Natural gas (Bcf)		284		326		42	15 %
C2 Ethane (MBbl)		4,858		6,320		1,462	30 %
C3+ NGLs (MBbl)		12,159		12,107		(52)	— %
Oil (MBbl)		1,256		1,161		(95)	(7)%
Combined (Bcfe)		393		443		50	13 %
Daily combined production (MMcfe/d)		2,172		2,448		276	13 %
Average prices before effects of derivative settlements(1):							
Natural gas (per Mcf)	\$	3.25	\$	2.98	\$	(0.27)	(8)%
C2 Ethane (per Bbl)	\$	8.21	\$	9.46	\$	1.25	15 %
C3+ NGLs (per Bbl)	\$	26.78	\$	35.55	\$	8.77	33 %
Oil (per Bbl)	\$	42.58	\$	59.54	\$	16.96	40 %
Weighted Average Combined (per Mcfe)	\$	3.41	\$	3.45	\$	0.04	1 %
Average realized prices after effects of derivative							
settlements(1):							
Natural gas (per Mcf)	\$	3.71	\$	3.67	\$	(0.04)	(1)%
C2 Ethane (per Bbl)	\$	8.67	\$	9.46	\$	0.79	9 %
C3+ NGLs (per Bbl)	\$	21.92	\$	34.07	\$	12.15	55 %
Oil (per Bbl)	\$	44.61	\$	51.66	\$	7.05	16 %
Weighted Average Combined (per Mcfe)	\$	3.60	\$	3.90	\$	0.30	8 %
Average Costs (per Mcfe):							
Lease operating	\$	0.08	\$	0.14	\$	0.06	75 %
Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation	\$	1.78	\$	1.79	\$	0.01	1 %
Production and ad valorem taxes	\$	0.12	\$	0.11	\$	(0.01)	(8)%
Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion	\$	0.88	\$	0.90	\$	0.02	2 %
General and administrative (before equity-based compensation)	\$	0.16	\$	0.15	\$	(0.01)	(6)%

(1) Average sales prices shown in the table reflect both the before and after effects of our settled commodity derivatives. Our calculation of such after effects includes gains on settlements of commodity derivatives, which do not qualify for hedge accounting because we do not designate or document them as hedges for accounting purposes. Oil and NGLs production was converted at 6 Mcf per Bbl to calculate total Bcfe production and per Mcfe amounts. This ratio is an estimate of the equivalent energy content of the products and does not necessarily reflect their relative economic value.

Natural gas, NGLs, and oil sales. Revenues from production of natural gas, NGLs, and oil increased from \$1.3 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$1.5 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of \$191 million, or 14%. Our production increased by 13% over that same period, from 393 Bcfe, or 2,172 MMcfe per day, for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to 443 Bcfe, or 2,448 MMcfe per day, for the six months ended June 30, 2018. Net equivalent prices before the effects of settled derivatives increased from \$3.41 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$3.45 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 1%. The increase in the year-over-year equivalent price was driven by the increase in liquids prices and production, which more than offset the 8% decrease in natural gas prices. Net equivalent prices after the effects of gains on settled commodity derivatives increased by 8%, from \$3.60 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$3.90 for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to higher average realized prices after hedges for C3+ NGLs and oil in the six months ended June 30, 2018.

Increased production volumes accounted for an approximate \$171 million increase in year-over-year product revenues (calculated as the combined change in year-to-year volumes times the prior year average price), and changes in our equivalent prices, excluding the effects of derivative settlements, accounted for an approximate \$20 million increase in year-over-year product revenues (calculated as the change in the year-to-year average price times current year production volumes). Production increases resulted from an increase in the number of producing wells as a result of our drilling and completion activity.

During the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, our natural gas revenues were negatively affected by contractual issues with certain of our customers. For more information on these disputes, please see Note 13 to the condensed consolidated financial statements or "Item 1. Legal Proceedings" included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Commodity derivative fair value gains. To achieve more predictable cash flows, and to reduce our exposure to price fluctuations, we enter into fixed for variable price swap contracts when management believes that favorable future sales prices for our production can be secured. Because we do not designate these derivatives as accounting hedges, they do not receive hedge accounting treatment. Consequently, all mark-to-market gains or losses, as well as cash receipts or payments on settled derivative instruments, are recognized in our statements of operations. For the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, our commodity hedges resulted in derivative fair value gains of \$524 million and \$78 million, respectively. The commodity derivative fair value gains included \$76 million and \$197 million of gains on cash settled derivatives for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Commodity derivative gains or losses vary based on future commodity prices and have no cash flow impact until the derivative contracts are settled or monetized prior to settlement. Derivative asset or liability positions at the end of any accounting period may reverse to the extent future commodity prices increase or decrease from their levels at the end of the accounting period, or as gains or losses are realized through settlement. We expect continued volatility in commodity prices and the related fair value of our derivative instruments in the future.

Other income. Other income increased from \$8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$11 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018. Other income primarily relates to increases in the fair value of our exploration and production segment's contingent acquisition consideration that was received in connection with Antero's sale of its water handling and treatment assets to Antero Midstream in 2015. In conjunction with the acquisition of the water handling and treatment assets, Antero Midstream agreed to pay Antero (a) \$125 million in cash if Antero Midstream delivers 176,295,000 barrels or more of fresh water during the period between January 1, 2017 and December 31, 2019 and (b) an additional \$125 million in cash if Antero Midstream delivers 219,200,000 barrels or more of fresh water during the period between January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2020. The contingent acquisition consideration asset is recorded at its discounted net present value of the payout to be received by Antero, and is re-measured each period end. As the net present value of the contingent acquisition consideration asset increases, we recognize income in the E&P segment for the change in fair value. Other income is eliminated upon consolidation.

Lease operating expense. Lease operating expense increased from \$33 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$64 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 93%. This increase is partly due to a 13% increase in production. On a per unit basis, lease operating expenses increased from \$0.08 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$0.14 for the six months ended June 30, 2018. The increase in lease operating expenses on a per Mcfe basis is due to the increase in produced water for new wells, which is attributable to an increase in the amount of water used in our advanced well completions.

Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation expense. Gathering, compression, processing, and transportation expense increased from \$701 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$794 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018. The increase in these expenses is a result of the increase in production and the related firm transportation, gathering, compression, and processing expenses. On a per Mcfe basis, total gathering, compression, processing and transportation expenses remained relatively consistent at \$1.78 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and \$1.79 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2018. Transportation expenses increased due to the Rover Pipeline that was placed in service in late 2017, which has higher per-unit transportation costs than the average of our transportation portfolio, but in turn results in higher realized prices for our natural gas production. This increase was partially offset by decreases in processing and other costs on a per Mcfe basis.

Production and ad valorem tax expense. Total production and ad valorem taxes increased from \$46 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$50 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 as a result of an increase in production revenues. On a per Mcfe basis, production and ad valorem taxes decreased from \$0.12 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and to \$0.11 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2018. Production and ad valorem taxes as a percentage of natural gas, NGLs, and oil revenues before the effects of hedging decreased from 3.4% for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to 3.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2018.

Exploration expense. Exploration expense decreased from \$4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018. These amounts represent expenses incurred for unsuccessful lease acquisition efforts.

Impairment of unproved properties. Impairment of unproved properties increased from \$42 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$185 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018. The increase was primarily due to the impairment of a block of leases, which were obtained together and expire in the second quarter of 2019, in the Utica Shale that are not in our current development plan. We charge impairment expense for expired or soon-to-be expired leases when we determine they are impaired based on factors such as remaining lease terms, reservoir performance, commodity price outlooks, and future plans to develop the acreage.

Depletion, depreciation, and amortization expense ("DD&A"). DD&A increased from \$345 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$397 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily because of increased production. DD&A per Mcfe increased from \$0.88 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$0.90 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2018.

We evaluate the carrying amount of our proved natural gas, NGLs, and oil properties for impairment on a geological reservoir basis whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that a property's carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount exceeded the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows (measured using futures prices at the end of a quarter), we would further evaluate our proved properties and record an impairment charge if the carrying amount of our proved properties exceeded the estimated fair value of the properties. At June 30, 2018, we compared the carrying values of our proved properties to estimated future net cash flows. As estimated future net cash flows were higher than the carrying values of our proved properties at June 30, 2018, we did not further evaluate our proved properties for impairment.

General and administrative expense. General and administrative expense (before equity-based compensation expense) increased from \$61 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$65 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to increases in employee compensation and benefits expenses. On a per-unit basis, general and administrative expense before equity-based compensation decreased from \$0.16 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$0.15 per Mcfe for the six months ended June 30, 2018 as the increase in expenses from 2017 to 2018 were offset by a 13% increase in production. We had 586 employees as of June 30, 2017 and 608 employees as of June 30, 2018

Equity-based compensation expense. Noncash equity-based compensation expense decreased from \$39 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$28 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 as a result of equity award forfeitures, as well as a decrease in the total value of awards granted to officers and employees in 2018 as compared to 2017. When an equity award is forfeited, expense previously recognized for the award is reversed. See Note 9 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for more information on equity-based compensation awards.

Discussion of Gathering and Processing, Water Handling and Treatment, and Marketing Segment Results for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

Gathering and Processing. Revenue for the gathering and processing segment increased from \$190 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$227 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of \$37 million, or 19%. Gathering revenues increased by \$23 million from the prior year period and compression revenues increased by \$13 million as additional wells on production increased throughput volumes. Total operating expenses related to the gathering and processing segment increased from \$81 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$103 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 primarily as a result of increases in direct operating and depreciation expenses due to a larger base of gathering and compression assets.

Antero Midstream has two investments accounted for under the equity method: a 15% interest in a regional gathering pipeline purchased in May 2016, and a 50% interest in the Joint Venture with MarkWest entered into in February 2017. Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates of \$5.9 million and \$17.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively, represents the portion of the net income from these investments which was allocated to Antero Midstream based on its equity interests. The increase was due to the commencement of operations by two additional processing plants, in the second half of 2017, which are owned by the Joint Venture.

Water Handling and Treatment. Revenue for the water handling and treatment segment increased from \$178 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$254 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of \$76 million, or 42%. The increase was due to an increase in the volume of water used per well in our advanced completions during 2018 as compared to 2017, as well as an increase in other fluid handling services as a result of the increase in the amount of water used. The volume of water delivered through the systems increased from 29.1 MMBbls for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to 40.7 MMBbls for the six months ended June 30, 2018. Operating expenses for the water handling and treatment segment increased from \$113 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$156 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to the increase in other fluid handling services. Antero Midstream's wastewater treatment facility was placed in service in May 2018, but has not yet had a significant impact on the financial results of the water handling and treatment segment. The facility was temporarily taken offline in June 2018 for maintenance and to install additional pretreatment facilities to improve operations. The facility was placed back into commercial service at the end of July 2018.

Marketing. Where feasible, we purchase and sell third-party natural gas and NGLs and market our excess firm transportation capacity, or engage third parties to conduct these activities on our behalf, in order to optimize the revenues from these transportation

agreements. We have entered into long-term firm transportation agreements for a significant portion of our current and expected future production in order to secure guaranteed capacity to favorable markets.

Operating losses on our marketing activities were \$52 million and \$10 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. See note 11 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for more information on marketing derivative fair value gains during the six months ended June 30, 2018.

Marketing expenses include firm transportation costs related to current excess capacity as well as the cost of third-party purchased gas and NGLs. This includes firm transportation costs of \$47 million and \$76 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively, related to unutilized excess capacity which increased due to the Rover Pipeline that was placed in service in late 2017.

Discussion of Items Not Allocated to Segments for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 Compared to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

Interest expense. Interest expense remained relatively consistent at \$135 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and \$134 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018. Interest expense includes approximately \$5.8 million and \$6.1 million of non-cash amortization of deferred financing costs for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Income tax (expense) benefit. Income tax (expense) benefit changed from a deferred tax expense of \$150 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to a deferred tax benefit of \$16 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018. The deferred tax expense for the six months ended June 30, 2017 was due to pre-tax income generated for financial reporting purposes, whereas we incurred a pre-tax loss for financial reporting purposes for the six months ended June 30, 2018. In addition, for the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company recognized a \$20 million deferred tax benefit for a rate reduction which was the result of a law change in Colorado. The change in year-over-year tax provisions also reflects the reduction in the federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%. For the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company's overall effective tax rate was different than the statutory rate of 21% primarily due to the effects of noncontrolling interests, state tax rates, and permanent differences on vested equity compensation awards.

At December 31, 2017, we had approximately \$3.0 billion of NOLs for U.S. federal income tax purposes that expire at various dates from 2024 through 2037 and approximately \$2.3 billion of state NOLs that expire at various dates from 2018 through 2037. Future interpretations relating to the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act which vary from our current interpretation, and possible changes to state tax laws in response to the recently enacted federal legislation, may have a significant effect on our future taxable position. The impact of any such change would be recorded in the period in which such interpretation is received or legislation is enacted.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Historically, our primary sources of liquidity have been through issuances of debt and equity securities, borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, asset sales, and net cash provided by operating activities. Historically, our primary use of cash has been for the exploration, development, and acquisition of oil and natural gas properties, as well as for development of gathering and compression systems and facilities, and fresh water handling and wastewater treatment infrastructure. As we pursue the development of our reserves, we continually monitor what capital resources, including equity and debt financings, are available to meet our future financial obligations, planned capital expenditure activities, and liquidity requirements. Our future success in growing our proved reserves and production will be highly dependent on the capital resources available to us.

Based on strip pricing at June 30, 2018, we believe that funds from operating cash flows and available borrowings under the Credit Facility and Midstream Credit Facility, or capital market transactions, will be sufficient to meet our cash requirements, including normal operating needs, debt service obligations, capital expenditures, and commitments and contingencies for at least the next 12 months. For more information on our outstanding indebtedness, see Note 7 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018:

	Si	Increase		
(in thousands)	2	2017	2018	(Decrease)
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$	647,586	838,940	191,354
Net cash used in investing activities	(1,	397,542)	(1,172,347)	225,195
Net cash provided by financing activities		758,536	355,574	(402,962)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	\$	8,580	22,167	

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was \$648 million and \$839 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. The increase in cash flows from operations from the six months ended June 30, 2017 to the six months ended June 30, 2018 was primarily the result of increases in total realized revenues from production and settled derivatives and \$94 million in settled marketing derivative gains during 2018, net of increases in cash operating costs.

Our net operating cash flows are sensitive to many variables, the most significant of which is the volatility of natural gas, NGLs, and oil prices, as well as volatility in the cash flows attributable to settlement of our commodity derivatives. Prices for natural gas, NGLs, and oil are primarily determined by prevailing market conditions. Regional and worldwide economic activity, weather, infrastructure capacity to reach markets, and other variables influence the market conditions for these products. These factors are beyond our control and are difficult to predict. For additional information on the impact of changing prices on our financial position, see "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk."

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities decreased from \$1.4 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$1.2 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to an acreage acquisition that we made during the six months ended June 30, 2017 whereas no acquisitions took place in 2018, and decreases in investments in the Joint Venture by Antero Midstream during the six months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, our cash flows used in investing activities included \$753 million for drilling and completion costs, \$88 million for undeveloped leasehold additions, \$58 million for water handling and treatment systems, \$207 million for gathering and compression systems, \$56 million for investments in the Joint Venture, and \$4 million for other property and equipment. During the six months ended June 30, 2017, our cash flows used in investing activities included \$629 million for drilling and completion costs, \$130 million for undeveloped leasehold additions, \$179 million for acquisitions, \$95 million for water handling and treatment systems, \$155 million for gathering and compression systems, \$191 million for investments in the Joint Venture, \$7 million for other property and equipment, and \$10 million for other items.

Our capital budget for 2018 is \$1.45 billion, which does not include the capital budget of \$650 million for Antero Midstream, our consolidated subsidiary. Our capital budget may be adjusted as business conditions warrant as the amount, timing, and allocation of capital expenditures is largely discretionary and within our control. If natural gas, NGLs, and oil prices decline to levels that do not generate an acceptable level of corporate returns, or costs increase to levels that do not generate an acceptable level of corporate returns, we could choose to defer a significant portion of our budgeted capital expenditures until later periods to achieve the desired balance between sources and uses of liquidity, and to prioritize capital projects that we believe have the highest expected returns and potential to generate near-term cash flows. We routinely monitor and adjust our capital expenditures in response to changes in commodity prices, availability of financing, drilling and acquisition costs, industry conditions, the timing of regulatory approvals, the availability of rigs, success or lack of success in drilling activities, contractual obligations, internally generated cash flows, and other factors both within and outside our control.

We expect 2018 drilling and completion capital expenditures to remain consistent with prior guidance of \$1.3 billion on a consolidated basis. Operational efficiencies achieved during the six months ended June 30, 2018 resulted in a pull-forward of capital spending from the second half of 2018 into the first half of 2018. We averaged approximately six completion crews during the six months ended June 30, 2018, but expect to reduce the count and average approximately four completion crews during the second half of 2018.

Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities decreased from \$759 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$356 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to Antero Midstream's issuance of common units during the six months

ended June 30, 2017 to finance its initial capital contribution to the Joint Venture in 2017. Net cash provided by financing activities of \$356 million during the six months ended June 30, 2018 was primarily the result of (i) additional net borrowing on our credit facilities of \$485 million, net of (ii) \$119 million for distributions to noncontrolling interest owners in Antero Midstream and (iii) other items totaling \$10 million. Net cash provided by financing activities of \$759 million during the six months ended June 30, 2017 was primarily the result of (i) additional net borrowing on our credit facilities of \$585 million and proceeds from the issuance of common units in Antero Midstream of \$247 million, net of (ii) \$62 million for distributions to noncontrolling interest owners in Antero Midstream and (iii) other items totaling \$11 million.

Stand-Alone Exploration and Production (E&P) Information

As explained in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, each of the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Antero Resources Corporation has guaranteed Antero's senior notes. Antero Midstream and its subsidiaries do not guarantee Antero's senior notes or any of its other obligations. Note 16 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements includes the condensed consolidating balance sheets, statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), and statements of cash flows on a consolidating basis for Antero (the Parent) and Antero Midstream (Antero's non-guarantor subsidiaries). Antero (Parent) includes the assets, liabilities, results of operations, and cash flows for the exploration and production and marketing operations of the Company, including cash flows related to Antero's ownership of common units in Antero Midstream and Antero's stand-alone debt obligations not guaranteed by Antero Midstream.

We believe the Antero (Parent) information is useful to investors as a means to evaluate Antero's operations on a stand-alone basis and its ability to service its debt obligations that are not guaranteed by Antero Midstream or to incur additional debt. We believe that funds from stand-alone operating cash flows, available borrowings under the Credit Facility, and future capital market transactions by Antero, will be sufficient to meet Antero's cash requirements, including normal operating needs, debt service obligations, capital expenditures, and commitments and contingencies for at least the next 12 months

"Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX" is a non-GAAP financial measure that we define as net income or loss on a stand-alone basis for Antero (Parent) before interest expense, interest income, gains or losses from commodity derivatives and marketing derivatives, but including net cash receipts or payments on derivative instruments included in derivative gains or losses, income taxes, impairment, depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion, exploration expense, franchise taxes, equity-based compensation, gain or loss on early extinguishment of debt, gain or loss on sale of assets, equity in earnings or loss of Antero Midstream, and gain or loss on changes in the fair value of contingent acquisition consideration. Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX also includes distributions received from limited partner interests in Antero Midstream common units.

Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX, as used and defined by us, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures employed by other companies and is not a measure of performance calculated in accordance with GAAP. Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for operating income, net income or loss, cash flows provided by operating, investing, and financing activities, or other income or cash flows statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP. Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX provides no information regarding a company's capital structure, borrowings, interest costs, capital expenditures, working capital movement, or tax position. Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX does not represent funds available for discretionary use because those funds may be required for debt services, capital expenditures, working capital, income taxes, exploration expenses, and other commitments and obligations. However, our management team believes Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX is useful to an investor in evaluating our financial performance because this measure:

- · is used by investors in the oil and natural gas industry to measure a company's operating performance without regard to items excluded from the calculation of such term, which may vary substantially from company to company depending upon accounting methods and the book value of assets, capital structure and the method by which assets were acquired, among other factors;
- helps investors to more meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period by removing the effect of our capital and legal structure from our consolidated operating structure; and
- is used by our management team for various purposes, including as a measure of our operating performance, in presentations to our Board of Directors, and as a basis for strategic planning and forecasting. EBITDAX, as defined under the Credit Facility, is used by our lenders pursuant to covenants under the Credit Facility and the indentures governing our senior notes, and is used as one of several evaluation metrics during the annual redetermination process for the Credit Facility.

There are significant limitations to using Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX as a measure of performance, including the inability to analyze the effect of certain recurring and non-recurring items that materially affect our net income or loss, the lack of comparability of results of operations of different companies, and the different methods of calculating Adjusted EBITDAX reported by different companies.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Antero's stand-alone net income to Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX, and a reconciliation of Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX to Antero's stand-alone net cash provided by operating activities per our condensed consolidating statements of cash flows (see Note 16 to our Consolidated Financial Statements), in each case, for the periods presented:

	Three months ended June 30,			Six months ended June 30,		
(in thousands)		2017	2018	2017	2018	
Net income (loss)	\$	(5,132)	(136,385)	263,264	(121,552)	
Commodity derivative fair value gains(1)		(85,641)	(55,336)	(524,416)	(77,773)	
Gains on settled commodity derivatives(1)		31,064	95,884	75,913	197,225	
Marketing derivative fair value (gains) losses(1)			110	_	(94,124)	
Gains (losses) on settled marketing derivatives(1)		_	(15,884)	_	94,158	
Interest expense		59,735	54,388	117,738	107,886	
Income tax expense (benefit)		18,819	(25,573)	150,165	(16,453)	
Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion		171,319	202,283	347,149	398,751	
Impairment of unproved properties		15,199	134,437	42,098	184,973	
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities			4,470	_	4,470	
Exploration expense		1,804	1,471	3,911	3,356	
Gain on change in fair value of contingent acquisition						
consideration		(3,590)	(3,947)	(7,116)	(7,821)	
Equity-based compensation expense		20,024	13,204	39,241	28,149	
Equity in (earnings) loss of Antero Midstream Partners						
LP		10,408	26,926	16,708	47,054	
Distributions from Antero Midstream Partners LP		32,661	38,559	63,145	74,647	
Stand-Alone E&P Adjusted EBITDAX		266,670	334,607	587,800	822,946	
Interest expense		(59,735)	(54,388)	(117,738)	(107,886)	
Exploration expense		(1,804)	(1,471)	(3,911)	(3,356)	
Changes in current assets and liabilities		(2,420)	(50,513)	106,797	14,510	
Other non-cash items		(251)	268	(795)	547	
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$	202,460	228,503	572,153	726,761	

⁽¹⁾ The adjustments for the derivative gains and losses and gains on settled commodity and marketing derivatives have the effect of adjusting net income from operations for changes in the fair value of unsettled derivatives, which are recognized at the end of each accounting period. As a result, Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX only reflects derivatives which settled, or were monetized, during the period.

Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX. Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX increased from \$267 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 to \$335 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 25%. The increase in Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX was primarily due to increases in our average realized price for production after gains on settled commodity derivatives.

Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX increased from \$588 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to \$823 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of 40%. The increases in Adjusted EBITDAX and Stand-Alone Adjusted EBITDAX were primarily due to increases in production as well as increases in our average realized price for production after gains on settled derivatives.

Debt Agreements and Contractual Obligations

Antero Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility. Antero's Credit Facility is with a consortium of bank lenders. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are subject to borrowing base limitations based on the collateral value of our assets and are subject to regular annual redeterminations. At June 30, 2018, the borrowing base was \$4.5 billion and lender commitments were \$2.5 billion. The next redetermination of the borrowing base is scheduled to occur by the end of April 2018. At June 30, 2018, we had \$455 million of borrowings and \$692 million of letters of credit outstanding under the Credit Facility, with a weighted average interest rate of 3.88%. At December 31, 2017, we had \$185 million of borrowings and \$705 million of letters of credit outstanding under the Credit Facility, with a weighted average interest rate of 2.96%. The maturity date of the Credit Facility is the earlier of (i) October 26, 2022 and (ii)

the date that is 91 days prior to the earliest stated redemption date of any series of Antero's senior notes, unless such series of senior notes is refinanced.

Under the Credit Facility, "Investment Grade Period" is a period that, as long as no event of default has occurred, commences when Antero elects to give notice to the Administrative Agent that Antero has received at least one of either (i) a BBB- or better rating from Standard and Poor's or (ii) a Baa3 or better rating from Moody's (an "Investment Grade Rating"). An Investment Grade Period can end at Antero's election. During any period that is not an Investment Grade Period, the Credit Facility requires Antero and its restricted subsidiaries to maintain the following two financial ratios as of the end of each fiscal quarter:

- a current ratio, which is the ratio of our current assets (including any unused borrowing base under the facilities
 and excluding derivative assets) to our current liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities), of not less than 1.0 to
 1.0; and
- an interest coverage ratio, which is the ratio of EBITDAX (as defined by the credit facility agreement) to interest expense over the most recent four quarters, of not less than 2.5 to 1.0.

During an Investment Grade Period, the Credit Facility requires Antero and its restricted subsidiaries to maintain the following three financial ratios as of the end of each fiscal quarter

- a current ratio, which is the ratio of our current assets (including any unused borrowing base under the facilities and excluding derivative assets) to our current liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities), of not less than 1.0 to 1.0:
- · a ratio of total Indebtedness (as defined by the credit facility agreement) to EBITDAX (as defined by the credit facility agreement) of not more than 4.25 to 1.00; and
- · a ratio of PV-9 reflected in the most recently delivered reserve report to its total Indebtedness of not less than 1.50 to 1.00, but only if Antero does not have both (i) an unsecured rating from Moody's of Baa3 or better and (ii) an unsecured rating from S&P of BBB- or better.

We were in compliance with the applicable covenants and ratios as of December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018. The actual borrowing capacity available to us may be limited by the financial ratio covenants. At June 30, 2018, our current ratio was 4.90 to 1.0 (based on the \$4.5 billion borrowing base under the Credit Facility) and our interest coverage ratio was 10.50 to 1.0.

Midstream Credit Facility. Antero Midstream has a secured revolving credit facility among Antero Midstream, certain lenders party thereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, letter of credit issuer, and swing line lender. The Midstream Credit Facility provides for lender commitments of \$1.5 billion and for a letter of credit sublimit of \$150 million. At June 30, 2018, Antero Midstream had \$770 million of borrowings and no letters of credit outstanding under the Midstream Credit Facility, with a weighted average interest rate of 3.34%. At December 31, 2017, Antero Midstream had a total outstanding balance under the Midstream Credit Facility of \$555 million, with a weighted average interest rate of 2.81%. The Midstream Credit Facility matures on October 26, 2022.

Senior Notes. Please refer to Note 7 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and to "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 for information on our senior notes.

We may, from time to time, seek to retire or purchase our outstanding debt through cash purchases and/or exchanges for equity securities, in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, or otherwise. Such repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions, and other factors. The amounts involved could be material.

For more information on the terms, conditions, and restrictions under the Credit Facility, the Midstream Credit Facility, and senior unsecured notes, please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 on file with the SEC.

Contractual Obligations. A summary of our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2018 is provided in the table below. Contractual obligations listed exclude minimum fees that we will pay to Antero Midstream, our consolidated subsidiary, under gathering and compression and water services agreements. Future capital contributions to unconsolidated affiliates are excluded from the table as neither the amounts nor the timing of the obligations can be determined in advance.

	Rema	inder	Year Ended December 31,						
(in millions)	of 2	018	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	Thereafter	Total
Credit Facility(1)	\$				455				455
Midstream Credit Facility(1)		_	_	_	_	770	_	_	770
Antero senior notes—principal(2)		_	_	_	1,000	1,100	750	600	3,450
Antero senior notes—interest(2)		91	182	182	155	129	51	60	850
Antero Midstream senior notes—									
principal(2)		_	_	_	_	_	_	650	650
Antero Midstream senior notes—									
interest(2)		17	35	35	35	35	35	35	227
Drilling rig and completion service									
commitments(3)		37	45	1	_	_	_	_	83
Firm transportation (4)		440	1,087	1,107	1,087	1,034	1,022	8,611	14,388
Processing, gathering, and compression									
services (5)		241	360	378	363	359	351	1,521	3,573
Office and equipment leases		7	11	10	9	8	7	49	101
Asset retirement obligations(6)					1			39	40
Total	\$	833	1,720	1,713	3,105	3,435	2,216	11,565	24,587

- (1) Includes outstanding principal amounts at June 30, 2018. This table does not include future commitment fees, interest expense, or other fees on our Credit Facility or the Midstream Credit Facility because they are floating rate instruments and we cannot determine with accuracy the timing of future loan advances, repayments, or future interest rates to be charged. The maturity date of the Credit Facility is the earlier of (i) October 26, 2022 and (ii) the date that is 91 days prior to the earliest stated redemption of any series of Antero's senior notes, unless such series of notes is refinanced. The maturity date of the Midstream Credit Facility is October 26, 2022
- (2) Antero senior notes include the 5.375% notes due 2021, the 5.125% notes due 2022, the 5.625% notes due 2023, and the 5.00% notes due 2025. Antero Midstream senior notes include the 5.375% notes due 2024.
- (3) Includes contracts for services provided by drilling rigs and completion fleets which expire at various dates from July 2018 through March 2020. The values in the table represent the gross amounts that we are committed to pay; however, we will record in our financial statements our proportionate share of costs based on our working interests.
- (4) Includes firm transportation agreements with various pipelines in order to facilitate the delivery of our production to market. These contracts commit us to transport minimum daily natural gas or NGLs volumes at negotiated rates, or pay for any deficiencies at specified reservation fee rates. The amounts in this table reflect our minimum daily volumes at the reservation fee rates. The values in the table represent the gross amounts that we are committed to pay; however, we will record in our financial statements our proportionate share of costs based on our working interests.
- (5) Contractual commitments for processing, gathering, and compression services agreements represent minimum commitments under long-term agreements. This includes fees to be paid to the Joint Venture owned by Antero Midstream and MarkWest, as well as Antero Midstream's remaining commitments for the construction of its advanced wastewater treatment complex, which was placed in service in May 2018. The wastewater treatment facility was temporarily taken offline in June 2018 for maintenance and to install additional pretreatment facilities to improve operations. The facility was placed back into commercial service at the end of July 2018. The values in the table represent the gross amounts that we are committed to pay; however, we will record in our financial statements our proportionate share of costs based on our working interests. The table does not include intracompany commitments.
- (6) Represents the present value of our estimated asset retirement obligations. Neither the ultimate settlement amounts nor the timing of our asset retirement obligations can be precisely determined in advance; however, we believe it is likely that a very small amount of these obligations will be settled within the next five years.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

"Adjusted EBITDAX" is a non-GAAP financial measure that we define as net income or loss, including noncontrolling interests, before interest expense, interest income, derivative fair value gains or losses, but including net cash receipts or payments on derivative instruments included in derivative fair value gains or losses, taxes, impairment, depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion, exploration expense, franchise taxes, equity-based compensation, gain or loss on early extinguishment of debt, and gain or

Table of Contents

loss on sale of assets. Adjusted EBITDAX also includes distributions from unconsolidated affiliates and excludes equity in earnings or losses of unconsolidated affiliates.

"Adjusted EBITDAX," as used and defined by us, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures employed by other companies and is not a measure of performance calculated in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDAX should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for operating income, net income or loss, cash flows provided by operating, investing, and financing activities, or other income or cash flow statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDAX provides no information regarding a company's capital structure, borrowings, interest costs, capital expenditures, working capital movement, or tax position. Adjusted EBITDAX does not represent funds available for discretionary use because those funds may be required for debt service, capital expenditures, working capital, income taxes, exploration expenses, and other commitments and obligations. However, our management team believes Adjusted EBITDAX is useful to an investor in evaluating our financial performance because this measure:

- is widely used by investors in the oil and natural gas industry to measure a company's operating performance without regard to items excluded from the calculation of such term, which may vary substantially from company to company depending upon accounting methods and the book value of assets, capital structure, and the method by which assets were acquired, among other factors;
- · helps investors to more meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period by removing the effect of our capital structure from our operating structure; and
- is used by our management team for various purposes, including as a measure of our operating performance, in presentations to our Board or Directors, and as a basis for strategic planning and forecasting. Adjusted EBITDAX is also used by our Board of Directors as a performance measure in determining executive compensation. Consolidated EBITDAX, as defined under the Credit Facility, is used by our lenders pursuant to covenants under the Credit Facility and the indentures governing our senior notes.

There are significant limitations to using Adjusted EBITDAX as a measure of performance, including the inability to analyze the effects of certain recurring and non-recurring items that materially affect our net income or loss, the lack of comparability of results of operations of different companies, and the different methods of calculating Adjusted EBITDAX reported by different companies.

The following table represents a reconciliation of our net income, including noncontrolling interest, to Adjusted EBITDAX and a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDAX to net cash provided by operating activities per our consolidated statements of cash flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2018:

	Three months ended June 30,		Six months ended June 30,		
(in thousands)		2017	2018	2017	2018
Net income (loss) including noncontrolling interest	\$	39,965	(67,275)	\$ 345,523	13,535
Commodity derivative fair value gains(1)		(85,641)	(55,336)	(524,416)	(77,773)
Gains on settled commodity derivatives(1)		31,064	95,884	75,913	197,225
Marketing derivative fair value (gains) losses(1)		_	110	_	(94,124)
Gains (losses) on settled marketing derivatives(1)		_	(15,884)	_	94,158
Interest expense		68,582	69,349	135,252	133,775
Income tax expense (benefit)		18,819	(25,573)	150,165	(16,453)
Depletion, depreciation, amortization, and accretion		201,831	238,750	405,197	467,684
Impairment of unproved properties		15,199	134,437	42,098	184,973
Impairment of gathering systems and facilities		_	8,501	_	8,501
Exploration expense		1,804	1,471	3,911	3,356
Equity-based compensation expense		26,975	19,071	52,478	40,227
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates		(3,623)	(9,264)	(5,854)	(17,126)
Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates		5,820	10,810	5,820	17,895
Adjusted EBITDAX		320,795	405,051	686,087	955,853
Interest expense		(68,582)	(69,349)	(135,252)	(133,775)
Exploration expense		(1,804)	(1,471)	(3,911)	(3,356)
Changes in current assets and liabilities		2,853	(37,803)	100,190	18,286
Other non-cash items		385	963	472	1,932
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$	253,647	297,391	\$ 647,586	838,940

⁽¹⁾ The adjustments for the derivative gains and losses and gains on settled commodity and marketing derivatives have the effect of adjusting net income from operations for changes in the fair value of unsettled derivatives, which are recognized at the end of each accounting period. As a result, Adjusted EBITDAX only reflects derivatives which settled, or were monetized, during the period.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Certain accounting policies involve judgments and uncertainties to such an extent that there is reasonable likelihood that materially different amounts could have been reported under different conditions, or if different assumptions had been used. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on a regular basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions used in preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Our more significant accounting policies and estimates include the successful efforts method of accounting for our production activities, estimates of natural gas, NGLs, and oil reserve quantities and standardized measures of future cash flows, and impairment of proved properties. We provide an expanded discussion of our more significant accounting policies, estimates and judgments in our 2017 Form 10-K. We believe these accounting policies reflect our more significant estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Also, see Note 2 of the notes to our audited consolidated financial statements, included in our 2017 Form 10-K, for a discussion of additional accounting policies and estimates made by management.

We evaluate the carrying amount of our proved natural gas, NGLs, and oil properties for impairment on a geological reservoir basis whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that a property's carrying amount may not be recoverable. Under GAAP for successful efforts accounting, if the carrying amount exceeded the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows (measured using futures prices), we would estimate the fair value of our proved properties and record an impairment charge for any excess of the carrying amount of the properties over the estimated fair value of the properties. We compared estimated undiscounted future net cash flows using futures pricing for our Utica and Marcellus Shale properties to the carrying values of those properties. Estimated undiscounted future net cash flows exceeded the carrying values at June 30, 2018 and thus, no further evaluation of our proved properties for impairment is required under GAAP. As a result, we have not recorded any impairment expenses associated

with our Utica and Marcellus Basin proved properties during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018. Additionally, we did not record any impairment expenses for proved properties during the years ended December 31, 2015, 2016, and 2017.

New Accounting Pronouncements

On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, *Leases*, which requires lessees to present nearly all leasing arrangements on the balance sheet as liabilities along with a corresponding right-of-use asset. The ASU will replace most existing lease guidance in GAAP when it becomes effective. The new standard becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2019. Although early application is permitted, the Company does not plan to early adopt the ASU. The standard requires the use of the modified retrospective transition method. The Company is evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Currently, the Company is evaluating the standard's applicability to our various contractual arrangements. We believe that adoption of the standard will result in increases to our assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet as well as changes to the presentation of certain operating expenses on our consolidated statement of operations, including the accelerated recognition of expenses attributable to certain of our leasing arrangements. However, we have not yet determined the extent of the adjustments that will be required upon implementation of the standard. We continue to monitor relevant industry guidance regarding the implementation of ASU 2016-02 and will adjust our implementation strategies as necessary. We do not believe that adoption of the standard will impact our operational strategies, growth prospects, or cash flows.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 30, 2018, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than operating leases and contractual commitments for drilling rig and completion services, firm transportation, gas processing and fractionation, gathering, and compression services. See "—Debt Agreements and Contractual Obligations—Contractual Obligations" for our commitments under these agreements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The primary objective of the following information is to provide forward-looking quantitative and qualitative information about our potential exposure to market risk. The term "market risk" refers to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in natural gas, NGLs, and oil prices, as well as interest rates. These disclosures are not meant to be precise indicators of expected future losses, but rather indicators of reasonably possible losses. This forward-looking information provides indicators of how we view and manage our ongoing market risk exposures.

Commodity Hedging Activities

Our primary market risk exposure is in the price we receive for our natural gas, NGLs, and oil production. Pricing is primarily driven by spot regional market prices applicable to our U.S. natural gas production and the prevailing worldwide price for crude oil. Pricing for natural gas, NGLs, and oil has, historically, been volatile and unpredictable, and we expect this volatility to continue in the future. The prices we receive for our production depend on many factors outside of our control, including volatility in the differences between product prices at sales points and the applicable index price.

To mitigate some of the potential negative impact on our cash flows caused by changes in commodity prices, we enter into financial derivative instruments to receive fixed prices for a portion of our natural gas, NGLs, and oil production when management believes that favorable future prices can be secured.

Our financial hedging activities are intended to support natural gas, NGLs, and oil prices at targeted levels and to manage our exposure to natural gas, NGLs, and oil price fluctuations. These contracts may include commodity price swaps whereby we will receive a fixed price and pay a variable market price to the contract counterparty, cashless price collars that set a floor and ceiling price for the hedged production, or basis differential swaps. These contracts are financial instruments, and do not require or allow for physical delivery of the hedged commodity. At June 30, 2018, all of our commodity derivatives were fixed price swaps at index-based pricing.

At June 30, 2018, we had in place NGLs and oil swaps covering portions of our projected production through 2018, and natural gas swaps covering portions of our projected production through 2023. Our commodity hedge position as of June 30, 2018 is summarized in Note 11(a) to our condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Under the Credit Facility, we are permitted to hedge up to 75% of our projected production for the next 60 months. We may enter into hedge contracts with a term greater than 60 months, and for no longer than 72 months, for up to 65% of our estimated production. Based on our production and our fixed price swap contracts which settled during the six months ended June 30, 2018, our

revenues would have decreased by approximately \$10.3 million for each \$0.10 decrease per MMBtu in natural gas prices and \$1.00 decrease per Bbl in oil and NGLs prices, excluding the effects of changes in the fair value of our derivative positions which remain open at June 30, 2018.

All derivative instruments, other than those that meet the normal purchase and normal sale scope exception, are recorded at fair market value in accordance with GAAP and are included in our consolidated balance sheets as assets or liabilities. The fair values of our derivative instruments are adjusted for non-performance risk. Because we do not designate these derivatives as accounting hedges, they do not receive hedge accounting treatment; therefore, all mark-to-market gains or losses, as well as cash receipts or payments on settled derivative instruments, are recognized in our statements of operations. We present total gains or losses on commodity derivatives (for both settled derivatives and derivative positions which remain open) within operating revenues as "Commodity derivative fair value gains (losses)."

Mark-to-market adjustments of derivative instruments cause earnings volatility but have no cash flow impact relative to changes in market prices until the derivative contracts are settled or monetized prior to settlement. We expect continued volatility in the fair value of our derivative instruments. Our cash flows are only impacted when the associated derivative contracts are settled or monetized by making or receiving payments to or from the counterparty. At June 30, 2018, the estimated fair value of our commodity derivative instruments was a net asset of \$1.2 billion comprised of current assets and liabilities and noncurrent assets. At December 31, 2017, the estimated fair value of our commodity derivative instruments was a net asset of \$1.3 billion comprised of current and noncurrent assets and liabilities.

By removing price volatility from a portion of our expected production through December 2023, we have mitigated, but not eliminated, the potential negative effects of changing prices on our operating cash flows for those periods. While mitigating the negative effects of falling commodity prices, these derivative contracts also limit the benefits we would receive from increases in commodity prices above the fixed hedge prices.

Counterparty and Customer Credit Risk

Our principal exposures to credit risk are through receivables resulting from the following: commodity derivative contracts (\$1.2 billion at June 30, 2018); the sale of our oil and gas production (\$260 million at June 30, 2018) which we market to energy companies, end users, and refineries; the marketing of our excess firm transportation capacity (\$62 million at June 30, 2018); and joint interest receivables (\$12 million at June 30, 2018).

By using derivative instruments that are not traded on an exchange to hedge our exposures to changes in commodity prices, we expose ourselves to the credit risk of our counterparties. Credit risk is the potential failure of a counterparty to perform under the terms of a derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty is expected to owe us, which creates credit risk. To minimize the credit risk in derivative instruments, it is our policy to enter into derivative contracts only with counterparties that are creditworthy financial institutions which management deems to be competent and competitive market makers. The creditworthiness of our counterparties is subject to periodic review. We have commodity hedges in place with fifteen different counterparties, thirteen of which are lenders under our Credit Facility. The fair value of our commodity derivative contracts of approximately \$1.2 billion at June 30, 2018 included the following derivative assets by bank counterparty: JP Morgan - \$269 million; Morgan Stanley - \$263 million; Citigroup - \$223 million; Scotiabank - \$155 million; Wells Fargo - \$111 million; Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce - \$68 million; BNP Paribas - \$27 million; Toronto Dominion - \$21 million; Bank of Montreal - \$17 million; Natixis - \$8 million; Fifth Third - \$7 million; PNC \$7 million; SunTrust - \$4 million; and Capital One - \$4 million. The credit ratings of certain of these banks were downgraded several years ago because of their exposure to the sovereign debt crisis in Europe or various other economic factors. The estimated fair value of our commodity derivative assets has been risk-adjusted using a discount rate based upon the counterparties' respective published credit default swap rates (if available, or if not available, a discount rate based on the applicable Reuters bond rating) at June 30, 2018 for each of the European and American banks. We believe that all of these institutions, currently, are acceptable credit risks. Other than as provided by the Credit Facility, we are not required to provide credit support or collateral to any of our counterparties under our derivative contracts, nor are they required to provide credit support to us. As of June 30, 2018, we did not have any past-due receivables from, or payables to, any of the counterparties to our derivative contracts.

We are also subject to credit risk due to the concentration of our receivables from several significant customers for sales of natural gas, NGLs, and oil. Marketing receivables primarily result from sales of third-party natural gas and NGLs. We, generally, do not require our customers to post collateral. The inability or failure of our significant customers to meet their obligations to us, or their insolvency or liquidation, may adversely affect our financial results.

Joint interest receivables arise from our billing of entities who own partial interests in the wells we operate. These entities participate in our wells primarily based on their ownership in leased properties on which we drill. We have minimal control over deciding who participates in our wells.

Interest Rate Risks

Our primary exposure to interest rate risk results from outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility and the Midstream Credit Facility of our consolidated subsidiary, Antero Midstream. Each of these credit facilities has a floating interest rate. The average annualized interest rate incurred on the Credit Facility and the Midstream Credit Facility during the six months ended June 30, 2018 was approximately 3.27%. We estimate that a 1.0% increase in each of the applicable average interest rates for the six months ended June 30, 2018 would have resulted in an estimated \$4.4 million increase in interest expense.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, we have evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures and is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2018 at a level of reasonable assurance.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the three months ended June 30, 2018 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Environmental

In March 2011, we received orders for compliance from federal regulatory agencies, including the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"), relating to certain of our activities in West Virginia. The orders allege that certain of our operations at several well sites are in non-compliance with certain environmental regulations, such as unpermitted discharges of fill material into wetlands or waters of the United States that are potentially in violation of the Clean Water Act. We have responded to all pending orders and are actively cooperating with the relevant agencies. We believe that these actions will result in monetary sanctions exceeding \$100,000. We have had ongoing settlement discussions with the relevant agencies to resolve the orders for compliance, but we are unable to estimate the total amount of monetary sanctions to resolve such orders or costs to remediate these locations in order to bring them into compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations. Our operations at these locations are not suspended, and management does not expect these matters to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows

In June 2018, following site inspections conducted in September 2017 at certain of our facilities located in Doddridge County, Tyler County, and Ritchie County, West Virginia, we received a Notice of Violation ("NOV") from the EPA Region III for alleged violations of the federal Clean Air Act and the West Virginia State Implementation Plan relating to permitting and control requirements for emissions of regulated pollutants at several of our natural gas production facilities. The NOV alleges that combustion devices at these facilities did not meet applicable air permitting requirements. Separately, in June 2018, we received an information request from EPA Region III pursuant to Section 114(a) of the Clean Air Act relating to the facilities that were inspected in September 2017 as well as additional Antero facilities for the purpose of determining if the additional facilities have the same alleged compliance issues that were identified during the September 2017 inspections. We are preparing a response to the NOV and the information

request. Since receipt of the NOV and information request, we have not had the opportunity to discuss the merits of the alleged compliance issues with the EPA and therefore do not have any indication with respect to whether, and to what extent, the NOV and information request will result in monetary sanctions; however we believe that there is a reasonable possibility that these actions may result in monetary sanctions exceeding \$100,000. Our operations at these facilities are not suspended, and management does not expect these matters to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

SJGC

The Company is the plaintiff in two lawsuits against South Jersey Gas Company and South Jersey Resources Group, LLC (collectively, "SJGC") pending in United States District Court in Colorado. In March 2015, the Company filed suit against SJGC seeking relief for breach of contract and damages in the amounts that SJGC had short paid, and continued to short pay, the Company in connection with two nearly identical long term gas contracts. Under those contracts, SJGC are long term purchasers of 80,000 MMBtu/day of the Company's natural gas production. Deliveries under the contracts began in October 2011 and the term of the contracts continues through October 2019. The price for gas was based on specified indices in the contracts, Beginning in October 2014, SJGC began short paying the Company based on price indices unilaterally selected by SJGC and not the applicable index specified in the contracts. SJGC claimed that the index price specified in the contracts, and the index at which SJGC paid for deliveries from 2011 through September 2014, was no longer appropriate under the contracts because a market disruption event (as defined by the contract) had occurred and, as a result, a new index price was required to be determined by the parties. The Company rejected SJGC's contention that a market disruption event occurred. SJGC's actions constituted a breach of the contracts by failing to pay the Company based on the express price terms of the contracts and paying the Company based on unilaterally selected price indices in violation of the contracts' remedial provisions. On May 8, 2017, a jury in the United States District Court in Colorado returned a unanimous verdict finding in favor of Antero's positions in the lawsuit against SJGC. On July 21, 2017, final judgment on the jury's unanimous verdict was entered by the court. On August 18, 2017, SJGC filed post-judgment motions with the court. On March 23, 2018, the court denied SJGC's post-judgment motions. On April 20, 2018, SJGC appealed the final judgment to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit and the appeal remains pending.

Subsequent to the entry of judgment, SJGC has continued to short pay the Company on the basis of unilaterally selected price indices and not the index specified in the contract. Accordingly, on December 21, 2017, Antero filed suit against SJGC to recover for its damages since March of 2017. The second lawsuit remains pending.

Through June 30, 2018, the Company estimates that it is owed approximately \$79 million (gross damages, including interest) more than SJGC has paid using the indices unilaterally selected by them. Substantially all of this amount has not been accrued in the Company's financial statements. The Company will vigorously seek recovery from SJGC of all underpayments and damages, including interest, based on the contracted price.

WGL

The Company and Washington Gas Light Company and WGL Midstream, Inc. (collectively, "WGL") were involved in a pricing dispute involving firm gas sales contracts executed June 20, 2014 (the "Contracts") that the Company began delivering gas under in January 2016. From January 2016 through July 2017 and from December 2017 through January 2018, the aggregate daily gas volumes contracted for under the Contracts was 500,000 MMBtu/day, with the aggregate daily contracted volumes having increased to 600,000 MMBtu/day from August through November 2017. The Company invoiced WGL based on the natural gas index price specified in the Contracts and WGL paid the Company based on that invoice price. However, WGL asserted that the index price was no longer appropriate under the Contracts and claimed that an undefined alternative index was more appropriate for the delivery point of the gas. In July 2016, the matter was referred to arbitration by the Colorado district court. In January 2017, the arbitration panel ruled in the Company's favor. As a result, the index price has remained as specified in the Contracts and there will be no adjustments to the invoices that have been paid by WGL, nor will future invoices to WGL be adjusted based on the same claim rejected by the arbitration panel. The arbitration panel's award was confirmed by the Colorado district court on April 14, 2017.

In March of 2017, WGL filed a second legal proceeding against the Company in Colorado district court alleging breach of contract and seeking damages of more than \$30 million. In this lawsuit, WGL claimed that the Company breached its contractual obligations under the Contracts by failing to deliver "TCO pool" gas. In subsequent filings, WGL explained that its claims were based on an alleged obligation that the Company must deliver gas to the Columbia IPP Pool ("IPP Pool"). WGL asserted this exact same issue in the arbitration and it was rejected by the arbitration panel. The arbitration panel specifically found that the Delivery Point under the Contracts was at a specific point in Braxton, West Virginia, not the IPP Pool. On August 24, 2017, the Colorado district court dismissed with prejudice WGL's claims against the Company in its new lawsuit and found that the Company had not breached its Contracts with WGL by allegedly failing to deliver to the IPP Pool. The Court also reaffirmed the arbitration panel's finding that

the delivery point under the Contracts was not the IPP Pool. WGL has appealed this decision to the Colorado Court of Appeals and the appeal remains pending.

The Company is also actively engaged in pursuing cover damages against WGL based on WGL's failure to take receipt of all of the agreed quantities of gas required under the Contracts. WGL's failure to take the gas volumes specified in the Contracts is directly related to WGL's lack of primary firm transportation rights at the Delivery Point. The failures by WGL to take the full contracted volumes gas began in April 2017 and continued each month through December 2017 in varying quantities. In defense of its conduct, WGL has asserted to the Company that their failure to receive gas is excused by (1) the Company's failure to deliver gas to the IPP Pool or (2) alleged instances of Force Majeure under the Contracts. However, as stated above, the alleged obligation that the Company must deliver gas to the IPP Pool was rejected by the arbitration panel and the Colorado district court. Further, the Contracts expressly prohibit a Force Majeure claim in circumstances in which the gas purchaser does not have primary firm transportation agreements in place to transport the purchased gas. In each instance that WGL has failed to receive the quantity of gas required under the Contracts, the Company has resold the quantities not taken and invoiced WGL for cover damages pursuant to the terms of the Contracts. WGL has refused to pay for the invoiced cover damages as required by the Contracts and has also short paid the Company for, among other things, certain amounts of gas received by WGL. Through June 30, 2018, these damages amounted to approximately \$106 million (gross damages, including interest). This amount has not been accrued in the Company's financial statements. The Company is currently pursuing its cover damages in a lawsuit filed in Colorado district court on October 24, 2017. The Company will continue to vigorously seek recovery of its cover damages and other unpaid amounts, including interest, as part of its claims against WGL.

Effective February 1, 2018, as a result of a recent amendment to its firm gas sales contract with WGL Midstream, Inc. that was executed on December 28, 2017, the total aggregate volumes to be delivered to WGL at the delivery point in Braxton, West Virginia were reduced from 500,000 MMBtu/day to 200,000 MMBtu/day. Upon both (1) the in service of the Dominion Cove Point LNG facility and (2) the earlier of in service of the WB East expansion and January 1, 2019, the aggregate contract volumes to be delivered to WGL will increase by 330,000 MMBtu/day. This increase will be in effect for the remaining term of our gas sale contract with WGL Midstream, which expires in 2038, and these increased volumes will be subject to NYMEX-based pricing. Following the increase of 330,000 MMBtu/day, the aggregate contract volumes to be delivered to WGL will total 530,000 MMBtu/day.

Other

The Company is party to various other legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of its business. The Company believes that certain of these matters will be covered by insurance and that the outcome of other matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

We are subject to certain risks and hazards due to the nature of the business activities we conduct. For a discussion of these risks, see "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our 2017 Form 10-K. The risks described in our 2017 Form 10-K could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations. There have been no material changes to the risks described in our 2017 Form 10-K. We may experience additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us; or, as a result of developments occurring in the future, conditions that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth our share purchase activity for each period presented:

				Iotai	
				Number of	Maximum
				Shares	Number of
				Purchased as	Shares that
				Part of	May Yet be
	Total Number	A	verage	Publicly	Purchased
	of Shares	Pr	ice Paid	Announced	Under the
Period	of Shares Purchased		ice Paid er Share	Announced Plans	Under the Plan
Period April 1, 2018 - April 30, 2018					
	Purchased	Pe	r Share		Plan

Shares purchased represent shares of our common stock transferred to us in order to satisfy tax withholding obligations incurred upon the vesting of Antero equity awards held by our employees.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit Number	Description of Exhibit
3.1	Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Antero Resources Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 001-36120) filed on October 17, 2013).
3.2	Amended and Restated Bylaws of Antero Resources Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 001-36120) filed on October 17, 2013).
10.1	Form of Amended and Restated Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 001-36120) filed on April 17, 2018).
10.2*	Form of Performance Share Unit Grant Notice and Performance Share Unit Agreement under the Antero Resources Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan.
31.1*	Certification of the Company's Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 7241).
31.2*	Certification of the Company's Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 7241).
32.1*	Certification of the Company's Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350).
32.2*	Certification of the Company's Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350).
101*	The following financial information from this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Antero Resources Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Equity, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of text.

The exhibits marked with the asterisk symbol (*) are filed or furnished with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ANTERO RESOURCES CORPORATION

By: /s/ GLEN C. WARREN, JR.

Glen C. Warren, Jr.

President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Date: August 1, 2018

ANTERO RESOURCES CORPORATION LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

FORM OF PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT GRANT NOTICE

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Antero Resources Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended from time to time (the "<u>Plan</u>"), Antero Resources Corporation (the "<u>Company</u>") hereby grants to the individual listed below ("<u>you</u>" or the "<u>Participant</u>") an award (this "<u>Award</u>") of Performance Share Units (the "<u>PSUs</u>") subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Performance Share Unit Agreement attached hereto as <u>Exhibit A</u> (the "<u>Agreement</u>") and the Plan, each of which is incorporated herein by reference. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Plan.

Participant:	
Date of Grant:	[]
Target PSUs:	[] PSUs (the " <u>Target Amount PSUs</u> ")
Performance Period:	[]
Earning of PSUs:	Subject to the Agreement, the Plan and the other terms and conditions set forth herein, the PSUs shall become earned in the manner set forth on <u>Exhibit B</u> attached hereto so long as you remain continuously employed by the Company from the Date of Grant through the end of the Performance Period.

By your signature below, you agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Plan, the Agreement and this Performance Share Unit Grant Notice (this "Grant Notice"). You acknowledge that you have reviewed the Agreement, the Plan and this Grant Notice in their entirety and fully understand all provisions of the Agreement, the Plan and this Grant Notice. You hereby agree to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Committee regarding any questions or determinations arising under the Agreement, the Plan or this Grant Notice. This Grant Notice may be executed in one or more counterparts (including portable document format (.pdf) and facsimile counterparts), each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank; Signature Page Follows] **I N WITNESS WHEREOF**, the Company has caused this Grant Notice to be executed by an officer thereunto duly authorized, and the Participant has executed this Grant Notice, effective for all purposes as provided above.

	ANTERO RESOURCES CORPORATION
	By:
	PARTICIPANT
	Signature Page to
Form of Perfo	ormance Share Unit Grant Notice

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AGREEMENT

This Performance Share Unit Agreement (this " <u>Agreement</u> ") is made as of the Date of Grant set forth in the Grant Notice to which this Agreement is attached (the " <u>Date of Grant</u> ") by and between Antero Resources Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the " <u>Company</u> "), and [] (" <u>Employee</u> "). Capitalized terms used but not specifically defined herein shall have the meanings specified in the Plan or the Grant Notice.
Award. Effective as of the Date of Grant, the Company hereby grants to Employee the number of PSUs set forth in the Grant Notice on the terms and conditions set forth in the Grant Notice, this Agreement and the Plan, which is incorporated herein by reference as a part of this Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between the Plan and this Agreement, the terms of the Plan shall control. To the extent earned, each PSU represents the right to receive one share of Stock ("Common Stock"), subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Grant Notice, this Agreement and the Plan; provided, however, that, depending on the level of performance determined to be attained with respect to the Performance Goals, the number of shares of Common Stock that may be earned hereunder in respect of this Award may range from 0% to 200% of the Target Amount PSUs. Unless and until the PSUs have become earned in the manner set forth in the Grant Notice and this Agreement, Employee will have no right to receive any Common Stock or other payments in respect of the PSUs. Prior to settlement of this Award, the PSUs and this Award represent an unsecured obligation of the Company, payable only from the general assets of the Company.
2. <u>Earning of PSUs</u> .
(a) Following the end of the Performance Period, the Committee will determine the level of achievement of the Performance Goals for the Performance Period. The number of PSUs, if any, that actually become earned for the Performance Period will be determined by the Committee in accordance with the Grant Notice (and any PSUs that do not become so earned shall be automatically forfeited). Unless and until the PSUs have become earned and been settled in accordance with Section 3, Employee will have no right to receive any dividends or other distributions with respect to the PSUs. In the event of the termination of Employee's employment prior to the last day of the Performance Period, except as otherwise provided in Section 2(b) and 2(c) below, all of the PSUs (and all rights arising from such PSUs and from being a holder thereof), will terminate automatically without any further action by the Company and will be automatically forfeited without further notice and at no cost to the Company.
(b) []
(c) []
3 . <u>Settlement of PSUs</u> . As soon as administratively practicable following the Committee's determination of the level of achievement of the Performance Goals for the Performance Period, but in no event later than 60 days following the end of the Performance Period, Employee (or Employee's permitted transferee, if applicable) shall be issued a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of PSUs subject to this Award that become

earned

based on the level of achievement of the Performance Goals as determined by the Committee in accordance with Section 2. Any fractional PSU that becomes earned hereunder shall be rounded down at the time shares of Common Stock are issued in settlement of such PSU. No fractional shares of Common Stock, nor the cash value of any fractional shares of Common Stock, will be issuable or payable to Employee pursuant to this Agreement. All shares of Common Stock issued hereunder shall be delivered either by delivering one or more certificates for such shares to Employee or by entering such shares in book-entry form, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion. The value of shares of Common Stock shall not bear any interest owing to the passage of time. Neither this Section 3 nor any action taken pursuant to or in accordance with this Agreement shall be construed to create a trust or a funded or secured obligation of any kind.

- 4. Rights as Stockholder. Neither Employee nor any person claiming under or through Employee shall have any of the rights or privileges of a holder of shares of Common Stock in respect of any shares that may become deliverable hereunder unless and until certificates representing such shares have been issued or recorded in book entry form on the records of the Company or its transfer agents or registrars, and delivered in certificate or book entry form to Employee or any person claiming under or through Employee.
- <u>Tax Withholding</u>. To the extent that the receipt, vesting or settlement of the 5 . PSUs results in compensation income or wages to Employee for federal, state, local and/or foreign tax purposes, the Company shall have the authority and the right to deduct or withhold (or cause one of its Affiliates to deduct or withhold), or to require Employee to remit to the Company (or one of its Affiliates), an amount sufficient to satisfy all applicable federal, state and local taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to such event. In satisfaction of the foregoing requirement, unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the Company or one of its Affiliates shall withhold, or cause to be surrendered, from any remuneration (including any of the shares of Common Stock that may be issuable under this Agreement) then or thereafter payable to Employee an amount equal to the aggregate amount of taxes required to be withheld with respect to such event. If such tax obligations are satisfied through net settlement or the surrender of previously owned shares of Common Stock, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be so withheld (or surrendered) shall be the number of shares of Common Stock that have an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date of withholding or surrender equal to the aggregate amount of such tax liabilities determined based on the greatest withholding rates for federal, state, local and/or foreign tax purposes, including payroll taxes, that may be utilized without creating adverse accounting treatment for the Company with respect to the PSUs, as determined by the Committee. Employee acknowledges that there may be adverse tax consequences upon the receipt, vesting or settlement of the PSUs or disposition of the underlying shares of Common Stock and that Employee has been advised, and hereby is advised, to consult a tax advisor. Employee acknowledges and agrees that none of the Board, the Committee, the Company or any of its Affiliates have made any representation or warranty as to the tax consequences to Employee as a result of the receipt of the PSUs, the earning of the PSUs or the forfeiture of any of the PSUs.

Employee represents that Employee is in no manner relying on the Board, the Committee, the Company or any of its Affiliates or any of their respective managers, directors, officers, employees or authorized representatives (including, without limitation, attorneys, accountants, consultants, bankers, lenders, prospective lenders and financial representatives) for tax advice or an assessment of such tax consequences.

- 6. Non-Transferability. During the lifetime of Employee, the PSUs may not be sold, pledged, assigned or transferred in any manner other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, unless and until the shares of Common Stock underlying the PSUs have been issued, and all restrictions applicable to such shares have lapsed. Neither the PSUs nor any interest or right therein shall be liable for the debts, contracts or engagements of Employee or his or her successors in interest or shall be subject to disposition by transfer, alienation, anticipation, pledge, encumbrance, assignment or any other means whether such disposition be voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law by judgment, levy, attachment, garnishment or any other legal or equitable proceedings (including bankruptcy), and any attempted disposition thereof shall be null and void and of no effect, except to the extent that such disposition is permitted by the preceding sentence.
- Compliance with Securities Law. Notwithstanding any provision of this 7 Agreement to the contrary, the issuance of shares of Common Stock hereunder will be subject to compliance with all applicable requirements of applicable law with respect to such securities and with the requirements of any stock exchange or market system upon which the Common Stock may then be listed. No shares of Common Stock will be issued hereunder if such issuance would constitute a violation of any applicable law or regulation or the requirements of any stock exchange or market system upon which the Common Stock may then be listed. In addition, shares of Common Stock will not be issued hereunder unless (a) a registration statement under the Securities Act is in effect at the time of such issuance with respect to the shares to be issued or (b) in the opinion of legal counsel to the Company, the shares to be issued are permitted to be issued in accordance with the terms of an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. The inability of the Company to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority, if any, deemed by the Company's legal counsel to be necessary for the lawful issuance and sale of any shares of Common Stock hereunder will relieve the Company of any liability in respect of the failure to issue such shares as to which such requisite authority has not been obtained. As a condition to any issuance of Common Stock hereunder, the Company may require Employee to satisfy any requirements that may be necessary or appropriate to evidence compliance with any applicable law or regulation and to make any representation or warranty with respect to such compliance as may be requested by the Company.
- 8 . <u>Legends</u>. If a stock certificate is issued with respect to shares of Common Stock delivered hereunder, such certificate shall bear such legend or legends as the Committee deems appropriate in order to reflect the restrictions set forth in this Agreement and to ensure compliance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the rules, regulations and other requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, any applicable laws or the requirements of any stock exchange on which the Common Stock is then listed. If the shares of Common Stock issued hereunder are held in book-entry form, then such entry will reflect that the shares are subject to the restrictions set forth in this Agreement.
- Execution of Receipts and Releases. Any issuance or transfer of shares of Common Stock or other property to Employee or Employee's legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee, in accordance with this Agreement shall be in full satisfaction of all claims of such person hereunder. As a condition precedent to such payment or issuance, the Company may require Employee or Employee's legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee to execute (and not revoke within any time provided to do so) a release and receipt therefor in such form as it shall

determine appropriate; provided, however, that any review period under such release will not modify the date of settlement with respect to earned PSUs.

10. No Right to Continued Employment or Awards.

- For purposes of this Agreement, Employee shall be considered to be (a) employed by the Company as long as Employee remains an Employee, or an employee of a corporation or other entity (or a parent or subsidiary of such corporation or other entity) assuming or substituting a new award for this Award. Without limiting the scope of the preceding sentence, it is specifically provided that Employee shall be considered to have terminated employment with the Company at the time of the termination of the "Affiliate" status of the entity or other organization that employs Employee. Nothing in the adoption of the Plan, nor the award of the PSUs thereunder pursuant to the Grant Notice and this Agreement, shall confer upon Employee the right to continued employment by, or a continued service relationship with, the Company or any such Affiliate, or any other entity, or affect in any way the right of the Company or any such Affiliate, or any other entity to terminate such employment at any time. Unless otherwise provided in a written employment agreement or by applicable law, Employee's employment by the Company, or any such Affiliate, or any other entity shall be on an at-will basis, and the employment relationship may be terminated at any time by either Employee or the Company, or any such Affiliate, or other entity for any reason whatsoever, with or without cause or notice. Any question as to whether and when there has been a termination of such employment, and the cause of such termination, shall be determined by the Committee or its delegate, and such determination shall be final, conclusive and binding for all purposes.
- (b) The grant of the PSUs is a one-time benefit and does not create any contractual or other right to receive a grant of Awards or benefits in lieu of Awards in the future. Any future Awards will be at the sole discretion of the Company.
- 11. <u>Notices</u>. Any notices or other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing. In the case of Employee, such notices or communications shall be effectively delivered if hand delivered to Employee at Employee's principal place of employment or if sent by registered or certified mail to Employee at the last address Employee has filed with the Company. In the case of the Company, such notices or communications shall be effectively delivered if sent by registered or certified mail to the Company at its principal executive offices.
- Consent to Electronic Delivery; Electronic Signature. In lieu of receiving documents in paper format, Employee agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to accept electronic delivery of any documents that the Company may be required to deliver (including, but not limited to, prospectuses, prospectus supplements, grant or award notifications and agreements, account statements, annual and quarterly reports and all other forms of communications) in connection with this and any other Award made or offered by the Company. Electronic delivery may be via a Company electronic mail system or by reference to a location on a Company intranet to which Employee has access. Employee hereby consents to any and all procedures the Company has established or may establish for an electronic signature system for delivery and acceptance of any such documents that the Company may be required to deliver, and agrees that his or her electronic signature is the same as, and shall have the same force and effect as, his or her manual signature.

- 1 3 . <u>Agreement to Furnish Information</u>. Employee agrees to furnish to the Company all information requested by the Company to enable it to comply with any reporting or other requirement imposed upon the Company by or under any applicable statute or regulation.
- 1 4 . **Entire Agreement; Amendment**. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof, and contains all the covenants, promises, representations, warranties and agreements between the parties with respect to the PSUs granted hereby; provided, however, that the terms of this Agreement shall not modify and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of any employment and/or severance agreement between the Company (or an Affiliate or other entity) and Employee in effect as of the date a determination is to be made under this Agreement. Without limiting the scope of the preceding sentence, except as provided therein, all prior understandings and agreements, if any, among the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof are hereby null and void and of no further force and effect. The Committee may, in its sole discretion, amend this Agreement from time to time in any manner that is not inconsistent with the Plan; provided, however, that except as otherwise provided in the Plan or this Agreement, any such amendment that materially reduces the rights of Employee shall be effective only if it is in writing and signed by both Employee and an authorized officer of the Company.
- 1 5 . <u>Governing Law</u>. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to conflicts of law principles thereof.
- 16. <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. The Company may assign any of its rights under this Agreement without Employee's consent. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Company. Subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth herein and in the Plan, this Agreement will be binding upon Employee and Employee's beneficiaries, executors, administrators and the person(s) to whom the PSUs may be transferred by will or the laws of descent or distribution.
- 17. <u>Clawback</u>. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement, the Grant Notice or the Plan to the contrary, to the extent required by (a) applicable law, including, without limitation, the requirements of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, any Securities and Exchange Commission rule or any applicable securities exchange listing standards and/or (b) any policy that may be adopted or amended by the Board from time to time, all shares of Common Stock issued hereunder shall be subject to forfeiture, repurchase, recoupment and/or cancellation to the extent necessary to comply with such law(s) and/or policy.
- 1 8 . <u>Counterparts</u>. The Grant Notice may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of the Grant Notice by facsimile or pdf attachment to electronic mail shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of the Grant Notice.
- 19. <u>Severability</u>. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable, then the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, and all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.
- 20. <u>Code Section 409A</u>. None of the PSUs or any amounts payable pursuant to this Agreement are intended to constitute or provide for a deferral of compensation that is subject to

Section 409A of the Code and the Treasury regulations and other interpretive guidance issued thereunder (collectively, "Section 409A"). Nevertheless, to the extent that the Committee determines that the PSUs may not be exempt from Section 409A, then, if Employee is deemed to be a "specified employee" within the meaning of Section 409A, as determined by the Committee, at a time when Employee becomes eligible for settlement of the PSUs upon his "separation from service" within the meaning of Section 409A, then to the extent necessary to prevent any accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A, such settlement will be delayed until the earlier of: (a) the date that is six months following Employee's separation from service and (b) Employee's death. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representations that the payments provided under this Agreement are exempt from or compliant with Section 409A and in no event shall the Company be liable for all or any portion of any taxes, penalties, interest or other expenses that may be incurred by Employee on account of non-compliance with Section 409A.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank]

Exhibit A-6

EXHIBIT B

PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT PERFORMANCE GOALS

[]		
	Exhibit B-1	

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

- I, Paul M. Rady, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Antero Resources Corporation, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018 of Antero Resources Corporation (the "registrant");
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report:
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; and
 - Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and
 - c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2018	
/s/ Paul M. Rady	
Paul M. Rady	
Chief Executive Officer	

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Glen C. Warren, Jr., President and Chief Financial Officer of Antero Resources Corporation, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018 of Antero Resources Corporation (the "registrant");
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report:
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; and
 - Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and
 - c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2018	
/s/ Glen C. Warren, Jr.	
Glen C. Warren, Jr.	
Chief Financial Officer	

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF ANTERO RESOURCES CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Antero Resources Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2018, I, Paul M. Rady, Chief Executive Officer of Antero Resources Corporation, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

- 1. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. The information contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Antero Resources Corporation for the periods presented therein.

Date: August 1, 2018	
/s/ Paul M. Rady	
Paul M. Rady	
Chief Executive Officer	

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF ANTERO RESOURCES CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Antero Resources Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2018, I, Glen C. Warren, Jr., Chief Financial Officer of Antero Resources Corporation, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

- 1. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. The information contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Antero Resources Corporation for the periods presented therein.

Date: August 1, 2018	
s/ Glen C. Warren, Jr.	
Glen C. Warren, Jr.	
Chief Financial Officer	